
The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

  
 
 
 

STA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
6:00 p.m., Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, December 11, 2013 
Suisun City Hall Council Chambers 

701 Civic Center Drive 
Suisun City, CA  94585 

 
 
Mission Statement:  To improve the quality of life in Solano County by delivering transportation system projects to ensure 
mobility, travel safety, and economic vitality. 
 

Public Comment:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the public has an opportunity to speak on any matter on the agenda or, for 
matters not on the agenda, issues within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  Comments are limited to no more than 
3 minutes per speaker unless modified by the Board Chair, Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a).  By law, no action may be taken on any 
item raised during the public comment period (Agenda Item  IV) although informational answers to questions may be given 
and matters may be referred to staff  for placement on a future agenda of the agency.  Speaker cards are required in order 
to provide public comment.  Speaker cards are on the table at the entry in the meeting room and should be handed to 
the STA Clerk of the Board.  Public comments are limited to 3 minutes or less. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This agenda is available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code §54954.2).  
Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation should contact Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board, 
at (707) 424-6008 during regular business hours at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

Staff Reports:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the STA Offices, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday.  You may also contact the Clerk of the Board via 
email at jmasiclat@sta-snci.com.  Supplemental Reports:  Any reports or other materials that are issued after the agenda has 
been distributed may be reviewed by contacting the STA Clerk of the Board and copies of any such supplemental materials 
will be available on the table at the entry to the meeting room. 
 

Agenda Times:  Times set forth on the agenda are estimates.  Items may be heard before or after the times shown. 
 

 ITEM 
 

BOARD/STAFF PERSON 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                       Chair Hardy 
(6:00 – 6:05 p.m.) 
 

2. CONFIRM QUORUM/ STATEMENT OF CONFLICT                                             Chair Hardy 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in 
detail the financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and 
voting on the matter; (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made. Cal. Gov’t Code § 
87200. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 
STA BOARD MEMBERS 

Steve Hardy 
Chair 

Osby Davis 
Vice-Chair 

Elizabeth Patterson Jack Batchelor, Jr. Harry Price Norman Richardson Pete Sanchez Jim Spering 

        
City of Vacaville City of Vallejo City of Benicia City of Dixon City of Fairfield City of Rio Vista City of Suisun City County of Solano 

        
STA BOARD ALTERNATES 

Dilenna Harris 
 

Hermie Sunga 
 

Alan Schwartzman Dane Besneatte 
 

Rick Vaccaro 
 

Constance Boulware 
 

Mike Hudson Erin Hannigan 
 

1

http://www.sta.ca.gov/
mailto:jmasiclat@sta-snci.com


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

4. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(6:05 – 6:10 p.m.) 
 

 

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – Pg. 9 
(6:10 – 6:15 p.m.) 
 

Daryl K. Halls 

6. REPORT FROM THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION (MTC) 
(6:15 – 6:20 p.m.) 
 

MTC Commissioner and 
STA Board Member  

Jim Spering 
 

7. REPORT FROM CALTRANS 
(6:20 – 6:25 p.m.) 

 

8. REPORT FROM STA 
(6:25 – 6:35 p.m.)   

 A. Presentation:  Public-Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility 
Study Update  

B. Directors Report 
1. Planning  
2. Projects  
3. Transit/Rideshare 

 

Michael Tran, KPMG 
 
 

Robert Macaulay 
Janet Adams 

Judy Leaks/ Liz Niedziela 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following consent items in one motion. 
(Note: Items under consent calendar may be removed for separate discussion.) 
(6:35 - 6:40 p.m.) 
 

 A. Minutes of the STA Board Meeting of October 9, 2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of October 9, 2013. 
Pg. 13 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

 B. Draft Minutes of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting of 
November 20, 2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve Draft TAC Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2013. 
Pg. 25 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

 C. Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 Fourth Quarter Budget Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
Pg. 31 
 

Susan Furtado 

 D. Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 First Quarter Budget Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
Pg. 35
 
 

Susan Furtado 

2

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

 E. STA Employee 2014 Benefit Summary Update 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
Pg. 39 
 

Susan Furtado 

 F. 2013 Solano County Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
Recommendation: 
Approve the 2013 Solano County CMP and direct the Executive Director to 
transmit the document to MTC. 
Pg. 47 
 

Robert Macaulay 

 G. Solano County Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Solano County Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan. 
Pg. 49 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 H. Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Non-Urbanized Area Program 
(FTA Section 5311) Recommendation 
Approve the following: 

1. Federal Section 5311 Allocation for 2014 and 2015 in the amount of 
$955,261 as specified in Attachment B; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the 
City of Dixon for the funding swap of FTA 5311 funds with Dixon 
TDA funds for the SolanoExpress Intercity Bus Replacement 
Contribution for Dixon and County of Solano and local bus 
replacement for Dixon Readi-Ride. 

Pg. 51 
 

Liz Niedziela 

 I. 2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The SolanoExpress Intercity Ridership Survey and Analysis 
(Attachment A); 

2. Develop the FAST and SolTrans Local Ridership Survey and 
Analysis in coordination with FAST and SolTrans;  

3. Dedicate $175,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the 
2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study; and 

4. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and enter into a contract for the Solano County Ridership 
Survey and Analysis for an amount not-to-exceed $175,000. 

Pg. 57 
 

Liz Niedziela 

 J. Contract Amendment - I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Project Utility Relocation Oversight 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. in the not-to-
exceed amount of $225,000 to cover construction management services for 
the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Initial Construction Package. 
Pg. 63 
 

Janet Adams 

3

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

 K. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Appointments 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Christian Odgen representing Solano Community College to the 
PAC for a three-year term. 
Pg. 67 
 

Sofia Recalde 

 L. OneBayAreaGrant (OBAG) Programming for City of Suisun City Safe 
Routes to School (SR2S) Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve the programming of $349,065 of Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality (CMAQ) funds for Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) projects as 
described in Attachment D. 
Pg. 71 
 

Jessica McCabe 

 M. Contract Amendment - Federal Legislative Advocacy Services  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a 24-month Contract 
Amendment with Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP (Akin 
Gump); 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to extend the contract with the 
Cities of Dixon, Fairfield, Vacaville and Vallejo to provide federal 
advocacy services in pursuit of federal funding for the STA’s priority 
projects through December 31, 2015 at a total cost not-to-exceed 
$231,600; and 

3. The expenditure of $50,400 to cover the STA’s contribution for this 
24-month contract. 

Pg. 81  
 

Jayne Bauer 

 N. Jepson Parkway Concept Plan Update - Fehr and Peers Contract 
Extension 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the STA Executive Director to sign an extension to Fehr and 
Peers' contract with an additional $10,000 to complete the Jepson Parkway 
Concept Plan Update. 
Pg. 95 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 O. STA Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) – Fehr and Peers 
Consultant Services  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the STA Executive Director to negotiate and enter into an 
agreement with the County of Solano to coordinate the expenditure 
of the Regional Transportation Impact Fee; and 

2. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into a contract with 
Fehr and Peers for the scope of services as specified in Attachment B 
for an amount not-to-exceed $20,000. 

Pg. 97 
 

Robert Guerrero 

4

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

 P. Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for Soltrans and 
Benicia 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into contract with Clean 
Energy to develop the CNG Feasibility Study in partnership with Soltrans 
and the City of Benicia for an amount not-to-exceed $60,000. 
Pg. 105 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 Q. Model Update: Conversion to an Activity Based Model (ABM) 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the Solano-
Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM) (Attachment A); 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to amend the current contract with 
Cambridge Systematics to include the development of the SNABM; 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with 
Cambridge Systematics to develop the SNABM for an amount not to 
exceed $150,000; and 

4. Dedicate $20,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the 
transit element of the Solano Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM). 

Pg. 107 
 

Sofia Recalde 

10. ACTION NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) 
Program Fourth Quarter Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
(6:40 – 6:45 p.m.) 
Pg. 117
 

Susan Furtado 

11. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. STA’s Annual Audit Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
(6:45 – 6:50 p.m.) 
Pg. 119 
 

Susan Furtado 

 B. I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project - Construction 
Allocation 
Recommendation: 
Approve the attached Resolution No. 2013-27 and Funding Allocation 
Request from Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $29.448 
million in Regional Measure 2 or AB1171 funds for the I-80/I-680/SR12 
Interchange Project - ICP for the Construction Phase. 
(6:50 – 6:55 p.m.) 
Pg. 121
 

Janet Adams 

5

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

 C. Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and 
Preliminary Engineering 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Approve the Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and 
Preliminary Engineering;  

2. Authorize a grant application to the Bay Trail Project for the amount 
of $50,000 for the Vine Trail Project; 

3. Approve Resolution No. 2013-28 authorizing an application for 
Local Assistance Funding from the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) for a Trail Feasibility and Implementation 
Study for the San Francisco Bay Trail Project; 

4.  Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with 
ABAG and supporting agencies to accept the Bay Trail grant if 
awarded; 

5. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the 
Vine Trail Coalition for the amount of $50,000 for the Vine Trail 
Project; 

6. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposals for 
the Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and 
Preliminary Engineering; and 

7. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with 
selected consultant to develop the Solano County Bay Trail and Vine 
Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering for an amount 
not to exceed $100,000. 

(6:55 – 7:00 p.m.) 
Pg. 139
 

Sara Woo 

12. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – NO DISCUSSION  
 

 A. Public-Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study Update 
Pg. 151 
 

Jessica McCabe 

 B. I-80 Ramp Metering Implementation 
Pg. 163 
 

Robert Guerrero 

 C. Active Transportation Program Overview 
Pg. 165 
 

Sara Woo 

 D. Mobility Management Program Update 
Pg. 169 
 

Anthony Adams 

 E. Summary of Other Funding Opportunities 
Pg. 181
 

Sara Woo 

 F. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule 
for Calendar Year 2014 
Pg. 185 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

6

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

13. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the STA Board at 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, January 8, 2014, 
Suisun Council Chambers. 
 

 

7

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


This page intentionally left blank. 

8



Agenda Item 5 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl K. Halls 
RE:  Executive Director’s Report –December 2013 
 
 
The following is a brief status report on some of the major issues and projects currently 
being advanced by the STA.  An asterisk (*) notes items included in this month’s Board 
agenda. 
 
Solano County Board of Supervisors Include Transportation In County Public 
Facility Fee Revision * 
On December 3rd, the Solano County Board of Supervisors unanimously supported 
revisions to the County’s Public Facility Fee (PFF) that includes adding in a $1,500 
dwelling unit equivalent for transportation and authorizing the County to enter into an 
agreement with STA to administer the transportation portion of the PFF.  This action is 
consistent with the STA’s request to the County back in December of 2012.  Staff is 
recommending the STA Board authorize the STA enter into agreement with the County 
to administer the transportation portion of the fee which is scheduled to go into effect in 
February 2014 following a 60 days public comment period.  Staff is also planning to 
schedule a follow up meeting of the STA’s RTIF Advisory Committee prior to the 
February 12th STA Board meeting. 
 
STA Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2013-14 * 
The auditing firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, has completed the independent 
annual audit of the finances, funding compliance, and internal audit controls for STA.  
For the 8th consecutive year, STA has received an unqualified audit report thanks to the 
quality staff work of STA’s Susan Furtado and Judy Kowalsky.  A summary of the audit 
will be provided at the Board meeting.  STA’s Budgeting and Accounting Staff has also 
completed the 4th quarter budget report for FY 2012-13 and the 1st quarter budget report 
for FY 2013-14.  
 
Allocation of Construction Funds for I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project * 
With the recent action by the California Transportation Commission (CTC) to allocate to 
the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Proposition 1B Trade Corridor Improvement Funds 
(TCIF) and State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds, STA is ready to 
recommend the construction allocation of $29.448 million of regional bridge toll funds 
for the construction phase of the project.  This project is scheduled to start construction 
during the spring of 2014. 
 
 

9



Executive Director’s Memo 
December 3, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study – Market Assessment * 
At the meeting, representatives from KPMG will provide a summary of the Public Private 
Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study focused on 10 Solano County transit centers.  This 
follows their completion of private sector market soundings which identified which 
transit centers have the most potential for private sectors investment in the areas such as 
solar energy, paid parking, concessions, and advertizing.  Based on the Feasibility Study, 
STA is contacting the various project sponsors with projects noted as having the most 
potential for private partnership to identify potential participants in phase 2 of the study. 
 
One of the transit centers that is already taking advantage of some of the P3 Feasibility 
Study’s opportunities is the Curtola Park and Ride Expansion Project. This project is 
currently in the design phase and STA has been working with staff and consultants from 
Solano County Transit (SolTrans) and the City of Vallejo to incorporate Solano, 
advertizing, concessions, and paid parking and a parking management plan into the 
design and operation of the project to help offset the future annual operating and 
maintenance of the facility once it is open to the public. 
 
Approval of Solano Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan * 
The Solano Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan has been completed and is ready for 
adoption by the STA Board.  Several agencies have already requested assisted from the 
STA to begin the process for implementing some of the recommendations contained in 
the Plan.  STA staff is recommending the Board authorize the STA to enter into a 
contract to develop a CNG Feasibility Study for the City of Benicia and Solano County 
Transit (SolTrans). The City of Dixon has also requested similar assistance from the 
STA.  
 
Mobility Management Program Update* 
The STA continues to work with various partners to implement provisions of the 
Mobility Management Program that includes an in-person, Countywide ADA Eligibility 
Program Assessment process, a Mobility Management Informational Website, and a 
development of a Travel Training Program for the County and six of seven cities. 
This month, STA received Caltrans approval to issue Request for Proposals for the 
Mobility Management Website and the Countywide Travel Training Program.  The grant 
funding for both of these programs and the Call Center will be in place this month which 
will enable the STA to recruit for customer service staff to staff the Mobility 
Management Call Center in 2014.  
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Acronyms List of Transportation Terms (Updated February 2013) 

10



 ATTACHMENT A 
STA ACRONYMS LIST OF TRANSPORTATION TERMS 

Last Updated sj:  February 2013 
 

 
A        
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC Alameda County Transportation Commission 
ADA American Disabilities Act 
AVA Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
APDE           Advanced Project Development Element (STIP) 
AQMD Air Quality Management District 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
B 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BABC Bay Area Bicycle Coalition 
BAC Bicycle Advisory Committee 
BART Bay Area Rapid Transit 
BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
BT&H Business, Transportation & Housing Agency 
C 
CAF Clean Air Funds 
CALTRANS California Department of Transportation 
CARB California Air Resources Board 
CCCC (4’Cs) City County Coordinating Council 
CCCTA (3CTA) Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
CCJPA Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority 
CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 
CHP California Highway Patrol 
CIP Capital Improvement Program 
CMA Congestion Management Agency 
CMIA Corridor Mobility Improvement Account 
CMAQ Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Program 
CMP Congestion Management Plan 
CNG Compressed Natural Gas 
CTC California Transportation Commission 
D 
DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
DOT Department of Transportation 
E 
ECMAQ Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Program 
EIR Environmental Impact Report 
EIS Environmental Impact Statement 
EPA Environmental Protection Agency 
EV Electric Vehicle 
F 
FEIR Final Environmental Impact Report 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FPI Freeway Performance Initiative  
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
 
G 
GHG Greenhouse Gas 
GIS Geographic Information System 
 
H 
HIP Housing Incentive Program 
HOT High Occupancy Toll 
HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 
I 
ISTEA Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act 
ITIP Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 
ITS Intelligent Transportation System 

J 
JARC Jobs Access Reverse Commute Program 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement 
L 
LATIP Local Area Transportation Improvement Program 
LEV Low Emission Vehicle 
LIFT Low Income Flexible Transportation Program 
LOS Level of Service 
LS&R Local Streets & Roads 
 
M 
MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
MIS Major Investment Study 
MOU Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 
N 
NCTPA Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency 
NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 
NHS National Highway System 
NOP Notice of Preparation 
O 
OBAG One Bay Area Grant 
OTS Office of Traffic Safety 
 
P 
PAC Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
PCC Paratransit Coordinating Council 
PCRP Planning & Congestion Relief Program 
PCA Priority Conservation Study 
PDS Project Development Support 
PDA Priority Development Area 
PDT Project Delivery Team 
PDWG Project Delivery Working Group 
PMP Pavement Management Program 
PMS Pavement Management System 
PNR Park & Ride 
PPM Planning, Programming & Monitoring 
PPP (P3) Public Private Partnership 
PS&E Plans, Specifications & Estimate 
PSR Project Study Report 
PTA Public Transportation Account 
PTAC Partnership Technical Advisory Committee (MTC) 
R 
RABA Revenue Alignment Budget Authority 
RBWG  Regional Bicycle Working Group 
RFP Request for Proposal 
RFQ Request for Qualification 
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 
RPC  Regional Pedestrian Committee 
RRP Regional Rideshare Program 
RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Policy 
RTIF Regional Transportation Impact Fee 
RTP Regional Transportation Plan 
RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTPA Regional Transportation Planning Agency 

11



 ATTACHMENT A 
STA ACRONYMS LIST OF TRANSPORTATION TERMS 

Last Updated sj:  February 2013 
 

 
 
S 
SACOG Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient     
 Transportation Equality Act-a Legacy for Users 
SCS Sustainable Community Strategy  
SCTA Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
SFCTA San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
SJCOG San Joaquin Council of Governments   
SHOPP State Highway Operations & Protection Program 
SMAQMD Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
 Management District 
SMCCAG San Mateo City-County Association of Governments 
SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 
SoHip Solano Highway Improvement Plan 
SOV Single Occupant Vehicle  
SP&R State Planning & Research 
SR State Route 
SR2S Safe Routes to School 
SR2T Safe Routes to Transit 
STAF State Transit Assistance Fund 
STA Solano Transportation Authority 
STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 
STP Federal Surface Transportation Program 
T 
TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TAM Transportation Authority of Marin 
TAZ Transportation Analysis Zone 
TCI Transportation Capital Improvement 
TCIF Trade Corridor Improvement Fund 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 
TCRP Transportation Congestion Relief Program 
TDA Transportation Development Act 
TDM Transportation Demand Management 
TE Transportation Enhancement  
TEA-21 Transportation Efficiency Act for the 21st Century 
TFCA Transportation Funds for Clean Air  
TIF Transportation Investment Fund 
TIGER Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program 
TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 
TMA Transportation Management Association 
TMP Transportation Management Plan 
TMS Transportation Management System 
TOD Transportation Operations Systems 
TOS Traffic Operation System 
T-Plus Transportation Planning and Land Use Solutions 
TRAC Trails Advisory Committee 
TSM Transportation System Management 
U, V, W, Y, & Z 
UZA Urbanized Area 
VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 
VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 
VTA Valley Transportation Authority (Santa Clara) 
W2W Welfare to Work 
WCCTAC West Costa County Transportation Advisory  
 Committee 
WETA Water Emergency Transportation Authority  
YCTD Yolo County Transit District 
YSAQMD Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District 
ZEV Zero Emission Vehicle 12



Agenda Item 9.A 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 

 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Minutes for Meeting of 

October 9, 2013 
 

1. CLOSED SESSION 
Chair Hardy cited that there were no matters to report. 
 

2. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Hardy called the regular meeting to order at 6:08 p.m.  A quorum was confirmed. 
 

 MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

 
Steve Hardy, Chair 

 
City of Vacaville 

  Osby Davis, Vice Chair City of Vallejo 
  Elizabeth Patterson City of Benicia 
  Jack Batchelor City of Dixon 
  Harry Price City of Fairfield 
  Norman Richardson City of Rio Vista 
  Pete Sanchez City of Suisun City 
  Jim Spering County of Solano  
    
 MEMBERS 

ABSENT: 
 
None. 

 

    
 STAFF 

PRESENT: 
 
Daryl K. Halls 

 
Executive Director 

  Bernadette Curry  Legal Counsel 
  Janet Adams Deputy Exec. Director/Dir. of Projects 
  Robert Macaulay Director of Planning 
  Johanna Masiclat Clerk of the Board/Office Manager 
  Susan Furtado Accounting & Administrative Svc. Manager 
  Liz Niedziela Transit Manager 
  Judy Leaks Program Manager 
  Robert Guerrero Project Manager 
  Nancy Whelan Project Manager 
  Sofia Recalde Associate Planner 
  Sara Woo Associate Planner 

13



 ALSO PRESENT:  (In alphabetical order by last name.) 
  Jim Antone YSAQMD 
  Robin Cox Solano County Public Health  
  Amanda Dum City of Suisun City 
  Casey Hildreth Alta Planning 
  Joe Leach City of Dixon 
  Wayne Lewis City of Fairfield 
  Mike Roberts City of Benicia 
  Matt Tuggle Solano County 
    

3. CONFIRM QUORUM/STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
A quorum was confirmed by the Clerk of the Board.  There was no Statement of Conflict declared 
at this time. 
 

4. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Batchelor, the STA 
Board approved the agenda to include the following modifications: 

• Item 10.A, (Amended) STA Board Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2013. 
• Item 12.D, (Move to Item 9.B), Legislative Update and Water Emergency Transportation 

Authority (WETA) Board Representation; and 
 

5. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 

6. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 STA Board Members to Support International Walk to School Day 
 Nominees Announced for 16th Annual STA Awards in Vacaville 
 Programming of 2014 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
 Solano County Freight Priorities for State and Federal Plans 
 Adoption of 2013 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Countywide Plan 
 Public Release of Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan 
 2013 Congestion Management Program Update 
 Call Center Next Step in Implementation of Mobility Management Program 
 Funding Plan and Implementation of Benicia Park/Industrial Interchange and Park and 

Ride 
 

7. REPORT FROM THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC) 
MTC Commissioner and STA Board Member Jim Spering reported on the recent meeting/tour 
STA organized of the Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project held on October 4, 
2013.  He cited that the purpose of the meeting/tour was to set the stage for the relocation project 
of the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales and to advocate for funding for the westbound 
scales.  In partnership with the California Highway Patrol (CHP), the meeting/tour was a huge 
success and included guests like State Secretary of Transportation, Brian Kelly, CTC 
Commissioner, Jim Earp, Bijan Sartipi, Caltrans District 4 Director, MTC’s Executive Director, 
Steve Heminger, Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA)’s Deputy Executive Director, Andrew 
Fremier, CMA Directors Randy Iwasaki, CCTA and Art Dao, Alameda CTC.  He commended 
CHP and STA staff for their collaborative effort in showcasing the project need and the need to 
fund others in Solano County. 
 

8. REPORT FROM CALTRANS 
None presented. 
 

14



9. REPORT FROM STA 
A. Announcement of Nominees for STA’s 16th Annual Awards 
B. Legislative Update and Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA) Board 

Representation 
C. Directors Report 

1. Planning 
2. Projects 
3. Transit/Rideshare 
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR 
On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Price, the STA Board 
unanimously approved Consent Calendar Items A through K as amended (Item A, STA Board 
Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2013). (8 Ayes) 
 

 A. Amended - Minutes of the STA Board Meeting of September 11, 2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2013. 
 

 B. Draft Minutes of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting of September 25, 
2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve Draft TAC Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2013. 
 

 C. Mobility Management - Travel Training Scope of Work 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The revised Scope of Work for Countywide Travel Training as specified in 
Attachment A. 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) and enter 
into an agreement for Travel Training Consultant Services for an amount not-to-
exceed $130,000. 

 
 D. Updated STA Human Resources Policies and Procedures Handbook 

Recommendation: 
Approve the October 2013 STA Revised Human Resources Policies and Procedures 
Handbook as provided in Attachment A. 
 

 E. Transit Project Management Contract Amendments 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment for Transit Project 
Management Services with the following: 

1. The City of Rio Vista  for an amount not-to-exceed $75,000 to provide transit and 
operation services for the City of Rio Vista and extend contract date to May 30, 2014; 
and 

2. Jim McElroy for an amount not-to-exceed $60,000 to provide transit and operation 
services for the City of Rio Vista and  extend the contract date to May 30, 2014; and 

3. Nancy Whelan Consulting for an amount not-to-exceed $15,000 to cover additional 
services to provide transit financial services for the City of Rio Vista. 

 
 F. Solano Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Member Appointment 

Recommendation: 
Appoint Tamer Totah representing City of Fairfield to the PAC for a three-year term. 
 15



 G. Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Contract Amendment – Solano County Public Health 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an amendment to the agreement with Solano 
County Public Health to operate and deliver SR2S project and program tasks described in the 
SR2S 2-year Work Plan for an amount not to exceed $1,143,034 through Fiscal Years 2013-
14 and 2014-15 as described in Attachment A. 
 

 H. Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Contract Amendment – Alta Planning + Design 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment with Alta Planning + 
Design for an amount not-to-exceed $15,000 to cover the additional cost associated with the 
SR2S Plan Update and Mapping Project. 
 

 I. STA’s Lease Renewal and Additional Office Space 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to: 

1. Amend the current lease with Wiseman Company to add 1,114 sq. ft. space for the 
amount of $36,877; and 

2. Enter into an additional 3-year lease extension for the total 7,593 sq. ft. for a total 
amount not-to-exceed $725,202. 

 
 J. OneBayArea Grant (OBAG) Programming for City of Vacaville Safe Routes to School 

(SR2S) Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve the programming of $303,207 of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
funds for Vacaville’s Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) project, as described in Attachment D. 
 

 K. City of Fairfield Funding Request to Conduct Feasibility Analysis of Fairfield and 
Suisun Transit (FAST) Service 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize funding in the amount of $45,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds for the 
City of Fairfield to conduct a Feasibility Analysis of FAST transit service including 
the feasibility of combining services with SolTrans; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a funding agreement with the City of 
Fairfield to conduct a Feasibility Analysis of combining FAST and SolTrans. 

 
11. ACTION – FINANCIAL ITEMS 

 
 A. 2014 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Programming 

Janet Adams reviewed the $36.7 million of STIP which has programmed previously to the 
Jepson Parkway project as part of the STA’s regional commitment.  She noted that the total 
STIP funding includes $2.4 million which was allocated for Plans, Specifications & Estimate 
(PS&E) in FY 2010-11, $3.8 million that was allocated for Right-of-Way funds in FY 2011-
12 and $30.5 million in construction funding that is programmed for FY 2015-16.  She 
added that in support of the continued commitment to the project, the STA staff recommends 
programming $9.3 million in available STIP funds to the Jepson Parkway project.  These 
funds will be leveraged by 50% local, per STA Board policy, funds to continue to construct 
this project. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 16



  Board Comments: 
Daryl Halls commented that the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) is 
extremely competitive having a statewide competition with only a quarter of the STIP 
money going into the ITIP.  He noted that in order to leverage the potential for ITIP funds 
for I-80/I-680/SR 12, local RTIP money might need to be brought to the table.  He indicated 
that the status of the ITIP was uncertain, but he wanted the Board to be aware of it.  He 
acknowledged Caltrans District 4 for putting North Bay projects including I-80/I-680/SR 12 
on the list which is good news for the project.  MTC’s list is bigger, but the interchange 
project is on that list as well.  It’s a good place to start, but several of the larger counties are 
not happy with the Caltrans and MTC ITIP lists.   
 
Board Member Spering commented that what is significant, whether we receive the monies 
or not in this ITIP cycle, is that both Caltrans and MTC are recognizing these projects.  This 
is one step closer to funding these projects. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Program $9.3M in available State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
funds to the Jepson Parkway project;   

2. Program $203,500 in FY 2017-18 and $203,500 in FY 2018-19 available for 
Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) activities; and 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to pursue opportunities for Interregional 
Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) funds for future phases of the I-80/I-
680/SR 12 Interchange Project. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Richardson, and a second by Board Member Spering, the 

STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

 B. Benicia Park/Industrial Interchange Improvements and Park and Ride – Request for 
STA Right of Way Implementation 
Janet Adams reviewed the City of Benicia’s request for the STA to be the lead on the right-
of-way phase for the Benicia Park/Industrial Interchange Improvements and Park and Ride 
project.  She noted that there is currently $1.25 million of Regional Measure (RM) 2 funds 
dedicated to the project, and while the City has not fully updated the cost estimate for this 
project, it is projected that an additional $500,000 is needed to fully fund the project.  She 
also stated that the STA recommended State Assistance Funds (STAF) be programmed to 
fully fund this project and is proposing to use STAF for the acquisition of the lands for this 
project to help keep the project on schedule.   
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments:  
Board Member Patterson extended her appreciation to STA staff for their collaborative 
efforts in support of this great project.  She commented that the project will improve the 
surrounding area making it more competitive.  She added that the project will also provide 
real access for the workers who are both choice and transit riders, serving two populations, 
which are not easily achieved.  
 
 

17



  Daryl Halls noted that one important component that the project will need to address that 
will meet this project and the Curtola project is to include in the agreement an operational 
and maintenance plan.  Discussions are currently taking place between the City of Benicia, 
Soltrans, and the STA. 
 
Board Member Spering asked if there were fundamental guidelines for the design criteria 
that should be followed and/or be considered for this project?  He commented that he wants 
to make sure that we don’t fall short and follow old design models where the park and ride 
lot would be integrated in an isolated and unsafe location which does not serve the needs of 
the community.   
 
Board Member Patterson suggested developing a set of criteria that is process oriented and 
suitable to the project as well as relying on the jurisdiction’s general plan which could 
provide the design elements such as gateway statements, etc. 
 
Daryl Halls responded and said the only guideline the STA currently follows is related to 
funding.  He commented that there are a lot of discussions on the design concept, but the 
focus to this point has not been on integration within the neighborhood.  He suggested 
beginning discussions with the project sponsors on all the concerns that are being addressed 
by the Board members. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Dedicate up to $500,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) to the Benicia 
Park/Industrial Interchange Improvements and Park and Ride project; 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a Funding Agreement with the City of 
Benicia for the Right-of-Way services for this Project; 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to either contract with Contra Costa County or a 
qualified consultant for the Right-of-Way services for an amount not to exceed 
$50,000; and 

4. Authorize the Executive Director to acquire lands necessary for this project and to 
include an operational and maintenance plan in the agreement. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Spering, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation as amended shown above in bold italics. 
(8 Ayes) 
 

 C. Mobility Management One Stop Transportation Call Center 
Elizabeth Richards provided an update on the implementation of the Mobility Management 
One Stop Transportation Call Center.  She noted that the draft Mobility Management Plan 
proposal is to integrate the Mobility Management Call Center into the SNCI program.  She 
specified that the SNCI program and STA’s Transit Mobility Coordinator would handle the 
reporting and outreach and be responsible for keeping a transportation services database up-
to-date which would be shared via the Mobility Management website.  She also noted that 
the Call Center would also house information on Mature Driver program information (the 
fourth program of the Mobility Management Plan). 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 18



  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to implement Solano’s Mobility Management 
(MM) Call Center as a 3-year pilot program in an amount not-to-exceed $383,305; 
and 

2. Direct STA staff to monitor and evaluate the Mobility Management Call Center Pilot 
Program and report on its effectiveness on an annual basis. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

12. ACTION – NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. 2013 Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Countywide Plan 
Danelle Carey presented and recommended adoption of the final draft SR2S Countywide 
Plan.   
 

  Public Comments: 
Robin Cox, Solano County Public Health, and Jim Antone, Yolo-Solano Air Quality 
Management District (YSAQMD), both SR2S-AC Committee Members, commended all 
the Board Members and staff for their support and participation in the 2nd Annual 
International Walk to School Day.  They also conveyed their support in the adoption of the 
2013 Safe Routes to School Countywide Plan. 
 

  Board Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Adopt the 2013 Safe Routes to School Plan as provided for in Attachment A. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Batchelor, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the 
STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

 B. STA Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan 
Robert Guerrero presented the STA Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan.  He noted that 
Solano County will maximize alternative fuel use to protect public health, mitigate the effects 
of climate change, and capture economic benefits while continuing to serve the mobility needs 
of the county’s residents and businesses.  He recommended the STA Board to authorize the 
Executive Director to release the Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan for 30-day public 
input and bring back to the STA Board for final adoption in December.  
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Vice Chair Davis asked what the cost is to maintain the public charging stations and what 
type of grants are available to increase the amount of charging stations?   
 
Robert Guerrero responded that clean air funds are being used however there is concern on 
the cost to maintain the charging stations therefore further discussion on developing some 
strategies to cut down on the cost maintenance is being looked at by staff from those 
agencies.   
 19



  Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to distribute the Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan 
for a 30-day public input as provided for in Attachment B. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Price, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

 C. 2013 Congestion Management Program Update 
Robert Macaulay noted that the draft 2013 Solano CMP does not show any significant 
changes in traffic patterns in the past two years, but it does note changes to transit services 
that have occurred.  With the adoption of the new RTP and the reported upturn in the 
economy of Solano County and the region, the 2015 Solano CMP may be a substantially 
different document.  He added that the draft 2013 CMP will be reviewed by MTC and any 
proposed changes will be reviewed and brought back to the TAC and Consortium in 
November and the Final Plan is due to MTC in December 2013. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Board Member Patterson commented and suggested staff to mention that the demographics 
and change conditions in the economic upturn that is yet to be seen is what would drive the 
2015 Solano CMP to be a substantially different document. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Release the Draft 2013 Solano CMP to MTC for review and comment as provided for in 
Attachment B. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Patterson, and a second by Board Member Spering, the 
STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

 D. Solano County Freight Priorities – Highways 
Janet Adams noted that as part of the Prop. 1B, $2.5 billion has been allocated for goods 
movement infrastructure.  She commented that the Northern California coalition secured 
funding for major freight projects serving the Bay Area, Sacramento, and Central Valley.  
She listed Solano County’s two projects, the I-80 Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation and the 
I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange.  She commented that recognizing the importance of the State 
and National Freight Planning process, the STA is recommending the I-80 and SR 12 
corridors be included in the State Freight Plan and that the I-80 corridor be included in the 
national freight network.  She continued by stating that in continuation of the investment 
made as part of the Prop. 1B Trade Corridor Improvement Fund, staff is recommending that 
this investment continue with defining the I-80 Westbound Cordelia Truck Scales 
Relocation and the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange as priority freight projects for Solano 
County. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

20



  Board Comments: 
Board Member Patterson raised concerns about safety issues under the rail.  Janet Adams 
responded that the safety issues in the existing rail plan will be addressed in a letter to be 
submitted later on. 
 
Board Member Patterson asked if it is part of the state’s approach to look at the safety and 
increased wear and tear on the roads that impact the local communities?  Janet Adams 
responded that they are looking at all the impacts in the communities adjacent to the 
designated freight corridor. 
 
Board Member Richardson commented that when the I-5 was opened there were two 
options, improve I-4 or let it go with SR12 as it does now. He added that the report states 
that we get several thousand trucks per day and as it increases we should designate it as a 
freight route and reap the rewards in return for the agony. Janet Adams concurred and 
added that by designating it as a freight route, grants can be obtained for the route. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Request the I-80 and State Route 12 be designated as freight corridors in the State 
Freight Plan; 

2. Request I-80 be designated as a freight corridor in the National Freight Network; 
3. Request the I-80 Westbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation and the I-80/I-

680/SR 12 Interchange as priority freight projects for Solano County; and 
4. Authorize the STA Chair to send letters to Caltrans and the Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission to request these priorities are included in the State and 
Federal Freight Plans. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Batchelor, and a second by Board Member Patterson, the 

STA Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

 E. Legislative Update and Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA) Board 
Representation 
Jayne Bauer reviewed the appointment process for the WETA Board which is due to expire 
at the end of 2013.  She noted that the Governor’s office will likely begin the appointment 
process in November 2013.  She outlined staff’s recommendation to have the STA Board 
delegate to the STA Board Executive Committee the responsibility to propose candidates 
for consideration by the Governor for the WETA appointment.   
 
Jayne Bauer continued to explain that the 2013 STA Legislative Platform V. Ferry#4 states 
“Seek legislation to specify that Solano County will have a statutorily-designated 
representative on the WETA Board”.  She noted that staff recommends that the platform be 
amended as follows (additional language in underlined italics) as the appointment process 
commences for terms to begin in 2014: “Seek Solano County representation on the WETA 
Board, and ultimately seek legislation to specify that Solano County will have a statutorily-
designated representative on the WETA Board;” and authorize the STA Board Executive 
Committee to submit candidates for consideration by the Governor for WETA appointment.  
She noted that the Platform will be brought back to the Board in December 2013. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

21



  Board Comments: 
Board Member Spering asked if we can be more specific in appointing a resident of Solano 
County who resides in Vallejo.  Jayne Bauer responded that the Governor’s office cited that 
they would consider all different aspects of what would make the most sense, also taking in 
consideration that Solano County carries 46% of the riders who ride the ferry in Vallejo.   
 

  Daryl Halls cited that this is the direction we are asking today because of the appointment 
being a political process.  
 
Board Member Patterson asked who from the Governor’s office Governor Brown would 
depend on for their recommendation for the appointment.  Daryl Halls responded the 
Secretary of the Department of Transportation, Brian Kelly and the appointment staff within 
the Governor’s office. 
 
Vice Chair Davis echoed the comments made by Supervisor Spering.  He noted that his 
only issue is whether or not we have a better chance to get the Governor’s office to make 
the statutory appointment that says Solano County versus specifically Vallejo.  He 
commented that if it makes more sense for them to designate the County then he would ask 
the STA to implement the policy that states that the appointment will come from Vallejo so 
we did not have to do that.  But if we can go forward and designate a city, then that was his 
goal from day one when the whole ferry took over  is to get a statutory appointment from 
Vallejo and that’s still his goal; whichever one gives us the best chance of getting the 
appointment is what he’s willing to do.  But he noted that he still does not know whether to 
say Vallejo specifically or Solano County and the reason he does not know is because it 
seems that if we say Solano County and we tie it to the Ferry, there is less likelihood of 
other people saying I want my city to have one and other city to have one, etc. then the 
Governor’s office would have to be faced with a bunch of people requesting their City to 
have an appointment to serve on the Board because for example, if we were to expand 
services to South San Francisco, that didn’t work and other places like Antioch that didn’t 
work either, so the best bet to avoid every City around asking for an appointment to do it 
just like the County, then he would ask the STA Board to make a policy that that’s the 
appointment. 
 
Chair Hardy suggested narrowing it down because if you leave it open it could be someone 
from Vacaville or someone politically connected that would get it, and we don’t want that 
because we really would want someone from Vallejo because they’re the only one with a 
ferry service.   
 
Jayne Bauer reiterated that they specifically asked for a name which would put more 
weight. 
 
Board Member Spering suggested clarifying in the letter the City that represents the ferry 
service, because if they don’t have service there’s no stand.  He added that he agrees with 
Vice Chair Davis’ approach to nominate someone who resides in the city that provides the 
service.   
 

22



  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Amend the 2013 STA Legislative Platform V. Ferry #4 as follows: 
“Seek Solano County representation on the WETA Board, and ultimately seek 
legislation to specify that Solano County will have a statutorily-designated 
representative on the WETA Board;” and 

2. Authorize the STA Board Executive Committee to submit candidates for 
consideration by the Governor for WETA appointment. 
 

  On a motion by Vice Chair Davis, and a second by Board Member Batchelor, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (8 Ayes) 
 

13. INFORMATIONAL – NO DISCUSSION 
 

 A. Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Update and Summary of 
Regional Initial 
 

 B. Vine Trail Project Update 
 

 C. Status of Marketing Plan for SolanoExpress  
 

 D. Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility Program and Funding Update 
 

 E. Summary of Funding Opportunities Summary 
 

 F. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule 
for Calendar Year 2013 
 

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
None. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 

 Attested by: 
 
 
_________________________/November 20, 2013 
Johanna Masiclat                      Date 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 

23



This page intentionally left blank. 

24



Agenda Item 9.B 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Draft Minutes for the meeting of 

November 20, 2013 
 

1. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the STA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was called to order by 
Daryl Halls at approximately 1:35 p.m. in the Solano Transportation Authority (STA)’s 
Conference Room 1. 
 

 TAC Members Present: Mike Roberts City of Benicia 
  Joe Leach City of Dixon 
  George Hicks City of Fairfield 
  Dave Melilli City of Rio Vista 
  Dan Kasperson City of Suisun City 
  Steve Hartwig City of Vacaville  
  David Kleinschmidt City of Vallejo 
 Arrived at the meeting at  

1:40 p.m. 
Matt Tuggle Solano County 

  
TAC Members Absent: 

  

  Shawn Cunningham City of Vacaville  
    
    
 STA Staff Present: (In Alphabetical Order by Last Name) 
  Janet Adams STA 
  Robert Guerrero STA 
  Daryl Halls STA 
  Robert Macaulay STA 
  Jessica McCabe STA 
  Liz Niedziela STA 
  Sofia Recalde STA 
  Elizabeth Richards STA 
  Sara Woo STA 
    
 Others Present: (In Alphabetical Order by Last Name) 
  Nick Burton County of Solano 
  Shawn Cunningham City of Vacaville 
  Amanda Dum City of Suisun 
    
    
    

25



2. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
On a motion by Mike Roberts, and a second by Dan Kasperson, the STA TAC approved the 
agenda with the exception to change the following: 

• Agenda Item 5.D, Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for City of 
Dixon was tabled until the next meeting in December 2013. 

• Agenda Item 6.A, Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update will be presented by staff as an 
informational item, but will bring back for action at the next meeting in December 
2013. 

 
3. 

 
OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

4. REPORTS FROM CALTRANS, MTC AND STA STAFF 
None presented. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
On a motion by David Kleinschmidt, and a second by Mike Roberts, the STA TAC approved 
Consent Calendar Items A and F with the exception to table Item D, Compressed Natural 
Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for City of Dixon until the next TAC meeting in December 
2013. 
 

 A. Minutes of the TAC Meeting of September 25, 2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve TAC Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2013. 
 

 B. 2013 Solano County Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the 2013 Solano County 
CMP. 
 

 C. Solano County Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Solano County 
Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan. 
 

 D. Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for City of Dixon 
At the approval of the agenda, the STA TAC approved to table this item until the next 
meeting in December 2013. 
 

 E. Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Non-Urbanized Area Program (FTA 
Section 5311) Recommendation 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the following: 

1. Federal Section 5311 Allocation for 2014 and 2015 as shown in Attachment A; 
and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Dixon for the funding swap of FTA 5311 with TDA funds for the Intercity Bus 
Replacement Contribution for Dixon and County of Solano and the local bus 
replacement for Dixon. 

 

26



 F. 2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the following: 

1. The Intercity Ridership Survey and Analysis (Attachment A); 
2. Develop the FAST and SolTrans Local Ridership Survey and Analysis in 

coordination with these local transit operators;  
3. Dedicate $175,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the 2014 

Ridership Survey and Analysis Study; and 
4. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) and 

enter into a contract for the Solano County Ridership Survey and Analysis for 
an amount not-to-exceed $175,000. 

 
6. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 

 
 A. Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 

Sofia Recalde presented this item as informational only.  At the approval of the 
agenda, the TAC approved to table this item until their next meeting in December 
2013. 
 

 B. Model Update: Conversion to an Activity Based Model (ABM) 
Sofia Recalde reviewed the updating process, mandated once every two years as part 
of the Solano County CMP update.  She noted that STA staff proposes to align the 
Solano-Napa Model with MTC’s Travel Model One in order to maintain consistency 
with the regional model.  She added that the new Solano-Napa Activity-Based Model 
(SNABM) would inherit all models from MTC’s model, including transit and truck 
forecasting and toll road modeling capabilities.  She also indicated that staff is 
proposing to amend Cambridge Systematics current contract to include the conversion 
to SNABM as part of their scope of work.  Lastly, she outlined the timeline for the 
development of the SNABM expected to be completed by June 2014. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to: 

1. Approve the Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the Solano-
Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM) (Attachment A); 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to amend the current contract with 
Cambridge Systematics to include the development of the SNABM; 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Cambridge 
Systematics to develop the SNABM for an amount not to exceed $150,000; 
and 

4. Dedicate $20,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the transit 
element of the Solano Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM). 

 
  On a motion by David Kleinschmidt, and a second by Matt Tuggle, the STA TAC 

approved the recommendation. 
 

27



 C. Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering 
Sara Woo reviewed and outlined the development of the scope of work and budget as 
well as the application process for grant funding in the amount of $50,000 for the 
“Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering”.  She noted that the Vine Trail Coalition has also offered up to $50,000 
to support the pursuit of the document through a cooperative agreement.  She added 
that STA staff has agreed to complete the feasibility study as the project sponsor on 
behalf of the City of Vallejo.  She noted that based on the findings and timing on the 
feasibility study findings, the City of Vallejo has expressed the interest in evaluating 
the opportunity for STA to serve as the Project Sponsor on a phase-by-phase basis.   
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the following: 

1. Approve the Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the Solano 
County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering; 

2. Authorize a grant application to the Bay Trail Project for the amount of 
$50,000 for the Vine Trail Project; 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with ABAG and 
supporting agencies to accept the Bay Trail grant if awarded; 

4. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the Vine 
Trail Coalition for the amount of $50,000 for the Vine Trail Project; 

5. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposals for the 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering; and 

6. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with selected 
consultant to develop the Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility 
Study and Preliminary Engineering for an amount not to exceed $100,000. 
 

  On a motion by Joe Leach, and a second by Dan Kasperson, the STA TAC approved 
the recommendation. 
 

7. ACTION NON FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. None. 
 

8. INFORMATIONAL - DISCUSSION 
 

 A. Solano County Annual Local Streets and Roads Report 
Jessica McCabe commented that STA staff has completed the collection of 5-year 
revenue and expenditure histories for both pavement maintenance and capital projects 
for all Solano local jurisdictions, which is included as part of the appendices section of 
the draft report.  She also noted that comments on the draft Report are being sought by 
December 9, 2013 and once the draft is reviewed and feedback is provided, STA staff 
anticipates completing a final version of the report for TAC review by January 2014.   
 

28



 B. Public-Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study Update 
Jessica McCabe reviewed the next steps in the development of the P3 Feasibility 
Study.  She noted that next steps include KPMG, the Study’s Consultant, submitting a 
Final Suitability and Screening Report, a draft Market Sounding Report, and meeting 
with individual City Managers in November or December to present results of these 
reports.  She added that the finding of this Feasibility Study and Implementation Plan 
will be presented to the STA Board for review and discussion at the December 11, 
2013 Board meeting. 
 

 C. I-80 Ramp Metering Implementation 
Robert Guerrero provided an update to the implementation and logistics for activation 
of the I-80 Ramp Metering in Solano County.  He noted that Caltrans anticipates Phase 
1 activation to occur in February 2014.  He also commented that Caltrans discussed 
their public outreach plan at the November 14th SoHip meeting and will present the 
outreach process to the STA Board at their meeting on December 11, 2013.  He 
indicated that they initially discussed providing a joint press release and utilizing social 
media to inform the public as well.   
 

 D. Regional Transportation Impact Fee Update  
Robert Guerrero reported that the County Board of Supervisors is anticipated to review 
and take action on this item at their meeting on December 3rd, 2013.  He commented 
that STA staff will provide an update and further details at a later date. 
 

 E. Active Transportation Program (ATP) Overview 
Sara Woo reported that at present, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) is 
leading the effort to define the program guidelines through a series of working group 
meetings open to the public.  She outlined the schedule for development of the ATP 
programming and allocations process as well as its guidelines.  She added that the STA 
will be responsible for implementation of the program at the local countywide level 
and STA staff has been an active participant at the ATP working group meetings. 
 

 F. Mobility Management:  Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA) 
Designation 
Elizabeth Richards reviewed the option for the STA to formalize its coordination with 
the County of Solano Department of health and Social Services and Department of 
Resources Management for Mobility Management purposes and seek designation from 
MTC as the CTSA for Solano County.  She noted that seeking designation as a CTSA 
by the STA would be an expeditious process for assigning CTSA status in Solano and 
being prepared for potential regional funding opportunities that may be available as 
MTC prepares to further develop its regional program. 
 

 NO DISCUSSION 
 

 G. Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program Fourth 
Quarter Report 
 

 H. Mobility Management Program Update 
 

29



 I. Summary of Other Funding Opportunities 
 

 J. STA Board Meeting Highlights of October 9, 2013 
 

 K. Draft Meeting Minutes of STA Advisory Committees 
 

 L. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule  
for Calendar Year 2014 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m. 
 

 The next regular meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee is scheduled at 1:30 p.m. on 
Wednesday, December 20, 2013. 
 

 

30



Agenda Item 9.C 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE: November 8, 2013 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 Fourth Quarter Budget Report 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) staff regularly provides the STA Board with budget 
updates on a quarterly basis.  In June 2013, the STA Board was presented with the Third 
Quarter Budget Report for FY 2012-13.  Concurrently, in June 2013, the STA Board adopted 
the FY 2012-13 Final Year Budget Revision. 
 
Discussion: 
The STA revenue and expenditure activity (Attachment A) for the FY 2012-13 Fourth Quarter 
reflects the overall STA program administration and operations expenditure at 77% of the 
budget with total revenue received at 77% of budget projections. 
 
Revenues: 
Revenues for the Fourth Quarter of the fiscal year primarily consist of the year to date 
expenditure reimbursements.  As most STA programs are funded with grants on a 
reimbursement basis, the reimbursements from fund sources for the Fourth Quarter were billed 
and received after the quarter ending June 30, 2013.  As of June 30, 2013, the total revenue 
billed and received is $42.7 million (77%).  The revenue budget highlights are as follows: 
 

1. The Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program received the total fund amount of 
$362,990 for the fiscal year, which includes the amount of $10,067 for Administration.  
Expenditure reimbursement in the amount of $369,797 were made to member agencies, 
therefore, the total program carry over funds into FY 2013-14 is now in the amount of 
$180,032 which includes prior year carryover funds. 

2. Regional Measure (RM) 2 funds in the amount of $32.78 million were received for five 
different RM 2 projects:  I-80/I-680/ SR 12 Interchange Project, I-80 Eastbound Truck 
Scales Relocation Project, I-80 Express Lanes, I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) 
Lanes Project follow-up, and the North Connector East Project Closeout and Mitigation.   

3. The State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) allocation for FY 2012-13 in the amount of 
$630,976 will be returned to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and 
will be reclaimed and reprogrammed in FY 2013-14 for the continuation of the various 
STA program and project studies, such as the Public Private Partnership (3) study and 
the Mobility Management Program.   

 
Other revenue received versus budget variances are due to program and project studies that have 
accelerated their delivery of project schedules, such as the Regional Transportation Impact Fee 
(RTIF) Study funded by the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Planning, 
Programming and Monitoring (PPM) and the different projects funded by the RM 2 funds.   

31



Expenditures: 
STA’s projects and programs are underway and expenditures are within budget projections.  

1. STA’s Operation and Administration is at $1,459,088 (89%) of budget.  The STA 
Operation Management and Administration budget expenditures for the Fourth Quarter 
are within budget projections.  The Expenditure Plan Budget is reprogrammed in the 
next fiscal year. 

 
The contribution to the Contingency Reserve Account as of June 30, 2013 is $1,028,458, 
which includes the $200,000 Self Insurance Reserve (SIR).  The Reserve Account is 
projected to be fully met by FY 2013-14. 

 
2. Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI is at $2,201,850 (79%) of budget.  The Transit 

and Rideshare Services and the SNCI Program activities in FY 2012-13 are within the 
budget expenditure projections.  Unexpended funds for activities such as the Emergency 
Ride Home (ERH) Program, Lifeline Program, Solano Senior & People with Disabilities 
Plan Implementation, Mobility Management Program, and Transit Consolidation 
Implementation are carried over into the next fiscal year for the continuation of program 
activities.   

 
The Safe Route to School (SR2S) Program is within the projected budget and is well in 
its program phase.  Unexpended funds are carried over into the next fiscal year for the 
continuation of the program activities.  The Walking School Bus Program is ongoing 
with the two part-time program coordinators. 

 
3. Project Development is at $37,680,106 (76%) of budget.  The various RM 2 projects, 

environmental studies and construction projects are ongoing and are reflective of the 
budget expenditures.  The I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project and the North 
Connector Project in its final construction phase; the SR 12 Jameson Canyon Project are 
in construction phase; the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange and the Jepson Parkway Project 
in its right of way activities and initial construction phase.  Funding for these projects are 
on a reimbursement basis, unexpended funds will be carried over to FY 2013-14 for the 
continuation of the projects and will be reflected in a subsequent budget revision. 

 
4. Strategic Planning is at $982,994 (79%) of budget.  The traffic model maintenance is 

being updated.  The Solano County Priority Development Area (PDA) Program, the 
Jepson Parkway Concept Plan Update, the Climate Action Plan, the Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan (CTP) Follow Up, and the Rail Facilities Plan are ongoing with any 
unexpended allocated funds for these projects being carried over to FY 2013-14 for the 
continuation of the projects and will be reflected in a subsequent budget revision. 

 
In summary, the revenue and expenditure for the fiscal year is consistent with the FY 2012-13 
budgets.  In addition, the projects such as the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange and the Jepson 
Parkway Project are engaged in right of way activities and initial construction phase.  The I-80 
Express Lanes Project and the Dixon West B Street Overcrossing Project are ongoing and have 
accelerated their delivery of project schedules.  Unexpended funds will be carried over to the 
next fiscal year and will be reflected in subsequent budget revisions. 
 
The total revenue of $42.71 million and expenditure of $42.32 million for the year ending June 
30, 2013 is consistent with the projected FY 2012-13 budgets.   

32



Public Agency Retirement System (PARS) Funds: 
STA has a Defined Benefit Plan with PARS effective July 1, 2011.  In conformance with the 
new Pension Reform Provisions, The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 
2013 (PEPRA), STA staff hired after January 1, 2013 will no longer be eligible to participate as 
a member of the STA’s PARS plan.  As of June 30, 2013, the plan contribution balance is 
$202,613 with a plan retiree distribution for the fiscal year in the amount of $1,379.  The plan 
has an anticipated investment return of 7%.  As of June 30, 2013; the plan had an investment 
return of 5.75%.  The STA’s PARS plan has fifteen (15) active participants and one (1) retiree.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The Fourth Quarter Budget for FY 2012-13 is within budget projections for the Revenue 
received of $42.71 million (77%) and Expenditures of $42.32 million (77%). 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachments: 

A. STA FY 2012-13 Fourth Quarter Budget Report 

33



Fourth Quarter Budget Report 
FY 2012-13

July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013
December 11, 2013

STA Fund FY 12-13  
Budget

Actual 
Received % Operations & Administration FY 12-13  

Budget
Actual Spent 

YTD %

MembersContribution/Gas Tax (Reserve Accounts) 108,000             108,000             100%
Members Contribution/Gas Tax 177,776             177,776             100%

Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 403,064             403,064             100% STA Board of Directors/Administration 50,000               49,007               98%
TDA Art. 3 15,000               -                         0% Expenditure Plan -                         -                         0%

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) 1,405,492          1,084,380          77% Contributions to STA Reserve Account 108,000             -                         0%
One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)/Surface Transportation Program (STP) 890,754             750,046             84% Subtotal $1,645,676 $1,459,099 89%

Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI
MTC Grant 140,000             140,000             100%

Regional Measure (RM) 2 - Transit 260,000             260,000             100%
Federal Earmark 30,514               25,671               84% Employer/Van Pool Outreach 16,200               13,818               85%

RM 2 - North Connector - Design 6,590                 4,771                 72% SNCI General Marketing 66,500               62,467               94%
RM 2 -  I-80 Express Lanes 40,971               41,310               101% Commute Challege 30,000               28,596               95%

RM 2 -  I-80 HOV Lanes/SOHIP 15,028               15,962               106% Bike to Work Campaign/Incentives 20,000               19,484               97%
RM 2 - I-80 Interchange Project 53,749               58,341               109% Bike Links 5,000                 5,000                 100%

RM 2 - I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 16,678               21,370               128% Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 5,000                 3,205                 64%
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) 260,555             215,565             83% Rideshare Services -  Napa 27,004               25,982               96%

TFCA - NCTPA 27,004               25,921               96%
TFCA Regional Grant 50,439               50,439               100%

Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) 17,746               43,947               248% Transit Management Administration 105,232             82,692               79%
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 616,257             457,621             74% Transit CorridorStudy (SRTP) 380,000             356,773             94%

Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) 155,986             164,873             106% Lifeline Program 16,000               4,517                 28%
Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) 240,000             240,000             100% Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) 45,000               20,086               45%

JARC 250,000             67,081               27%
Solano County-Strategic Growth Council (SGC) Grant 52,301               -                         0%
Abondoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program/DMV 10,000               10,068               101% SolTrans Marketing 48,635               41,440               85%

Local Funds - Cities/County 98,600               132,040             134%
Sponsors 267,200             291,581             109%

Interest 8,455                 0% Mobility Management Plan/Program 500,000             246,902             49%
Subtotal  $        5,768,168  $        5,026,738 87% Transit Consolidation/Soltrans Implementation 60,000               9,562                 16%

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)               234,453               301,475 129%
Interest                      686 0%

Subtotal  $           234,453  $           302,161 129%

Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) 440,000             368,982             84%
Interest 785                    0%

Subtotal  $           440,000  $           369,767 84%

Local Streets & Roads Annual Report 12,250               10,745               88%
Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 700,000             447,102             64%

Interest 2,491                 0%
Subtotal  $           700,000  $           449,593 64% Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS) 12,000               5,487                 46%

Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study 175,000             156,605             89%
State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 2,844,215 2,418,454 85%

Federal Earmark 113,109             93,292               82% Jepson Parkway 2,997,324          2,596,469          87%
County of Solano 40,000 92,650               232%

Interest 490 0% SR12/Jameson Canyon Project 1,780,280          1,184,898          67%
Subtotal 2,997,324$        2,604,886$        87%

RM 2 Funds 10,325,122 12,136,504 118%
Interest 19 0% North Connector-East  Project Closeout/Mitigation 1,500,000          1,208,031          81%

Subtotal  $      10,325,122  $      12,136,523 118%

STIP/TCRP 1,780,280          1,184,898          67%
Interest 384                    0%

Subtotal  $        1,780,280  $        1,185,282 67% I-80 Express Lanes Project 3,107,017          3,000,558          97%

PA/ED Design RM-2 50,000               31,925               64% Redwood Parkway Drive Improvement Project 114,496             119,933             105%
Interest (22)                     0%

Subtotal 50,000$             31,903$             64% SR 12 Bridge Realignment/Economic Analysis Study 6,000                 5,994                 100%

Dixon B Street Undercrossing 700,000             447,117             64%
Preliminary Engineering/Right of Way - RM-2 Funds 1,500,000          1,206,993          80%

Interest 3,498                 0%
Subtotal  $        1,500,000  $        1,210,491 81% Subtotal $49,423,988 37,680,106        76%

RM 2 Funds          28,089,519          16,262,269 58%
Interest                   2,990 0%

Subtotal  $      28,089,519  $      16,265,259 58%

Events 9,700                 8,044                 83%
RM 2 Funds 3,107,017          3,000,558          97% Model Development/Maintenance 24,000               15,308               64%

Interest 584                    0% Solano County PDA Program 143,315             101,126             71%
Subtotal  $        3,107,017  $        3,001,142 97% Jepson Parkway TLC Plan Update 114,152             98,272               86%

Climate Action Plan 301,801             226,366             75%

Members Contribution/Gas Tax                   6,000                   6,894 115% Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Follow Up 62,076               42,618               69%
Subtotal 6,000$               6,894$               115% Water Transportation Plan 50,000               1,208                 0%

Alternative Fuel Plan Implementation 94,156               93,593               99%
Federal Earmark 97,904               95,946               98% Rail Facilities Plan 50,000               3,907                 7.8%

Local Match -  City of Vallejo 11,697               19,189               164%
STIP/PPM - STA 4,895                 4,895                 100%

Interest (206)                   0%
Subtotal  $           114,496  $           119,824 105% Subtotal $1,245,904 982,994             79%

TOTAL ALL REVENUE 55,112,379$   42,710,463$   77% TOTAL ALL EXPENDITURES $55,112,379 $42,324,049 77%

98%

 SR 12 Bridge Realignment/Economic Analysis Study

North Connector East Project Closeout/Mitigation

I-80 Express Lanes Project

 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

Planning Management/Administration 162,308             

47,309               129%

58%

TFCA Programs

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

100%

118%12,148,089        

16,269,093        

234,453             230,244             

162,251             

79%

95%

25,000               

2,201,850          

EXPENDITURES

Subtotal

Transit Sustainabiltiy Study 60,000               51,059               

STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM) 158,464             

REVENUES

144%228,456             

Operations Management 1,487,676          1,410,092          

10,325,122        

$2,796,811

440,000             

Redwood Parkway Drive/Fairgrounds Improvement Project

DMV Abandoned Vehicle Abatement  (AVA) Program

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

Jameson Canyon Project

28,089,519        

Regional Impact Fee (Feasibility Study/AB 1600) 36,739               

Dixon B Street Undercrossing

Jepson Parkway Project

I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project/SOHIP

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

TFCA Program

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program

Solano Senior & People with Disabilities Plan Implementation/Committee

 Strategic Planning

78,086               100%

369,767             84%

78,241               Project Management/Administration

85%

Project Development

396,857             101%

Solano Express Marketing 335,000             303,683             91%

Safe Route to School (SR2S)Program 516,204             657,713             78%

I-80/HOV Lanes Project/SOHIP 50,000               31,925               64%

13,523               54%

Transit/SNCI Management/Administration 394,527             

34

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Agenda Item 9.D 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE: November 25, 2013 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 First Quarter Budget Report 
 
 
Background: 
In July 2013, the STA Board approved the Budget Revision for FY 2013-14.  The budget 
revision included the anticipated amount of funds carryover from FY 2012-13 for the 
continuation and completion of multi-year contracts, changes in project activities, and Project 
Studies that have been approved by the STA Board.  A mid-year adjustment to the fiscal year 
2013-14 budget is scheduled to occur in January 2014. 
 
Discussion: 
The STA revenue and expenditure activity (Attachment A) for the FY 2013-14 First Quarter 
reflects the overall STA program administration and operations expenditure at $1,306,827 (2%) 
of the budget with total revenue received at $2,159,976 (3%) of budget projections. 
 
Revenues: 
Revenues received during the First Quarter of the fiscal year primarily consist of quarterly or 
annual advances.  As most STA programs are funded with grants on a reimbursement basis, the 
reimbursements from fund sources for the First Quarter were billed and received after the 
quarter ending September 30, 2013.  The revenue budget highlights are as follows: 
 

1. The Members Contributions for FY 2013-14 of $168,680 have been received from all 
member agencies.  The amount of $104,796 from the Members Contributions deferred 
fund is recoded as revenue as approved in the FY 2013-14 Budget. 

2. The Transportation Development (TDA) Art. 4/8 fund of $448,531 and the OneBayArea 
Grant (OBAG)/State Surface Transportation (STP) fund of $155,854 was received for 
transportation planning and administration. 

3. The Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) fund of $68,627 and the Eastern Solano 
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) fund of $47,215 was received for the 
Transit and Rideshare Services/Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) program 
administration. 

4. Regional Measure (RM) 2 funds in the amount of $496,839 were received for the 
different RM 2 projects: I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project, I-80 
Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project, and the 1-80 Express Lanes. 

5. The ST 12/Jameson Canyon Project has received funds of $250,000 for the continuation 
of the project. 

6. The Dixon B Street Underscrossing Project has received the amount of $87,622 from the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds.  The project also has advanced funding 
carried over from the prior year in the amount of $976,022, which is being used as the 
matching fund for the construction phase of the project. 

35



Expenditures: 
STA’s projects and programs are underway and expenditures are within budget projections.  

1. STA’s Management and Operations is within the First Quarter budget projection at 20% 
of budget. 

2. Transit and Rideshare Services/Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) is at 10% of 
budget. 

3. Project Development is at 1% of budget. 
4. Strategic Planning is at 3% of budget. 

 
Project consultant billings for the different projects such as the: I-80/I-680/State Route (ST) 12 

Interchange Project, I-80 Eastbound Truck Scales Relocation Project, the SR 12/Jameson 
Canyon Project, the Jepson Parkway Project, and the Dixon B Street Undercrossing were 
submitted after the end the Quarter.  Therefore, the forecasted expenditures for these 
projects for actual work completed are no reflective of the budget ratio for the first quarter. 

 
The total revenue and expenditure for the First Quarter is consistent with the projected FY 2013-
14 budgets. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The First Quarter Budget for FY 2013-14 is within budget projections for the Revenue received 
of $2.2 million (3%) and Expenditures of $1.3 million (2%). 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachments: 

A. STA FY 2013-14 First Quarter Budget Report 
B. 2014 Budget and Fiscal Reporting Calendar 

36



First Quarter Budget Report
FY 2013-14

July 1, 2013- September 30, 2013

STA Fund FY 13-14  
Budget

Actual 
Received % Operations & Administration FY 13-14  

Budget
Actual Spent 

YTD %

MembersContribution/Gas Tax (Reserve Accounts) 108,000             108,000             100%
Members Contribution/Gas Tax 165,476             165,476             100%

Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 463,884             448,531             97% STA Board of Directors/Administration 50,000               4,928                 10%
TDA Art. 3 87,237               0% Expenditure Plan 100,000             -                         0%

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) 1,633,824          0% Contributions to STA Reserve Account 108,000             -                         0%
One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)/Surface Transportation Program (STP) 784,600             155,854             20% Subtotal $1,786,713 $356,707 20%

OBAG Safe Routes to School (SR2S) 136,354             32,161               24%
OBAG SNCI 26,491               0%

MTC Grant 1,581,200          0%
Federal Earmark 55,815               10,001               18% Employer/Van Pool Outreach 16,200               1,930                 12%

Regional Measure (RM) 2 - North Connector - Design 3,568                 0% SNCI General Marketing 53,500               3,068                 6%
RM 2 -  I-80 Express Lanes 47,141               17,082               36% Commute Challege 30,000               0%

RM 2 -  I-80 HOV Lanes/SOHIP 27,612               0% Bike to Work Campaign/Incentives 20,000               677                    3%
RM 2 - I-80 Interchange Project 35,249               14,896               42% Bike Links 15,000               0%

RM 2 - I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation 5,946                 5,330                 90%
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) 250,629             26,608               11%

TFCA - NCTPA 20,000               1,041 5% Rideshare Services -  Napa 20,000               1,041                 5%
Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) 30,000               6,054                 20%

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 506,125             0%
Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) 147,879             47,215               32% Transit Management Administration 133,000             14,634               11%

Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) 240,000             68,627               29% Transit CorridorStudy/SRTP Coordination/Implementation 150,000             11,760               8%
Strategic Growth Council Grant (SGCG) 222,848             0% Lifeline Program 17,000               3,354                 20%

JARC 174,481             0%
Abondoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program/DMV 10,000               0%

Local Funds - Cities/County 128,600             37,700               29% Solano Express Marketing 150,000             1,397                 1%
Sponsors 18,000               9,745                 54% Solano Senior & People with Disabilities Committee 30,000               3,291                 11%

Interest 0% Mobility Management Plan/Program 406,342             22,688               6%
Subtotal  $        7,094,403  $        1,192,974 17% Transit Consolidation/Implementation 150,000             10,023             7%

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)               303,538               158,272 52%
Interest 0%

Subtotal  $           303,538  $           158,272 52%

Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) 490,000             0%
Interest 0%

Subtotal  $           490,000  $                      - 0%

Local Streets & Roads Annual Report 12,250               3,198                 26%
STIP 2,600,000          0%

TDA Art 4/8 400,000             87,662               22%
OBAG City of Dixon 1,250,000          0%

City of Dixon 976,022             0%
Interest 0% Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study 159,630             1,990                 1%

Subtotal  $        5,226,022  $             87,662 2% Alternative Fuel Plan Implementation 100,000             5,654                 6%

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 4,400,000 11,537 0.3% Jepson Parkway TLC Plan Update 10,000               0%
Federal Earmark

County of Solano 100,000 0%
Interest 0%

Subtotal 4,500,000$        11,537$             0.3%

RM 2 Funds 15,111,920 13,553 0.1%
Interest 0%

Subtotal  $      15,111,920  $             13,553 0% I-80/HOV Lanes Project/SOHIP 75,291               8,462                 11%

STIP/TCRP 250,000             250,000             100%
Interest 0%

Subtotal  $           250,000  $           250,000 100%

Dixon B Street Undercrossing 5,226,022          87,662               2%
PA/ED Design RM-2 75,291               0%

Interest 0%
Subtotal 75,291$             -$                       0%

Preliminary Engineering/Right of Way - RM-2 Funds 1,493,972          0.0%
County of Solano 0%

Interest 0%
Subtotal  $        1,493,972  $                      - 0%

RM 2 Funds          28,052,679               417,579 1% Events 12,000 0%
Interest 0% Model Development/Maintenance 74,000 0%

Subtotal  $      28,052,679  $           417,579 1% Solano County PDA Program 1,590,230          18,594 1%

Climate Action Plan 222,848             8,019 4%
RM 2 Funds 3,119,573          28,399               1% Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Follow Up 46,005               6,156 13%

Interest 0% Rail Facilities Plan 45,000               4,179 9%
Subtotal  $        3,119,573  $             28,399 1% Priority Conservation Area (PCA) 84,725               0%

TFCA Programs 303,538             3,195 1%

STIP/PPM 10,000               0%

Subtotal  $             10,000  $                      - 0% Subtotal 2,566,640          85,205               3%

TOTAL, ALL REVENUE 65,727,398$   2,159,976$     3% TOTAL, ALL EXPENDITURES $65,727,398 $1,306,824 2%

Transit/SNCI Management/Administration 433,299             114,684             26%

1%

28,052,679        417,579             1%

8%

Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS)

43,018               3,264                 

200,000             

250,227             

24%

250,000             7,560                 3%

North Connector-East  Project Closeout/Mitigation

8,007                 1,212                 15%

Suisum AMTRAK Rehabilitation

I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project/SOHIP
490,000             

2,615                 0.2%

SR12/Jameson Canyon Project

DMV Abandoned Vehicle Abatement  (AVA) Program

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

Jameson Canyon Project I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

North Connector East Project Closeout/Mitigation

I-80 Express Lanes Project

 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

Subtotal $58,930,538 $614,685

 Strategic Planning

Planning Management/Administration 45,062188,294             

1%

Redwood Parkway Drive Improvement Project 10,000               -                         0%

28,399               

10%

23%

Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI

EXPENDITURES

Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) 50,000               4,985                 10%

Safe Route to School (SR2S)Program 614,166             

December 11, 2013

STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM) 183,444             

REVENUES

21%38,653               

Operations Management 1,528,713          351,779             

Redwood Parkway Drive/Fairgrounds Improvement Project

68,176               22,000               32%

150,000             15,568               

40,926               7%

Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 5,000                 

I-80 Express Lanes Project 3,119,573          

Subtotal

ADA in Person Eligibility Program

4,500,000          

Regional Impact Fee (Feasibility Study/AB 1600)

$2,443,507

Dixon B Street Undercrossing

Jepson Parkway Project

TFCA Program

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program

Project Management/Administration

Project Development

10%

201                    4%

Jepson Parkway 0.3%

1,493,972          

0%

0%

15,111,920        13,553               0.1%

11,537               

37

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Attachment B

STA Board Meeting Schedule:

FY 2012-13 Fourth Quarter Budget Report

FY 2013-14 First Quarter Budget Report

FY 2012-13 AVA Fourth Quarter AVA Program Activity Report 

FY 2012-13 Annual Audit

STA Employee 2014 Benefit Summary Update

FY 2013-14 Mid-Year Budget Revision

Five Year Revenue & Expenditure Budget Revised Projections

FY 2013-14 AVA First Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2013-14 Second Quarter Budget Report

Local Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Members Contribution for FY 2014-15

MARCH                                     
2014 FY 2013-14 AVA Second Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2013-14 Third Quarter Budget Report

FY 2013-14 AVA Third Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2013-14 Final Budget Revision

FY 2013-14 Fourth Quarter Budget Report

FY 2014-15 Budget Revision and FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget Adoption

FY 2014-15 Provisionary Indirect Cost Rate Application

FY 2014-15 First Quarter Budget Report

FY 2013-14 AVA Fourth Quarter Program Activity Report 

OCTOBER                           
2014

APRIL                                           
2014

FY 2013-14 Budget and Fiscal Reporting Calendar

DECEMBER                             
2013

JANUARY                                    
2014

FEBRUARY                                         
2014

JUNE                                              
2014

JULY                                                 
2014

38



Agenda Item 9.E 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  November 22, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: STA Employee 2014 Benefit Summary Update 
 
 
Background: 
In October 2013, the STA Board approved the STA Human Resources Policies and 
Procedure Handbook updates.  The STA’s Benefit Summary is annually updated to 
reflect changes to the health benefit premium effective the first of January, the holiday 
schedule for the new calendar year, and other employee benefit changes.   
 
Discussion: 
The approved budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14, which includes the STA’s 
Employees Health Benefit Cost, reflected an anticipated premium rate increase of 10%.  
The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) provides and 
administers STA’s health benefit program at low rates.  The Kaiser Premium Rate is used 
as a benchmark; should an employee choose a health care provider with a higher 
premium rate, the employee is responsible for the premium cost above the benchmark.  
Effective January 1, 2014, the Kaiser Premium Rate will increase by 11.08%.  This rate 
change will result in a budget increase of $1,587 for the Health Benefits Budget for FY 
2013-14 (Attachment A). 
 
The City of Vacaville provides and administers the self insured Dental, Vision, Life 
Insurance, and the Long Term Disability (LTD) insurance plans.  No rates and plans 
changes are made to these benefits. 
 
STA staff is covered under the CalPERS State-wide pool of 2% @55 Miscellaneous 
Retirement Plan.  The STA’s Employer Contribution Rate for FY 2013-14 is 11.497%.  
The STA pays seven percent (7%) of CalPERS Employee Contribution Rate to CalPERS, 
making the STA’s total CalPERS contribution of 18.497%.   
 
As part of the State-wide Miscellaneous Retirement Plan, the STA staff has additional 
retirement benefits such as:  the Unused Sick Leave Credit, Military Buyback, Public 
Service Layoff, Pre-Retirement Service Option 2, and the Military Service Credit for 
Retired Persons. 
 
Under the new Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), new hires fall 
under two categories: “Classic” and “New”.  New hires in the category of “Classic” 
would be entitled to be covered under CalPERS retirement plan and receive benefits 
under the 2% @ 55 retirement benefit formula.  Under the category of “New”, the new 
hire would be covered under the 2% @ 62 retirement benefit formula.   

39



Under the new retirement reform, no new hires are eligible to participate in the STA’s 
Public Agencies Retirement System (PARS) plan and this plan is closed to new members.  
STA staff is evaluating options for a defined contribution for new hires that would be 
considered by the STA Board at a future date. 
 
In addition, STA Employees have the option to enroll in the 457 Deferred Compensation 
with Nationwide Retirement Solutions, which is a 100% Employee deduction and no 
share of cost from STA  
 
The holiday schedule is updated annually on a calendar basis.  This calendar provides for 
holidays when the STA office will be closed for business.  No change is made on the 
number of paid holiday benefits (Attachment B). 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The Kaiser Health Premium rate for 2014 resulted in a budget increase of $1,587 for FY 
2013-14 Budget for Health Benefit. 
  
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Employee Benefit Summary January 2014 
B. Holiday Schedule 2014 

40



 

 
 

Employee Benefit Summary 
January 1, 2014 

 
 

TERM 
This summary shall remain in effect until amended by STA Board action or mandated by law. 

 
SALARY 
Salary schedule – Attachment A. 

 
AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT (Policy #102) 
Employees shall be considered as at-will employees and may be terminated at anytime by the Executive Director. 

 
WORKWEEK (Policy #210/211) 
The workweek shall be forty (40) hours per week for all employees. Overtime will be granted at time and one-half 
for all hours worked in excess of the normal workweek. In accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), 

 
Compensatory time may be granted in lieu of pay at the employee’s request and the Executive director’s approval. 
The Executive Director established a flexible work schedules (9-day Alternate Work Schedule) in order to meet the 
needs of the agency and the employee’s job responsibilities. An employee may elect, by so stating, in writing, on 
the appropriate time card, a preference to earn compensatory overtime in lieu of overtime pay. An employee may 
accumulate up to a maximum of sixty (60) hours of compensatory time. Those hours reflect forty (40) hours of 
straight time worked. An employee who has reached the maximum balance shall be paid overtime until such time 
that the accrual is below the stated ceiling. A supervisor or the Executive Director must approve overtime in 
advance. 

 
RETIREMENT (Policy #301) 
In conformance with the new pension reform provisions, The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 
2013 (PEPRA), the following are STA’s retirement benefit plan: 

 
Tier 1 Benefits - Employees hired on or before 12/31/12 

PERS Retirement Plan 
Employees are covered under the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) in accordance with 
benefits under the Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). STA shall pay seven percent 
(7%) of PERS Employee Contribution Rate to PERS. General benefits include the following: 

 

Section 21354 – 2% @ Age 55 Full Formula for Local Miscellaneous Members 
Section 20037 – Three-Year Final Compensation 
Section 21329 – 2% Annual Cost of Living Adjustment 
Section 21620 – $500 Retired Death Benefit 
Section 21573 – Third Level of 1959 Survivor Benefits 
Section 20055 – Prior Service Credit 
Section 21551 – Death Benefit Continuation 
Section 20965 – Credit for Unused Sick Leave 
Section 21024 – Military Service Credit as Public Service 
Section 21022 – Public Service Credit for Periods of Layoff 
Section 21548 – Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2 Death Benefit 

 

The employee is responsible for paying the $2.00 contribution for the 1959 Survivor Benefits. 
 

PARS SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN 
Effective July 1, 2011, STA Employees are also covered under a supplemental retirement plan under the 
Public Agency Retirement System. The employee shall contribute a total of 2.0% of salary and STA shall 
contribute the employer share to be determined by actuarial. Employees meeting eligibility requirements 
shall receive benefits equivalent to 2.7% @ Age 55 when combined with PERS. See Plan Summary for 
details. 

41

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Tier 2 Benefits - Employees hired on or after 1/1/13 and deemed “CLASSIC” member 
(Prior PERS/reciprocal employment with less than a six (6) month break in service) 

PERS RETIREMENT PLAN 
Employees are covered under the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) in accordance with 
benefits under the Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) shall pay seven percent (7%) of PERS Employee Contribution Rate to PERS. General 
benefits may include the following: 

 

Section 21354 – 2% @ Age 55 Full Formula for Local Miscellaneous Members 
Section 20037 – Three-Year Final Compensation 
Section 21329 – 2% Annual Cost of Living Adjustment 
Section 21620 – $500 Retired Death Benefit 
Section 21573 – Third Level of 1959 Survivor Benefits 
Section 20055 – Prior Service Credit 
Section 21551 – Death Benefit Continuation 
Section 20965 – Credit for Unused Sick Leave 
Section 21024 – Military Service Credit as Public Service 
Section 21022 – Public Service Credit for Periods of Layoff 
Section 21548 – Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2 Death Benefit 

 
The employee is responsible for paying the $2.00 contribution for the 1959 Survivor Benefits. 

 
Tier 3 Benefits - Employees hired on or after 1/1/13 and deemed “NEW” member 
(No Prior PERS/reciprocal employment or more than a six (6) month break in service) 

PERS RETIREMENT PLAN 
Employees are covered under the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) in accordance with 
benefits under the Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). Under Section 7522.30, 
Solano Transportation Authority (STA) and the employee shall pay 6.25% each as the PERS Contribution 
Rate to PERS for FY 2013-14. General benefits may include the following: 

Section 7522.20 – 2% @ Age 62 Benefit Formula for Non-Safety Members 
Section 7522.32 – Three-Year Final Compensation 
Section 7522.30 – Equal Sharing of Normal Cost 
Section 21329 – 2% Annual Cost of Living Adjustment 
Section 21620 – $500 Retired Death Benefit 
Section 21573 – Third Level of 1959 Survivor Benefits 
Section 20055 – Prior Service Credit 
Section 21551 – Death Benefit Continuation 
Section 21027 – Military Service Credit for Retired Persons 
Section 20965 – Credit for Unused Sick Leave 
Section 21024 – Military Service Credit as Public Service 
Section 21022 – Public Service Credit for Periods of Layoff 
Section 21548 – Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2 Death Benefit 

 
The employee is responsible for paying the $2.00 contribution for the 1959 Survivor Benefits. 

 
All Employees 

457 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM (Optional) 
STA Employees have the option to enroll in the 457 Deferred Compensation Plan with Nationwide 
Retirement Solutions. This deferred compensation plan is 100% Employee contributions. 

 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
Effective July 1, 1997, fulltime employees will no longer be covered under Social Security; however the 
Medicare portion will remain in effect. The employer and the employee shall contribute the mandatory 
1.45% each. 

 
HEALTH & WELFARE (Policy #302) 
STA will contribute an amount for employee plus family towards health, dental, vision, life and long term disability 
insurance. Employees are responsible for amounts that exceed the maximum amount. Employees who can provide 
proof of other insurance coverage may elect to receive cash in lieu of the STA’s health and dental coverage. 

42



Employees electing to decline the health coverage will receive $350 per month and for dental coverage $50 per 
month, for a maximum total of $400 per month, if both Health and Dental benefit are declined. 

 
HEALTH INSURANCE 

STA shall contribute an amount equal to the PERS Kaiser Bay Area rate. Premium contributions shall be 
based on the number of eligible dependents enrolled on the employee’s plan. Beginning January 1, 2013, 
the health plan benefit is offered to dependent children up to age 26. 

The amounts as of 01/01/13 are as follows: 
Employee Only $   742.72 
Employee Plus One Dependent $1,485.44 
Employee Plus Two or More $1,931.07 

 

DENTAL INSURANCE 
STA shall contribute an amount based on the employee’s number of eligible dependents. The amounts as of 
01/01/13 are as follows: 

Employee Only $  53.57 
Employee Plus One Dependent $  91.07 
Employee Plus Two or More $139.29 

 

VISION INSURANCE 
STA shall contribute an amount based on the employee’s number of eligible dependents. The amounts as of 
01/01/13 are as follows: 

Employee Only $  5.39 
Employee Plus One Dependent $10.78 
Employee Plus Two or More $17.35 

 
LIFE INSURANCE 

STA provides a monthly premium of $7.50 sufficient to maintain $50,000 basic life insurance. 
 

LONG TERM DISABILITY 
STA will provide an LTD plan to cover all employees. The plan includes a 30 day waiting period, and 
pays 60% of the first $3,333 of earnings, 5 year + ADEA maximum benefit period. 

 
HOLIDAYS (Policy #304) 
Paid holidays include the following: 

New Year’s Day Veteran’s Day Martin Luther 
King’s Birthday Thanksgiving Day 
President’s Birthday Day after Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day 4 Hours Christmas Eve* 
Independence Day Christmas Day 
Labor Day 4 Hours New Year’s Eve* 
Columbus Day 

 
Three floating holidays shall be credited July 1st of each year to the employee’s vacation balance. *If Christmas Eve 
and New Year’s Eve falls on a Friday, Saturday or Sunday an additional eight (8) hours of vacation shall be credited 
on July 1st. Employees hired between July and December shall receive credit for three floating holidays and 
Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve, if applicable. Employees hired between January and June shall receive credit 
for two floating holiday. 

 
VACATION (Policy #305) 
Vacation is accrued monthly in accordance to the following schedule for full-time employees: 

 
 

Years of Service 

 

Annual 
Entitlement 

 

Annual Vacation 
Hours 

 

Maximum 
Balance 

 

0 through 5 years 10 working days 80 320 
5+ through 10 15 working days 120 320 

11 years 16 working days 128 320 
12 years 17 working days 136 320 
13 years 18 working days 144 320 
14 years 19 working days 152 320 
15+ years 20 working days 160 320 

43



SICK LEAVE (Policy #306) 
Regular full-time employees accrue 12 days sick leave per year. Sick leave may be accrued up to ninety (90) working days, or 720 
hours. The minimum sick leave taken at any one time shall not be less than one (1) hour. Employees may be required to provide a 
doctor’s note for absences more than three days in length, more than five days in any 30-day period, or on a day adjacent to a holiday 
weekend. 

 
SICK LEAVE BUYBACK (Policy #306) 
Upon Service retirement –25% may be paid to the employee for the remaining sick leave balance. 

 
Employees are eligible to participate in an annual cash-out program. Employees with at least 30 days (240 hours) of accrued but unused 
sick leave who used less than 4 days (32 hours) of 12 days (96 hours) earned in the fiscal year, can elect to receive 50% in cash of the 
unused portioned earned, in excess of 30 days. Eligible employees electing 
to participate shall be paid in July of every year. 

 
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE (Policy #307) 
A maximum of three (3) consecutive days in California or five (5) consecutive days outside California to attend funeral of 
employee’s spouse, child, parent, brother, sister, grandparent, mother or father-in-law, or household dependent or relative. 

 
MILEAGE ALLOWANCE/REIMBURSEMENT (Policy #310) 
The Executive Director shall receive a monthly mileage allowance of $500 per month. The Deputy Executive Director/Director for 
Projects shall receive a monthly mileage allowance of $400 per month and the Director for Planning shall receive a monthly 
mileage allowance of $200 per month. STA staff uses the standard Internal Revenue Service (IRS) mileage rate for travel 
reimbursement. 

 
COMMUTER TRANSIT INCENTIVE (Policy #310) 
STA offers financial incentive for employees using a commute alternative mode limited to: trains, buses, vanpool, and ferry. 
Employees who can provide proof of their monthly commute cost and use of any transit mode of transportation can receive up to $75 
per month travel incentive. 

 
In addition to the above, STA shall comply with all employment regulations mandated by state and federal laws. 

 
The benefits listed above are Board approved policy. Additional information can be found in the Human Resources 
Policy manual or may be supplemented by administrative guidelines issued by the Executive Director.  

44



 

                     ATTACHMENT B 
 
    
 
   

 
 

HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 2014 
 

Wednesday January 1 New Year’s Day 

Monday January 20 Dr. Martin Luther King’s Birthday 

Monday February 17 Presidents’ Day 

Monday May 26 Memorial Day 

Friday July 4 Independence Day 

Monday September 1 Labor Day 

Monday October 13 Columbus Day 

Tuesday November 11 Veterans’ Day 

Thursday November 27 Thanksgiving Day 

Friday November 28 Friday After Thanksgiving Day 

Wednesday December 24 Christmas Eve – Half Day 

Thursday December 25 Christmas Day 

Wednesday December 31 New Year’s Eve – Half Day 
 
 

Please Note:   
Three floating holidays shall be credited July 1st of each year to the 
employee’s vacation balance.  *If Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve 
falls on a Saturday or Sunday an additional eight (8) hours of vacation 
shall be credited on July 1st.  Employees hired between July and December 
shall receive credit for three floating holidays and Christmas Eve and New 
Year’s Eve, if applicable.  Employees hired between January and June shall 
receive credit for two floating holiday.   

 

45



This page intentionally left blank. 

46



Agenda Item 9.F 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  November 20, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Macaulay, Planning Director 
RE: 2013 Solano County Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
 
 
Background: 
The legislation creating Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs), such as the Solano 
Transportation Authority (STA), required the bi-annual update of County Congestion 
Management Programs (CMPs).  CMPs are reviewed by the regional Metropolitan Planning 
Organization for consistency with the most-recently adopted Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP).  For Solano County and for nine County Bay Area- this is performed by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) 
 
MTC typically publishes guidance for update of the CMP in March or April of the year that it is 
due.  This year, because of the development of the new RTP, known as Plan Bay Area, the MTC 
guidance memo was not adopted until July 5th, and Plan Bay Area was not adopted until July 
18th.  The most important impact of this is that the final land uses and transportation network to 
be used in an updated traffic model were not available in time to allow proper update and 
validation of the county travel demand model.  As a result, and with the approval of MTC staff, 
the 2013 CMP update focuses on local changes such as transit use data. 
 
Discussion: 
The 2013 Solano County CMP is provided as Attachment A.  The proposed changes were made 
using track changes in order to emphasize differences between the adopted 2011 version and the 
draft 2013 version.  The changes generally fall into the following categories: 
 

• New Plan Bay Area goals - required to be incorporated into the document by MTC's July 
5, 2015 guidance memo. 

• Updated Capital Improvement Program, to reflect completed projects and changes to the 
RTP approved transportation network. 

• Updated system performance data, primarily focused on the transit system. 
 
The 2013 Solano County CMP does not show any significant changes in traffic patterns in the 
past two years, but it does note changes to transit services that have occurred.  With the adoption 
of the new RTP and the reported upturn in the economy of Solano County and the region, the 
2015 Solano CMP may be a substantially different document. 
 
The 2013 Solano County CMP was provided to SolanoExpress Intercity Transit Consortium 
(Consortium) members at their meeting of September 24, 2013, with comments due by October 
31st.  The Draft 2013 Solano County CMP was also provided to Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC) members and MTC staff.  All comments received have been incorporated into the 
updated 2013 Solano County CMP that is included as Attachment A.

47



At their meetings of November 12, 2013 and November 20, 2013, the Consortium and TAC 
respectively voted to unanimously recommend the STA Board approve the amended 2013 Solano 
County CMP. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No impact to the STA General Fund. 
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the 2013 Solano County CMP and direct the Executive Director to transmit the document to 
MTC. 

 
Attachment: 

A. The Solano County CMP has been provided to the STA Board members only under separate 
enclosure.  To view and obtain a copy of the Solano County CMP, please visit STA’s website: 
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004300/FINAL%202013%20Solano%20CMP.pdf 

 

48

http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004300/FINAL%202013%20Solano%20CMP.pdf


Agenda Item 9.G 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
DATE:  November 30, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE: Solano County Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan 
 
 
Background: 
The STA began the development of the Alternative Fuel and Infrastructure Plan in June 2012 
with assistance from the consultant group ICF International.  The purpose of the Plan is to 
review major choices for alternative fuels and vehicles, assesses their benefits and costs, and 
identify implementation actions to help overcome barriers to greater use of alternative fuels.  The 
Plan is intended to be a tool to assist member agencies in future decisions for fleet conversions 
and infrastructure improvements; it was not intended to be a vehicle replacement plan.   
 
The Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan is intended to also serve as an advocacy document 
for future grant funding for STA’s member agencies.  In addition, the Plan will provide a 
resource document to guide potential discretionary clean air funds available through the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District and Yolo Solano Air Quality Management District.  Both 
Air Districts have been active partners and participants in the Plan’s development.  
 
A Technical Working Group was established to provide technical support and feedback as the 
Plan was being developed.  The Working Group consisted of fleet managers, public works, 
planning, transit, and Air District staff.  Since the start of the Plan’s development, the Working 
Group has met three times to review technical reports supporting the draft Alt. Fuels and 
Infrastructure Plan.  In addition, the Alternative Modes Policy Sub-Committee, recently renamed 
the Active Transportation Committee, of the STA Board provided overall policy guidance in the 
plan’s development and was provided updates regarding the Plan’s development.   
 
Discussion: 
The Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan has undergone an extensive review period with city 
and County staff, Air District staff, policy and public input over the last 3 months.  The most 
recent activity was approved by the STA Board to release the draft Plan for public input at their 
October 9th meeting.  STA staff has since broadcasted the availability of the document review on 
the STA website, social media and press releases.  There were no further comments received and 
STA staff has made no changes to the previous draft version of the plan.  STA Staff is 
recommending approval of the Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan at this time.  A copy of 
the Plan is available online at: 
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004240/Item%2012.B_Att%20B%20Alt.%20Fuels.pdf.  
 
Implementation of various aspects of the Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan has already 
begun in the City of Benicia and the SolTrans service area with a study of the feasibility of 
Compressed Natural Gas fleet facility conversion.  Recently, the City of Dixon requested a 
similar CNG Feasibility Study be supported by STA.  This request is scheduled to be brought to 
the STA Board in January 2014.  In addition, STA staff is working with both Air Districts, Bay 

49

http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004240/Item%2012.B_Att%20B%20Alt.%20Fuels.pdf


Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Yolo Solano Air Quality 
Management District (YSAQMD) and member agencies to fund and coordinate the installation 
of additional electric vehicle charging stations throughout the county.  If approved by the STA 
Board, STA member agencies will be encouraged to adopt the Plan to assist in future grant 
funding opportunities.   
 
The SolanoExpress Intercity Transit Consortium and the STA Technical Advisory Committee 
unanimously approved this recommendation at their November 12th and 20th meetings, 
respectively. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Funding for the Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan was approved by the STA Board and 
included in the STA FY 2013-14 Budget for $75,000 from State Transit Assistance Funds 
(STAF). 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Solano County Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Plan.   
 
Attachment: 

A. To view and obtain a copy of the Solano County Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure 
Plan, please visit STA’s website:  
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004240/Item%2012.B_Att%20B%20Alt.%20Fu
els.pdf 

50

http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004240/Item%2012.B_Att%20B%20Alt.%20Fuels.pdf
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004240/Item%2012.B_Att%20B%20Alt.%20Fuels.pdf


Agenda Item 9.H 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  November 25, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE:  Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Non-Urbanized Area Program 
  (FTA Section 5311) Recommendation 
 
 
 
Background: 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Nonurbanized Area Formula Program (Section 5311) 
makes funding available to each state for public transportation projects in nonurbanized areas.  
Eligible applicants include public agencies, non-profits agencies, and American Indian tribes.  
Solano Transportation Authority (STA) approves the 5311 projects for Solano County and 
submits them to MTC.  The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) annually develops 
the regional program of 5311 projects for submittal to Caltrans.  MTC submits the San Francisco 
Region 5311 program to Caltrans and then Caltrans submits a statewide program to FTA for 
approval.  
 
Discussion: 
MTC is requesting STA program the 5311 funding for Solano County for the next two years for 
2014 and 2015 in the amount of $421,089 in each year.  Since Dixon and Rio Vista are the two 
main rural operators, STA initially met with the two cities' Public Work Directors and Transit 
staff to discuss their capital and operating needs.  Subsequently, STA staff organized a telephone 
conference call with all interested applicants prior to developing a 5311 funding 
recommendation.   
  
Attachment A shows the transit operators' proposed 5311 projects and STA staff proposed  
recommendation for funding at the time of Consortium and TAC meetings in November.   
 
Summary of Recommendation 
The request for funding exceeded the amount of available funding.  The City of Dixon requested 
the amount of $260,000 of operating assistance which also included a request for a fund swap 
with Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding to assist in their contribution to the 
SolanoExpress Intercity Funding Bus Replacement for Route 30 Buses. Solano County also 
submitted a request for assistance for their share in the Intercity Bus Replacement.  STA staff 
recommends to continue swapping 5311 operating assistance with Dixon TDA funding to build 
Dixon's TDA reserve funding to cover the cost share for Dixon and Solano County for Intercity 
bus replacement after the transit operator's capital needs are met.  Last year, Dixon received 
$70,000 in 5311 to swap with TDA for the Intercity bus replacement. STA staff recommends an 
agreement be developed between the City of Dixon and STA to document the past and future 
funding swaps.  

51



STA staff recommends funding for one Dixon bus in 2014 and recommends Dixon to apply for 
FTA 5310 program for the second bus replacement.  If Dixon is unsuccessful in their grant 
application for the 5310 program, 5311 funding will be available in 2015 for the second bus. The 
funding amount recommended for the bus replacement is based on the cost of Rio Vista's recent 
bus purchase as shown in the table below: 
 

Bus Cost Federal 88.53% Local 11.47% 
 $76,000   $67,283   $ 8,717  

 
If there is a remaining balance in the awarded amount of 5311 funding, the funding is lost to 
Solano County and the San Francisco Region and goes back to the State.  A slight lesser amount 
of $65,000 is recommended for funding to assure that no funds are lost. 
 
STA also recommends $40,000 be swapped with TDA funds to meet the need of Dixon Readi 
Ride for four (4) bus replacements by Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19.  Four (4) bus replacements 
would require $260,000 in federal dollars.  Building a local bus reserve over the next several 
years will allow consistent funding to be available for all applicants while still meeting Dixon's 
Readi Ride capital needs. 
 
The City of Fairfield request is for $100,000 in operating assistance for SolanoExpress Route 30.  
SolTrans request is for $40,000 for SolanoExpress Route 85.  Both of these routes operate only a 
limited portion of the services that qualified for 5311.  The funding amounts requested will assist 
all operators that participate in the Intercity Funding Agreement by reducing the overall costs to 
be shared among the funding partners. 
 
The City of Rio Vista's operating assistance request is based only on the local service provided in 
Rio Vista since they have been successful in obtaining FTA Job Access Reverse Commute 
(JARC) funding for the operation of Routes 50 and Route 52 and New Freedom funding for their 
Senior Shuttle.   STA staff recommends that Rio Vista Transit Park and Ride be funded in 2015 
to allow the time for the new City Manager to come on board and a more detailed cost proposal 
be developed for the project. 
 
The City of Vacaville does not operate service in the rural area and does not qualify for 5311 
funding. 
 
The 2014's 5311 funding will be programmed by MTC this year.  The recommended funding for 
2015 may be modified next year by STA  if needed.    

The Intercity Consortium and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) reviewed the Federal 
Section 5311 funding recommendation at their meeting of November 12th and 20th, respectively, 
and unanimously approved STA staff’s recommendation to approve the recommended 5311 
funding for 2014 and 2015.   

After the STA TAC meeting, STA staff received a communication from MTC staff that there is 
additional funding available since a couple of operators in the region, but not in Solano County, 
did not apply for 5311 funding.  The additional amount of $56,124 per year is available to be 
programmed in Solano County. 

Due to time constraints and not to lose the unexpected funding, STA staff is recommending to 
program the additional funding to Dixon for operating assistance as a funding swap with TDA 

52



funds for the Intercity Bus Replacement cost share for the City of Dixon and Solano County 
(Attachment B).  STA staff sent an email notifying the Consortium and TAC of the additional 
5311 funds and the recommendation. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
Federal Section 5311 funding in the amount of $955,261 is available to Solano County Transit 
Operators that operate service in rural area for the next two years. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Federal Section 5311 Allocation for 2014 and 2015 in the amount of $955,261 as 
specified in Attachment B; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the City of Dixon for 
the funding swap of FTA 5311 funds with Dixon TDA funds for the SolanoExpress 
Intercity Bus Replacement Contribution for Dixon and County of Solano and local bus 
replacement for Dixon Readi-Ride. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Solano County Federal Section 5311 Recommendation for 2014 and 2015 as presented to 
Consortium and TAC 

B. Solano County Federal Section 5311 Recommendation for 2014 and 2015 for STA Board 
Approval 
 
 

53



This page intentionally left blank. 

54



2014 
Requested 

2015 
Requested

Amount Amount
Dixon Operating Assistance $260,000 $260,000 $70,000 $70,000 
*Dixon/Solano County Fund Swap for Intercity Bus Replacement $66,507 $41,507 
**Dixon Bus Reserve (4) Fund Swap for Local Bus Replacement $40,000 $40,000 
Dixon Bus Replacement 85,000 $85,000 $65,000 $65,000 
Fairfield Operating Assist  (Route 30) $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Rio Vista Operating Assistance $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 
Rio Vista Transit Park and Ride $20,000 $75,000 $25,000 
SolTrans Operating Assistance (Route 85) $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 

* $725,924 is Dixon and Solano Co. Share Total $545,000 $600,000 $421,507 $421,507 
** $26,000 is Dixon Federal Share Amount Available $421,507 $421,507 $421,507 $421,507 

Over/Under ($123,493) ($178,493)  $                     -    $                     -   

Consortium and TAC

Operator Projects 2014                  
STA 

Recommended 
Amount

2015                   
STA 

Recommended 
Amount

Solano County 5311 Funding Recommendation
2014 and 2015

55



2014 
Requested 

2015 
Requested

Amount Amount
Dixon Operating Assistance $260,000 $260,000 $70,000 $70,000 
*Dixon/Solano County Fund Swap for Intercity Bus Replacement $122,631 $97,631 
**Dixon Bus Reserve (4) Fund Swap for Local Bus Replacement $40,000 $40,000 
Dixon Bus Replacement 85,000 $85,000 $65,000 $65,000 
Fairfield Operating Assist  (Route 30) $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Rio Vista Operating Assistance $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 
Rio Vista Transit Park and Ride $20,000 $75,000 $25,000 
SolTrans Operating Assistance (Route 85) $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 

* $725,924 is Dixon and Solano Co. Share Total $545,000 $600,000 $477,631 $477,631 
** $26,000 is Dixon Federal Share Amount Available $477,631 $477,631 $477,631 $477,631 

Over/Under ($67,369) ($122,369)  $                     -    $                     -   

STA BOARD

Operator Projects 2014                  
STA 

Recommended 
Amount

2015                   
STA 

Recommended 
Amount

Solano County 5311 Funding Recommendation
2014 and 2015

56



Agenda Item 9.I 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: November 25, 2013 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE:  2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study 
 
 
Background: 
The seven major intercity transit routes that serve Solano County are operated by the two largest 
transit operators in the County:  Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST) and Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans).  Although operated by two transit operators, they are funded by contributions from 
six cities (Benicia, Dixon, Fairfield, Suisun City, Vacaville, and Vallejo), the County of Solano, 
Regional Measure 2 (RM 2) funds determined by the STA Board, and fares collected from riders 
of the service. 
 
The STA has been working with the Solano transit operators through the Intercity Transit 
Funding (ITF) Working Group over the past seven years and has developed and maintained an 
ITF Agreement to stabilize the funding for these services.  The cost-sharing for each route is 
based on residence of the ridership (80%) and population share (20%).  An initial ridership 
survey was conducted in the fall of 2006.  The last ridership update was in 2012 which consisted 
of SolanoExpress seven (7) intercity routes, and per transit operator's request, Dixon Readi-Ride, 
Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST) local routes, Rio Vista Delta Breeze, and Vacaville City 
Coach local routes were also surveyed (Attachment A).  Since SolTrans was in the planning 
stage of restructuring their local routes and had just finished finalizing their Short Range Transit 
Plan, SolTrans local routes were not included in the 2012 study. 
 
Discussion: 
The 2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study will be used to help calculate the new ITF 
Agreement formula for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15.  In addition, to meet the needs of the ITF 
Agreement, the 2014 Study will included an on-board passenger survey and analysis, on-time 
performance and on and off counts.  The best time to conduct ridership surveys are in the highest 
ridership month of March and November.  STA staff is preparing to have the surveys conducted 
in March 2014. STA will also be offering participating passengers a chance to win bus passes for 
the SolanoExpress Intercity Routes to encourage passengers to fill out surveys. 
 
STA staff has received requests from FAST (Attachment B) and SolTrans (Attachment C) to 
include their local routes in the 2014 Ridership Survey and Analysis Study.  In addition, Napa 
Vine 21 is recommended to be included in the Ridership Study. 
 
The Intercity Consortium and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) reviewed the 2014 
Ridership survey and analysis study at their September 12th and 20th meetings, respectively, and 
unanimously approved STA staff’s recommendation. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) in the amount not-to exceed $175,000 is the 
recommended funding source for the Ridership Survey and Analysis Study.  

57



 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The SolanoExpress Intercity Ridership Survey and Analysis (Attachment A); 
2. Develop the FAST and SolTrans Local Ridership Survey and Analysis in coordination 

with FAST and SolTrans;  
3. Dedicate $175,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the 2014 Ridership 

Survey and Analysis Study; and 
4. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) and enter into a 

contract for the Solano County Ridership Survey and Analysis for an amount not-to-
exceed $175,000. 

 
Attachments:   

A. 2014 On Board Transit Survey 
B. Fairfield Letter of Request dated October 22, 2013 
C. SolTrans' Letter of Request dated October 25, 2013

58



over 

   
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014 ON BOARD TRANSIT SURVEY 
 

The Solano Transportation Authority and your local transit operator need you to help 
improve transit service by answering the questions below and returning this form 
before you get off the bus. All responses are CONFIDENTIAL. Please fill out this 
form only once per day. 

1.  What is the CITY YOU LIVE IN?  
 Benicia   Dixon    Fairfield  
 Suisun City  Rio Vista     Vallejo 
 Vacaville  Unincorporated Solano County 
 Napa County  Elsewhere outside Solano County 
 
2. Is your trip today part of a round trip on this bus 

line? 
      Yes   No   Don’t Know 
 
3.  Where are you coming from? 
 Work    School (K-12 students) 
 Business Appointment  College (Students Only) 
 Your Home   Airport  
 Social/Recreational  Medical/Dental 
 Shopping/Errands 
 Other (Specify):_________ ___________________ 
 
4.  What is the location of that place? 
     (Specify street address/name or landmark) 

 

________________________________ 
Street No. Street Name 
 

_________________________________ 
Nearest Cross Street    
 

_________________________________ 
City   Zip 

 
5. How did you get to the stop for this bus? 
 Transferred from another bus: Route number?_____  
    Transit Operator?   
__  Dixon Readi-Ride   ___ SolTrans  
__  Fairfield Suisun Transit   ___ Vacaville City Coach 
__  Rio Vista Delta Breeze   ___ Other (Name:________) 
       
 Transferred from BART 
 Transferred from Capitol Corridor/AMTRAK/RT 
 Transferred from Ferry 
 Walked (How many minutes? ______) 
 Car as driver (How many miles? _____) 
 Car as passenger (How many miles? _____) 
 Bicycle (How many miles? _____) 
 Other (Please describe_______________________) 
 
6.  Where did you board this bus? 
     (Specify street address/name or landmark) 

 
________________________________ 
Street No. Street Name 
 
_________________________________ 
Nearest Cross Street    
 
_________________________________ 
City   Zip 

SSttaarrttiinngg  PPooiinntt  

7.  Where will you GET OFF this bus? 
     (Specify street address/name or landmark) 

 
________________________________ 
Street No. Street Name 
 
_________________________________ 
Nearest Cross Street    
 
_________________________________ 
City   Zip 

 
8.  Where are you going to now? 
 Work    School (K-12 students) 
 Business Appointment  College (Students Only) 
 Your Home   Airport  
 Social/Recreational  Medical/Dental 
 Shopping/Errands 
 Other (Specify):_________ ___________________ 
 
9.  What is the location of that place? 
     (Specify street address/name or landmark) 

 
________________________________ 
Street No. Street Name 
 
_________________________________ 
Nearest Cross Street    
 
_________________________________ 
City   Zip 

 
10. How will you get from this bus to your 

destination? 
 Transfer to another bus: Route number?_____  
    Transit Operator?   
__  Dixon Readi-Ride   ___ SolTrans  
__  Fairfield Suisun Transit   ___ Vacaville City Coach 
__  Rio Vista Delta Breeze   ___ Other (Name:________) 
       
 Transfer to BART 
 Transfer to Capitol Corridor/AMTRAK/RT 
 Transfer to Ferry 
 Walk (How many minutes? ______) 
 Car as driver (How many miles? _____) 
 Car as passenger (How many miles? _____) 
 Bicycle (How many miles? _____) 
 Other (Please describe_______________________) 
 
11. How would you have made this trip if you could 
NOT ride this bus? 
 
 Would not have made this trip  Walk 
 Drive alone    Taxi 
 Get a ride             Train 
 Casual Carpool    Bike 
 Carpool/Vanpool            
 Other _______________________ 

EEnnddiinngg  PPooiinntt  
OONNEE--
WWAAYY  
TTRRIIPP  

59

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



12. How often do you ride this bus line? (Choose ONE) 
 
□ 5-7 days/week □ Once a month or less 
□ 3-4 days/week □ First time riding 
□ 1-2 days/week    (Skip To Question 14) 
 
13. How long have you been riding this bus line? 
 
 Less than 6 months    3 to 5 years 
 6 to 12 months     6 to 9 years 
 1 to 2 years     10 or more years 
 
14. How many cars or other vehicles are available for 

use by all the people in your home?  
 
□ 0 Cars     □ 1 Car     □ 2 cars    □ 3 or more cars 
 
15. Did you have a car that you could have used today 

instead of the bus/? 
 Yes      No     Yes, but with inconvenience to others 
 
16. How did you pay to use this bus? 
 (Please select ONE from each column) 
 

Payment Method Fare Type 
 Transfer  Adult 
 Cash  Senior 
 Multi Ride/Punch Pass  Student/Youth 
 Monthly Pass  Disabled 
 Other (Specify)   

 
17. What changes, if any, would you like to see to this 

line? (Select one or more) 
 
 No changes 
 More frequent service 
 Earlier morning service (Begin when?_______________) 
 Later evening service (Until when?_________________)  
 More Saturday service 

  Frequency   Extended Service 
 Sunday service 

  Frequency   Extended Service 
 Easier transfers between routes 
 Better on-time performance 
 Service to_____________________________________ 
 Other_________________________________________ 
 
18. Please rate the service on this bus line on each of 

the following: 
   No 

        Excellent  Good  Fair  Poor  Opinion 
a. On-time performance      
b. Frequency of service      
c. Driver courtesy      
d. Rider information      
e. Cleanliness of vehicles      
f. Safety/security      
g. Ease of transfers      
h. Availability of Intercity 
 Connections      
i. System easy to 
 understand      
j. Fares (Cost)       
k. Overall service      

19. How would you like to receive transit information? 
 (Select one or more.) 

 Newsletter       Mail 
 Information at stops   Brochure  
 Notice on bus/ferry   Transit Website 
 Email (Address: ___________________________) 
 Newspaper (Which paper?___________________) 
 Radio (Which station?_______________________) 
 Other (Please explain_______________________) 

 
 
 
 
20. Are you:  Male   Female 
 
21. Are you Spanish, Hispanic, or Latino? 
     Yes    No 
 
22. Which of the following do you identify with? 
 White/Caucasian 
 Black/African American 
 Asian 
 Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander 
 American Indian or Alaskan Native 
 
 Other:________________________________________ 
 
23. Do you speak a language other than English at 

home? 
  Yes    No 
 
If yes, what language? _____________________________ 
 
24. What year were you born? ____________________ 
 
25. What is your employment status? 
 Full-time  Part Time  Student 
 Homemaker  Retired  Unemployed 
 
26. Do you possess a driver’s license? 
  Yes    No 
 
27. How many people are in your household, including 

yourself? ____________ 
 
28. What is the total yearly income of all the people in 

your home?  (Please choose ONE category) 
□ Under $10,000   □ $75,000 - $99,999 
□ $10,000 - $24,999   □ $100,000- $149,999 
□ $25,000 - $34,999   □ $150,000 or over 
□ $35,000 - $49,999   □ Don’t Know 
□ $50,000 - $74,999 

 
29. Are there any other comments you would like to 

add about the service on this bus line? 
 
_______________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________ 
 

Thank you for your participation!! 

TTeellll  UUss  aa  LLiittttllee  AAbboouutt  YYoouurrsseellff  

To enter to win a Kindle, monthly passes and other prizes, please provide: 

First Name: ___________________________________ Phone: (_____)___________________________ 
 60



61

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



62

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



Agenda Item 9.J 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 

DATE:  December 2, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE: Contract Amendment - I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange –  

Initial Construction Project Utility Relocation Oversight 
 
 
Background: 
Since 2001, STA staff has been working with project consultants, Caltrans and the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) to complete improvements to the I-80/I-680/SR 12 
Interchange Complex.  In order to advance improvements to the Interchange in a timely 
fashion, four separate projects were identified for delivery including the I-80 High 
Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project, the North Connector Project, the I-80 Eastbound 
Truck Scales Relocation Project and the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project.     

The I-80 HOV Lanes Project has been completed, the North Connector (east portion) Project 
has been completed (with the exception of the mitigation monitoring), the I-80 Eastbound 
Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project is under construction and the I-80/I-680/SR 12 
Interchange (subject of this staff report) utility relocation work is underway with the main 
construction contract scheduled to begin in spring 2014. 
 
Discussion: 
The Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) for the I-80/I-
680/SR 12 Interchange – Phase 1 project was approved in December 2012.  The next step is 
to move forward with implementing the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – Phase 1 project.  The 
I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – Phase 1 project is currently planned to be implemented 
through 7 individual construction packages.  The first construction package is the Westbound 
(WB) I-80 to SR 12 (West) Connector and Green Valley Road Interchange Improvements 
(Initial Construction Package), which is expected to start construction in the spring of 2014. 
 
Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. (PB) was retained by STA to provide constructability reviews, 
biddability reviews and construction management services for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 
Interchange, including the Initial Construction Package (ICP).  Now that the EIS/EIR has 
been completed and the ICP is planned to go to construction in spring 2014, utility 
relocations were initiated in August 2013 and are proceeding.  PB is providing field 
coordination for PG&E and AT&T utility relocation required for the project, as well as 
construction management services for the access road that has been constructed on the 
adjacent private properties.  Based on progress of the utility relocations through November 
and the completion of the access road, STA staff requested PB provide an assessment of the 
effort required to complete the utility relocations. 

These services are discussed in more detail in the attached letter from Parsons Brinckerhoff, 
Inc. dated November 26, 2013 (Attachment A).  STA staff is recommending the Board 
approve a contract amendment for Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. in a not-to-exceed amount of 
$225,000 to cover these additional construction management services, which would be 
funded with Bridge Toll funds already allocated for the project.

63



Fiscal Impact:  
The additional construction management services for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package will be funded with bridge toll funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve a contract amendment for Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$225,000 to cover construction management services for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Letter from Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. dated November 26, 2013. 
 

64



 Parsons    
 Brinckerhoff 
 3260 Lone Tree Way, Ste. 104 
 Antioch, CA  94509 
    
     

 
 
November 26, 2013 
 
 
Janet Adams, Director of Projects  
Solano Transportation Authority 
One Harbor Center, Suite 130 
Suisun City, CA 94585 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment No. 4 Request  

Construction Management Contract for North Connector Project & Related       
I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Complex Projects 
 

Dear Ms. Adams, 
 
Please accept this Amendment No. 4 request for $224,561 – which is PB’s estimated cost to 
provide 1) Closeout construction management services for the Private Access Road for the 
Mangels/Dittmer Properties 2) Additional utility coordination for the I-80/I-680/SR12 ICP 
Project including PB installing temporary fencing to facilitate utility relocations.  Our cost 
estimate is attached.   These tasks were originally added to PB’s Contract via Amendment 
#3.  However, at that time it was assumed that PG&E utility relocations would be completed 
by 12-31-13 but they are now forecasting a completion date of 7-31-14. Also, AT&T 
coordination has been added to PB’s scope and their completion date is 12-31-14. 
 
The revised maximum not-to-exceed contract amount will be $4,392,023.   
 
Thank you for consideration of this request.  If you have any questions, please contact me at 
925-756-2382 / littell@pbworld.com.   
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
PB Americas, Inc. 
 

 
Bart Littell, PE 
Vice President / Construction Manager 

65

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



                                                 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
CC: Dale Dennis 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment:  Cost Proposal to the Solano County Transportation Authority for Construction 
Management and Coordination Services for Amendment No. 1 to Contractor STA FY6.07-
029.00 Part 1 and Part 2 

66



 

Agenda Item 9.K  
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: November 27, 2013 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Associate Planner 
RE:  Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Appointments 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority's (STA) Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 
membership currently has vacant positions.  The Committee is responsible for providing 
funding and policy recommendations to the STA Board on pedestrian related issues for 
monitoring, implementing, and updating the Countywide Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
 
Membership consists of representatives from a city, agency, and/or advocacy group, as well 
as a member-at-large (Attachment A). The representatives are nominated either by their 
respective organization, city council or mayor before being considered by the STA Board for 
a formal appointment.  Member-at-large positions are appointed directly by the STA Board.  
Appointments are for a 3-year term and are voluntary. Non-elected citizens are encouraged to 
participate in these citizen advisory committees. 
 
STA staff is actively seeking new members to fill current and future vacancies.  A 
recruitment process is underway in coordination with the cities and county staff.   STA staff 
is working to advertise vacant positions on the STA website, Facebook, and local 
newspapers. 
 
Discussion: 
In October 2013, the STA received a nomination from Solano Community College for an 
appointment to the PAC.  Solano Community College nominated Christian Odgen to 
participate as their representative on the PAC (Attachment B). 
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Christian Odgen representing Solano Community College to the PAC for a three-
year term. 
 
Attachments:  

A. STA PAC Membership Roster 
B. Solano Community College Nomination 

 

67



Last Modified On: December 2, 2013 

 

STA Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 

Membership Terms 2013 
 
The following are the Membership Terms of the PAC Members: 

Jurisdiction Member Term Expires 
Benicia Pete Turner December 31, 2015 
Dixon Bil Paul December 31, 2013 
Fairfield Vacant N/A 
Rio Vista Kevin McNamara December 31, 2016 
Suisun City Mike Hudson December 31, 2013 
Vacaville Shannon Lujan December 31, 2015 
Vallejo Vacant Vacant 
Solano County Vacant N/A 
Member-At-Large Vacant N/A 
San Francisco Bay Trail Maureen Gaffney December 31, 2013 
Bay Area Ridge Trail Kathy Hoffman December 31, 2015 
Solano Land Trust Vacant N/A 
Solano Community College Christian Odgen (pending) December 31, 2016 
Tri-City and County 
Cooperative Planning Group 

Vacant N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

68



69



70



Agenda Item 9.L 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE: November 25, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Jessica McCabe, Project Assistant 
RE: OneBayAreaGrant (OBAG) Programming for City of Suisun City Safe Routes to 

School (SR2S) Project 
 
 
Background: 
As the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for Solano County, the Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) coordinates project funding commitments between project sponsors and 
funding agencies.  This coordination includes recommendations for programming, allocating, 
and obligating federal, state, and regional funds for a variety of transportation projects.  These 
recommendations are based on the current and projected status of projects recommended for 
funding by the STA. 
 
On May 17, 2012, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) released guidelines for 
the OneBayArea Grant (OBAG) program.  OBAG is a new program developed by MTC and the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) for the allocation of the region’s federal Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds.  
OBAG combines funds for local streets and roads maintenance, Transportation for Livable 
Communities (TLC), regional bicycle network, CMA Planning activities, and other STP and 
CMAQ eligible transportation activities into one grant proposal.  For Solano County, OBAG 
funding is estimated to be $18.8 M over 4 years. 
 
Between July 2012 and December 2012, the STA Board programmed $12.573 M of the available 
$18.769 M of STA OBAG funds for the following projects and programs: 

1. Local Streets and Roads Projects, $5.863 M 
2. STA Planning, $3.006 M 
3. Dixon West B Street Bicycle Pedestrian Undercrossing, $2.535 M 
4. Vallejo Georgia Street Downtown Streetscaping Projects, $0.611 M 
5. Solano Napa Commuter Information, $0.533 M 
6. STA Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth Strategy, $0.025 M (net 

after backfill) 
 
At the March 13, 2013 Board meeting, the STA Board approved the funding strategy for the 
remaining $6.196 M of OBAG fund.  Of the $6.196 M, the STA Board approved for 
programming, it included $486,000 of STP for planning.  At the May 8, 2013 Board meeting, the 
STA Board approved for programming the remaining $5.710 M in OBAG funds for the 
following projects and programs: 
 

1. STA’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Capital Projects 
2. STA Transit Ambassador Program 
3. City of Suisun City’s Train Station Improvements 
4. City of Vacaville’s Allison Drive Sidewalk + Class I to Transit Center 
5. City of Vacaville’s Ulatis Creek Class I Bike Lane (McClellan to Depot)

71



6. City of Vallejo’s Downtown Streetscape (Maine Street) 
7. Solano County’s Vaca-Dixon Bicycle Path 

 
These federal funds would be made available to project sponsors by November 2013, should 
project sponsors program their projects by August 1st and MTC’s 2013 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) development process remain on schedule. 
 
Discussion: 
Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) Project Programming 
In April and May, STA staff met with each jurisdiction’s SR2S Community Task Force to 
discuss programming requirements for SR2S capital projects. Project sponsors were asked to 
prioritize projects identified in the 2013 SR2S Plan update.  Once prioritized, project sponsors 
would program projects based on available OBAG funding for SR2S projects (Attachment A). 
 
City of Fairfield staff recently notified STA staff that due to the lack of resources available to 
deliver a viable Fairfield SR2S project, they are proposing to forgo their portion of the OBAG 
CMAQ funding, $255,298, for SR2S improvements and recommending this OBAG funding be 
used to assist neighboring agencies (City of Suisun City and City of Vacaville) in funding larger 
SR2S projects located in the Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District and the Travis Unified 
School District.  Subsequently, the City of Suisun City will receive an additional $217,553 in 
CMAQ funding, bringing their total amount of funding to $349,065.  An agreement letter for this 
shift of funding between the Cities of Fairfield and City of Suisun City has been signed 
(Attachment B). The City of Suisun City will program their portion of CMAQ funds for SR2S 
improvements during the next TIP amendment opportunity, in December 2013.  
 
MTC Programming Requirements 
While the STA Board approved programming $1,200,000 for STA SR2S capital projects in May, 
MTC requires that Board programming action specify the project details (i.e., project sponsor, 
project name, scope, and funding), in order to be programmed into the TIP.  To comply with this 
requirement, STA staff requested that project sponsors provide project details for projects 
prioritized from the Countywide SR2S Plan Update.   
 
At the September 11, 2013 STA Board meeting, the City of Suisun City’s Safe Routes to School 
(SR2S) project scope and funding were approved by the Board (Attachment C); however with 
the addition of CMAQ funds originally intended for the City of Fairfield’s SR2S project, the City 
of Suisun City has updated their project scope (Attachment D).  STA staff is recommending 
approval of these additional CMAQ funds for Suisun City’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) 
project.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No direct impact to the STA’s General Fund. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the programming of $349,065 of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
funds for Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) projects as described in Attachment D. 
 
Attachments:   

A. Available OBAG funding for Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Capital Projects, 3-6-2013 
B. Letter approving City of Suisun City receiving additional CMAQ for SR2S 

Improvements, 10-22-2013 
C. Solano County Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Projects submitted by each jurisdiction, 9-3-2013 
D. City of Suisun City’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Project, 11-26-2013 

72



STA SR2S OBAG Formula Distribution Recommendation
3/6/2013

FY 2011‐12 STA
Student recommended

Local Task Force Shares Enrollment Share shares*
Benicia USD 4,923            7.60% 100,000$                
Dixon USD 3,879            5.99% 100,000$                
FSUSD 21,577         33.33% 349,065$                
Travis USD 5,391            8.33% 100,000$                
Vacaville USD 12,561         19.40% 203,207$                
Vallejo USD 15,313         23.65% 247,728$                
RD USD Rio Vista only 1,094            1.69% 100,000$                

64,738 100.00% 1,200,000$             

* Remaining funds distributed to larger districts after
calculating $100,000 minimums for smaller districts.

73

jmccabe
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

jmccabe
Typewritten Text

jmccabe
Typewritten Text

jmccabe
Cross-Out



This page intentionally left blank. 

74



75

jmccabe
Typewritten Text

jmccabe
Typewritten Text

jmccabe
Typewritten Text

jmccabe
Typewritten Text
            Attachment B



76



 
  Attachment C 

Solano County Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Projects submitted by each jurisdiction 
9-3-2013 

 
Jurisdiction SR2S Capital Project  Amount SR2S Funding  
City of Dixon  Construct sidewalk bulb-out 

on North Lincoln Street at CA 
Jacobs. Construct sidewalk 
bulb-out on Pheasant Run 
Drive at Tremont Elementary 
School. Installation of high 
visability crosswalks at 
various schools. Install bike 
racks and overhead covering 
at CA Jacobs. Install gate in 
fence along pedestrina path 
near Silveyville Elementary 
School.  Restripe bike lane on 
Rehrmann Drive from Evqans 
Road to North Lincoln Street. 
Plant trees and gate 
improvements along 
Rehrmann Drive at Tremont 
Elementary School. 
Miscellaneous striping 
improvements at Tremont 
Elementary and CA Jacobs. 

$100,000 $100,000 

City of Suisun City 
 
 
 
 

Stripe high-visibility 
crosswalks by Crescent 
Elementary and Crystal 
Middle School. Design a Class 
I pedestrian/bicycle facility 
along the west side of Marina 
Boulevard between State 
Route 12 and Lotz Way, and 
along Lotz Way between 
Marina Boulevard and the 
Suisun multi-modal transit 
station on Main Street. 
Design and construct a path 
along the south side of 
Driftwood Drive from 
Whispering Bay Circle to 
Marina Boulevard.    Install 
rectangular rapid flashing 
beacons on Harrier Drive at 
the main entrance to Dan O. 
Root Elementary School. 

$131,512 $131,512 

77



 
  Attachment C 

City of Vacaville 
 
 
 
 

VUSD Vacaville High School 
Sidewalk & Safety 
Improvements Phase 1 ; 
Provide additional walking 
route improvements on East 
Monte Vista Avenue from 
West to Dobbins Street. 
Consider consolidating curb 
cuts (with VUSD Staff 
approval) on the north side 
of the street, and providing 
curb extensions at 
intersections.   Close 
sidewalk gaps on West Street 
south of Main Street. VUSD 
Callison Elementary School 
On-site Improvements; On-
Site loading zone marking, 
on-site signing & making to 
improve on-site 
circulation.  VUSD Safe Route 
to School Improvements ; 
Providing Radar Speed Signs, 
Flashing Pedestrian Beacons, 
Signing and Pavement 
Marking at prioritized 
locations to enhance safety 
along routes to school. TUSD 
Safe Route to School 
Improvements ;Radar Speed 
Signs, Flashing Pedestrian 
Beacons, Signing and 
Pavement Marking at 
prioritized locations to 
enhance safety along routes 
to school. 

$265,462 $265,462 

City of Vallejo 
 
 
 
 

Intersection, striping, and 
signage improvements in the 
vicinity of Wardlaw 
Elementary and Cooper 
Elementary School. High 
visibility crosswalks and 
pedestrian signs will be the 
first priority projects, with 
additional lane 
reconfiguration with any 
remaining funds. 

$247,728 $247,728 

 

78



 
  Attachment D 

City of Suisun City Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Projects submitted  
11-25-2013 

 
Jurisdiction SR2S Capital Project  Amount SR2S Funding  
City of Suisun City 
 
 
 
 

Driftwood Drive Path: Design and 
construct a Class I 
pedestrian/bicycle path along the 
south side of Driftwood Drive 
between Marina Boulevard and 
Whispering Bay Lane.  Other 
improvements will include, but will 
not be limited to, curb extensions, 
street lighting, 
irrigation/landscaping, signage, 
striping, high visibility crosswalks, 
and fencing; Lotz Way Path: Design 
and construct a Class I 
pedestrian/bicycle path along Lotz 
Way between Marina Boulevard 
and Main Street, and along the 
west side of Marina Boulevard 
between Highway 21 and Lotz Way.  
Other improvements will include, 
but will not limited to, curb 
extensions, street lighting, 
irrigation/landscaping, signage, 
striping, high visibility crosswalks, 
and fencing; High Visibility 
Crosswalks:  Replace existing 
crosswalks with high-visibility 
crosswalks, as well as install 
advance stop bars and legends (at 
non-signalized intersections); 
Update Curb Ramps: Replace curb 
ramps with curb ramps conforming 
to Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) standards; Rectangular Rapid 
Flashing Beacons (RRFB) at Dan O. 
Root Elementary School: Install 
RRFBs on Harrier Drive at the main 
entrance to the Dan O. Root 
Elementary School campus.  Other 
improvements may include high 
visibility crosswalks, curb 
extensions, signage and striping. 

$1.8M $349,065 

 

79



This page intentionally left blank. 

80



Agenda Item 9.M 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:   November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Jayne Bauer, Marketing and Legislative Program Manager 
RE:  Contract Amendment - Federal Legislative Advocacy Services  
 
 
Background: 
Since 2001, the STA’s federal lobbying efforts have been in partnership with the Cities of 
Fairfield, Vacaville and Vallejo.  Each agency has participated equally in the funding of a 
contract for federal advocacy services.  The STA’s federal advocacy efforts have focused 
on obtaining federal earmarks for five priority projects: 1) the I-80/I-680/State Route 
(SR) 12 Interchange, 2) Jepson Parkway/Travis Air Force Base Access Improvements, 3) 
the Vallejo Ferry Station, 4) Alternative Fuel SolanoExpress Buses, and 5) the 
Fairfield/Vacaville Intermodal Station. 
 
STA entered into a contract in 2008 with Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP (Akin 
Gump) to perform the services that STA needs to be effective and to meet STA’s needs in 
Washington, D.C.  The contract term was from February 16, 2008 through February 15, 
2010.  Amendment #1 was entered into for the period December 1, 2009 to December 31, 
2011.  This amendment also included the City of Dixon.  Amendment #2 was entered 
into for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013.  Akin Gump has 
provided quality guidance to the STA Board and staff, and representation to our 
congressional representatives to position Solano County for federal funding. 
 
Discussion: 
The current contract 2 for federal legislative advocacy services with Akin Gump is for the 
annual amount of $115,800, inclusive of all expenses in a monthly retainer of $9,650.  
The costs for the contract are equally distributed to four participating agencies (Cities of 
Fairfield, Vacaville and Vallejo, and STA) in the amount of $2,100 per month or $25,200 
per year, with Dixon paying $1,250 per month or $15,000 per year due to the smaller size 
of the city. 
 
Akin Gump provides valuable assistance to STA on federal matters.  The team, including 
Susan Lent, former counsel to the House Transportation Committee and a partner at the 
firm, and Vic Fazio, a former member of Congress from Solano County, provides 
strategic advice and has been engaged with members of Congress on STA’s behalf.  
Attachment A is a list of their efforts and areas where they have provided assistance over 
the course of the current contract.   

 

81



With the Congressional ban on earmarks, Akin Gump’s services include researching grant 
opportunities for funding our projects, and following up with agency staff (such as 
Department of Transportation) to advise STA on strategies for pursuing competitive 
grants.  During 2013, Akin Gump spearheaded the STA’s successful resolution of a Buy 
America issue involving negotiations with PG&E, Caltrans and FHWA.  Akin Gump 
facilitated a meeting in November 2013 between Congressional staff members, the USPS 
and STA Board Member Osby Davis to move forward on the Vallejo USPS relocation.  
Akin Gump is in regular communication with STA, keeping staff apprised of 
developments as they occur.  They also are experienced with transportation law and 
routinely recommend strategies for achieving STA’s objectives. 

STA staff recommends the STA Board approve Contract Amendment #3 with Akin 
Gump for the period January 1, 2014 – December 31, 2015 for the same amount as the 
existing contract on December 3rd.  STA staff has met with representatives of all four 
cities regarding our mutual federal legislative advocacy services, and all four agencies 
indicated they are each supportive of continuing the partnership with STA and to renew 
the contract with Akin Gump.  This contract will enable the STA to work with Akin 
Gump through the authorization of the federal transportation bill, and continue the good 
working relationship we have established.   
 
Monthly updates from STA’s federal (Attachment B) and state (Attachment C) advocacy 
firms are included for your information. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The fiscal impact for STA is $50,400 for the 24-month contract period.  This contract is 
included in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 and FY 2014-15 General Operations Services 
Budget. 
 
Local Preference Policy: 
This is a continuation of services let pursuant to a previous solicitation.  Staff will issue 
an RFQ at the conclusion of this contract term, which will include a local preference 
goal. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a 24-month Contract Amendment 
with Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP (Akin Gump); 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to extend the contract with the Cities of Dixon, 
Fairfield, Vacaville and Vallejo to provide federal advocacy services in pursuit of 
federal funding for the STA’s priority projects through December 31, 2015 at a 
total cost not-to-exceed $231,600; and 

3. The expenditure of $50,400 to cover the STA’s contribution for this 24-month 
contract. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Akin Gump Federal Legislative Advocacy Efforts for STA 
B. Akin Gump Federal Legislative Report 
C. Shaw/Yoder/Antwih State Legislative Report 

82



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Akin Gump Federal Legislative Advocacy Efforts for the Solano Transportation Authority 
January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 

 
 

Akin Gump makes STA aware of transportation developments in Washington and 
identifies opportunities for STA to secure federal funding and influence law and policy.  
We are in regular communication with STA, keeping staff apprised up developments as 
they are occurring.  We also are experienced with transportation law and routinely 
recommend strategies for achieving STA’s objectives.  Specific accomplishments 
include: 
 
• Assist STA annually with developing federal platform, including identifying federal 

funding opportunities and strategies for pursuing funding and advising STA staff on 
developments with federal laws and policies. 

 
• Make presentations to the STA Board and participate in telephone conferences to 

provide updates and strategic advice. 

• Identify grant opportunities for transportation and other federal funding and assist 
STA in developing strategies for pursuing grants. 

• Identified opportunity for pursuing funding from the Transportation Community 
System Preservation Program in fiscal year 2012 for Vallejo streetscape project.  
Scheduled meeting with DOT to brief staff on project.  Project secured $1.15 million 
award. 
 

• Assisted STA in 2012 with obtaining approval from the U.S. Postal Service to 
relocate the post office in Vallejo.  We briefed Congressman Thompson on the issue 
and scheduled a meeting with USPS Headquarters to discuss the issue.  USPS 
Headquarters then followed up with Osby Davis regarding process for USPS to 
approve a post office relocation. 

 
• Assisted with developing strategy for pursuing TIGER grant for Fairfield Vacaville 

Intermodal Station, scheduled meeting with DOT TIGER office to review prior 
application and reviewed and edited most recent application.  Vic Fazio also 
contacted Congressman Garamendi and requested that Congressman Garamendi 
communicate the need for the project to former Transportation Secretary LaHood and 
current Secretary Foxx.  

 
• Scheduled meetings with STA Board in Washington (during two annual trips), 

including with Federal Transit Administrator Peter Rogoff, officials in DOT policy 
office, House and Senate transportation committee staff and members of the Solano 
County congressional delegation.  We assisted with developing the agenda for the 
meetings and participated in the meetings and related follow up. 

 

83



• Drafted comments to the Federal Highway Administration on the National Freight 
Policy. 
 

• Routinely draft letters to Congress on issues important to STA, including Amtrak and 
commuter tax benefits. 

 
• Drafted memos on MAP-21, including funding programs and strategies for securing 

funding for STA priorities. 
 

• Provided information on TIFIA loan program and opportunities for public private 
partnerships, including joint development. 

 
• Played lead role in resolving Buy America issue involving I-880/680/SR-12 project.  

Briefed STA staff on new law and interpretation; drafted comments on Caltrans Buy 
America waiver request; coordinated strategy with PG&E; advocated for resolution 
with FHWA; followed up with Caltrans to ensure satisfactory resolution. 

 
• Assist STA with developing priorities for MAP-21 reauthorization, including 

inclusion of priority projects in National Freight Plan, advocating for discretionary 
grants and developing a position on environmental streamlining.  

 
• Akin Gump scheduled a meeting In November 2013 for Mayor Davis with Tom 

Samra, Vice President of Facilities at the Postal Service and with offices of Senators 
Boxer and Feinstein.  We assisted with drafting a letter that Congressman Thompson 
and Senator Boxer sent to the Postmaster General in advance of the meeting.  Akin 
Gump will work with Vallejo to secure contract to relocate from the USPS with 
contingencies before the end of the year. 

 

84



 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

November 27, 2013 
 

To: Solano Transportation Authority 

From: Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP 

Re: October/November Report 

 

During the months of October and November we assisted the city of Vallejo with securing the 
necessary approvals from the U.S. Postal Service for the relocation of the Vallejo postal facilities 
so that the city can build the second phase of its parking structure.  We scheduled a meeting with 
Tom Samra at USPS headquarters and involved members of Congress.  The meeting with Mr. 
Samra was productive and Vallejo hopes to negotiate a contract with the USPS with acceptable 
contingencies by the end of the year.  We also monitored developments in Congress and at the 
Department of Transportation and other federal agencies and developed recommendations for 
changes to the transportation law that would expedite project delivery. 

Fiscal Year 2014 Appropriations 

On October 16, 2013, the House and Senate enacted a continuing resolution (CR) which ended 
the three-week government shutdown, provided funding for federal programs through January 
15, 2014, at sequester-reduced fiscal 2013 levels, and raised the debt ceiling through February 7.  
The Treasury Department had predicted that the federal government would reach its limit on 
borrowing authority (the debt ceiling) by October 17, so Congress was under pressure to prevent 
a default on U.S. obligations. The vote came when an agreement was reached between the 
Democratic and Republican leaders in the Senate.  The House accepted the Senate proposal after 
the House Republican Leadership was unable to obtain sufficient votes for its proposal which 
would have made changes to the Affordable Care Act. 

The CR requires that a conference committee, led by House and Senate Budget Committee 
Chairs Paul Ryan (R-OH) and Patty Murray (D-WA), adopt a budget for fiscal year 2014 by 
December 16.  Once the conference committee adopts the budget, the House and Senate 
Appropriations Committee will begin work on reconciling appropriations with the hope of 
enacting an omnibus spending bill.  If either the budget conference fails to reach agreement, or 
appropriations bills are not enacted, Congress could adopt a yearlong CR, or series of temporary 
spending measures, to prevent another shutdown. 

The conferees began negotiations in November, but appear to have made little progress.  The 
funding levels established by the House and Senate in the budgets adopted earlier this year had 
significantly different priorities and funding levels. The House proposed to fund the government 
at $967 billion, consistent with the Budget Control Act of 2011, and would have boosted defense 

85

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



 
 
 

Solano Transportation Authority 
November 27, 2013  
Page 2 
 
spending.  The Senate recommended an additional $91 billion in spending primarily directed at 
non-defense programs, including DOT discretionary accounts, such as the TIGER grant program.  

As part of the process of reaching agreement on a budget for fiscal year 2014, the conferees may 
repeal another round of across-the-board sequestration scheduled to take effect in January 
provided they can either agree on cuts to some programs in favor others or identify revenues to 
offset spending. The leadership of the Appropriations Committees also have recommended that 
the conference adopt spending levels for fiscal year 2015.  It appears unlikely that the committee 
will reach a “grand bargain” that would include tax and entitlement reforms to resolve the long-
term budget debate.  Transportation supporters have been making the argument, however, for 
addressing the revenue shortfall in the Highway Trust Fund, including a gas tax increase. 

House Committee Recommendations on Freight Policy 

On October 29, 2014, the Panel on 21st Century Freight Transportation released its final report 
on the current state of freight transportation and its recommendations for freight transportation 
improvements to strengthen the U.S. economy.  The panel was established as a special committee 
under the jurisdiction of the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee to provide 
policy options for the next surface transportation authorization bill.  The Panel was led by Rep 
John J. Duncan, Jr. (R-TN) and Ranking Member Jerrold Nadler (D-NY).  The report concluded 
that Congress should direct the Secretary of Transportation, in coordination with the Secretary of 
the Army and the Commandant of the United States Coast Guard, to establish a comprehensive 
national freight transportation policy and designate a national, multimodal freight network.  This 
would go further than the freight program authorized under the Moving Ahead for Progress in 
the 21st Century Act (MAP-21), which was restricted to highways, and include ports and 
intermodal transportation in the network.  The recommendations also include providing 
sustainable funding for multimodal freight infrastructure through the Projects of National and 
Regional Significance grant program and establishing clear benchmarks for project selection.  
This program was reauthorized in MAP-21, but did not receive funding in fiscal year 2013. 

The report does not identify a funding source for the freight program but directed the Department 
of Transportation to identify and recommend a sustainable revenue stream.  The report stated that 
the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee would work with the Ways and Means 
Committee to review the funding and revenue recommendations to present options for the 2014 
reauthorization bill. 

  

86



 
 
 

Solano Transportation Authority 
November 27, 2013  
Page 3 
 
Primary Freight Network 

On November 19, the Department of Transportation published and requested comment on the 
proposed highway Primary Freight Network (PFN). MAP-21 requires DOT to designate up to 
27,000 miles on existing interstate and other roadways, as a PFN to help states strategically 
direct resources toward improving freight movement. The Federal Register notice identifies more 
than 41,000 miles of comprehensive, connected roadway that a Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) analysis shows would be necessary to transporting goods efficiently on highways 
throughout the nation to make up the highway PFN.  Under the proposal, I-80 in Solano County 
would be designated as part of the PFN. 

Additionally, FHWA requested comments on the following elements of the process:  1) specific 
route deletions, additions, or modifications to the draft initial designation of the highway PFN;  
2) the methodology for achieving a 27,000-mile final designation;  3) how the NFN and its 
components could be used by freight stakeholders in the future;  4) how the NFN may fit into a 
multimodal National Freight System; and  5) suggestions for an urban-area route designation 
process.  The comment period ends on January 17. 

DOT received some feedback on the plan during the second meeting of the National Freight 
Advisory Committee meeting on November 21.  The meeting was convened to continue the 
Committee’s work of developing recommendations for a National Freight Strategic Plan and 
National Freight Network.  Members of the committee acknowledged that FHWA was 
constrained by language in MAP-21 that limited the designation to highways, but expressed 
concerns that the PFN as recommended would fail to connect the freight system to key multi-
modal facilities, ports, manufacturers and energy facilities. 

Senate Hearing on Transit Options for the Elderly 

On November 6, 2013, the Senate Special Committee on Aging held a hearing to examine transit 
options for the elderly.  The hearing was convened at the request of Sen. Susan Collins (R-ME), 
the Ranking Member of the Committee, in response to a $77.4 million cut to programs 
authorized by  the Older Americans Act (PL 89-73), including transit programs provided through 
the Health and Human Services Department’s Administration on Aging.  Sen. Collins expressed 
concern that about one-third of people who are 70 or older have no access to public transit.   

During the hearing, Sen. Collins said she would like to see some of the transportation initiatives 
currently under control of the Administration on Aging transferred to DOT.  FTA Deputy 
Administrator Therese McMillan testified that the Government Accountability Office identified 
80 federal programs that have potential to be coordinated and maximized through the United We 

87

http://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/freight/infrastructure/pfn/state_maps/ca_california.pdf


 
 
 

Solano Transportation Authority 
November 27, 2013  
Page 4 
 
Ride initiative to help “transportation disadvantaged” populations. She recommended that 
Congress act to require that entities that receive funding from the federal government take part in 
coordinated planning efforts guided by the populations served. She stated that this type of 
coordination, which would maximize federal dollars and eliminate duplication, is not currently in 
place and that many human service agencies do not coordinate their services with other 
providers. 

Federal Policy on Climate Change 

On November 1, 2013, President Obama issued an executive order to establish a coordinated 
effort among federal, state and local governments to mitigate damages from climate change, 
reduce risk and direct future investments in infrastructure.  The order instructs the federal 
agencies to identify and remove or reform existing regulations that create barriers to mitigation 
efforts, reform regulations and funding programs that may unintentionally increase vulnerability 
and risk, and identify more climate-resilient investments by States and local communities that 
would be supported with federal grant awards and other assistance.  Federal agencies 
(Departments of Defense, the Interior, and Agriculture, the Environmental Protection Agency, 
NOAA, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Army Corps of Engineers) are required 
to produce an inventory and assessment of proposed and completed reforms within nine months.  
The order also establishes a an interagency Council on Climate Preparedness and Resilience and 
a task force of state and local officials to provide additional recommendations for policy changes 
that will mitigate impact and reduce risk. 

At a November 7 hearing on Hurricane Sandy before the Senate Homeland and Governmental 
Affairs Subcommittee on Emergency Management, Deputy Transportation Secretary John 
Porcari announced that the Administration intends to create a competitive grant program to 
support infrastructure projects designed to reduce damage from severe storms,  Porcari stated 
that the goal of the program, which would be modeled on the TIGER program, was to create 
resiliency in transportation infrastructure and reduce the need for any future recovery efforts.  
The Administration is expected to release details regarding the program at a future date. 

Legislation Introduced 

On November 14, Sen. Mike Lee (R-UT) and Rep. Tom Graves (R-GA) introduced legislation to 
transfer authority over the federal highway program from the U.S. DOT to the states over 5 
years.  The Transportation Empowerment (TEA) Act (S. 1702/H.R. 3886) would provide block 
grants with few requirements to the states during the transfer period and the federal gas tax 
would be reduced to 3.7 cents from 18.4 cents over the same time period.  The Senate bill has 
three cosponsors and was referred to the Senate Finance Committee.  The House bill has 24 

88



 
 
 

Solano Transportation Authority 
November 27, 2013  
Page 5 
 
cosponsors and was referred to the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee with 
subsequent referral to the House Ways and Means and Budget Committees.  There have been 
other efforts over the years to devolve the federal highway program, but these efforts consistently 
have failed. 
 
On November 14, Senators Mark Warner (D-VA) and Roy Blunt (R-MO) introduced the Bridge 
Act (The Building and Renewing Infrastructure for Development and Growth in Employment 
Act, S. 1716) to create a financing authority to support projects of regional and national 
significance, including roads, bridges, rail, ports, water, sewer, and other significant 
infrastructure projects.  The BRIDGE Act would authorize the establishment of a national 
infrastructure bank that would be seeded with $10 billion and would provide loans and loan 
guarantees to infrastructure projects.  The bill requires that at least 5 percent of the loans or loan 
guarantees go to rural projects. Projects must have a total cost of $50 million or more to qualify 
for financial assistance.  In rural areas the minimum total project cost is $10 million.  Rural areas 
are defined as areas with less than 250,000 in population.  The bill has 9 cosponsors and was 
referred to the Senate Commerce Committee. 
 
Bipartisan bills to improve bicycle and pedestrian safety were introduced in the House and 
Senate on November 14.  The Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Act (S. 1708/H.R. 3494), sponsored 
by Sen. Jeff Merkley (D-OR) and Rep. Earl Blumenauer (D-OR), would require DOT to set 
separate measures for motorized and non-motorized safety. The legislation was intended to 
encourage states to make their roadways safer by establishing safety targets and developing 
programs to meet them without diverting funding from other safety programs.  The Senate bill 
was cosponsored by Senators Kelly Ayotte (R-NH) and Brian Schatz (D-HI) and referred to The 
Senate Commerce Committee.  The House bill has 6 cosponsors, including Republican 
Representatives Howard Coble (R-NC) and Michael McCaul (R-TX) and was referred to the 
House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee. 
 
Rep. Karen Bass (D-CA) introduced The Local Hire Act (H.R. 3620), a bill that would loosen 
federal regulations that prevent transit agencies from implementing local hire policies that target 
employment in low-income and underemployed neighborhoods through geographically 
preferences.  In a press release, Rep. Bass indicated that the bill would allow the Los Angeles 
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority to prioritize the hiring of local residents for 
highway and transit projects. The bill was introduced on November 22 and referred to the House 
Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.  California Representatives Janice Hahn (D), 
Lucille Roybal-Allard (D) and Henry Waxman (D) cosponsored the bill, along with Rep. 
Timothy Bishop (D-NY). 

89



This page intentionally left blank. 

90



 
 

Tel: 916.446.4656 Fax: 916.446.4318 
 1415 L Street, Suite 1000  

Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
 
 
 
 
 
November 27, 2013 
 
TO: Board of Directors, Solano Transportation Authority 
 
FM: Joshua W. Shaw, Partner 

Matt Robinson, Legislative Advocate  
Shaw / Yoder / Antwih, Inc.     

 
RE: STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE – December 2013 
 
 
Since our last report to the Solano Transportation Authority’s Board in September, the October 
13 deadline for the Governor to sign or veto bills sent to him in the last two weeks of the 
legislative session came and went. In 2013, 896 bills were sent to the Governor for final 
disposition and of those, 800 were signed and 96 were vetoed, many of them only days before 
the October 13 deadline 
 
The Legislature’s “Interim Recess” began on September 13; they will return to Sacramento and 
begin the second year of the two-year session on January 6, 2014.  
 
Several bills were of interest to the Authority in 2013. These included a bill updating the 
membership of the Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA), legislation requiring 
contract employees of public agencies to meet specific disclosure requirements, and the 
lowering of the voter threshold for local tax measures, to name a few.  Additionally, 2013 saw 
the formation of the California State Transportation Agency, tasked with coordinating planning 
and future investments in transportation.  
 
The second half of the 2013-14 session will be a busy one as we work to secure funding from 
Cap and Trade revenues for transportation and advocate on the Authority’s behalf regarding a 
myriad of pending legislation which the Board has taken a position on. We will work closely with 
Authority staff and the Board on these issues throughout the coming year. 
 
The following pages reflect a summary of key bills the Board took a position on, and whether 
they were signed, vetoed, or held over until January. Also included is an overview of 
transportation funding opportunities, specifically related to Cap and Trade and the California 
Road Repairs Act.  
 

91

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



 

 

2 
 

Below is a summary of the bills upon which the STA Board adopted a position this year, and the 
current status of those bills, as well as an update on transportation funding issues: 
 
Bills of Interest 
 

1. SB 556 (Corbett) was amended at one point this year to require all public agencies, 
including public transit systems, to “label” employees and vehicles which are 
independent contractors or operated by independent contractors with a "NOT A 
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE" or "THE OPERATOR OF THIS VEHICLE IS NOT A 
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE" disclosure.  
 
The STA Board Opposed that version of the bill, due to its adverse impact on transit 
systems. Agencies using independent, outside contractors to provide transit services, 
such as drivers/operators for buses and rail vehicles, would have incurred a financial 
burden in order to meet the disclosure requirement. Furthermore, the bill would have 
had a potentially detrimental impact on public perception, internally and externally. In 
the face of substantial opposition around the state, the author narrowed the bill’s cope 
late in the session; it now applies only to public health or safety service providers. 
 
Even now, the bill faces opposition, so the author chose to make it a two-year bill; it will 
not move again until possibly in January. 
 

2. AB 431 (Mullin) introduced as a regional transportation funding bill. The STA Board 
Opposed that version of the bill. However, the bill was subsequently amended to apply 
to an entirely different subject matter (by revising various provisions of County 
Employees Retirement Law). Thus, while AB 431 is a two-year bill, we presume the STA 
should now drop its position on the bill.  
 

3. AB 466 (Quirk-Silva) requires Caltrans to continue allocating federal Congestion 
Management and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funding to California 
regions pursuant to a long-standing formula. The bill provides much-needed financial 
predictability for local transportation agencies. The enactment of the federal Moving 
Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) resulted in a number of 
modifications to CMAQ; as a result of those changes, the formula California uses to 
distribute CMAQ funds is no longer codified in federal law.  
 
Because the STA has used CMAQ funds to support a wide variety of transit and active 
transportation projects and improvements, the STA Board Supported this bill. The bill 
was signed by the Governor [Chapter 736, Statutes of 2013]. 
 

4. AB 574 (Lowenthal) would require the Air Resources Board, in consultation with the 
California Transportation Commission and the Strategic Growth Council, to establish 
criteria for the development and implementation of regional grant programs for the use 
of Cap and Trade revenues. The STA Board Supports this bill. While AB 574 is a two-year 
bill, see our further discussion below for more opportunities to influence the direction 
of Cap and Trade funding for transportation projects.  
 

92



 

 

3 
 

5. AB 935 (Frazier) would change the composition of the WETA board of directors, adding 
additional Senate and Assembly appointments. Because the bill specifically authorized 
the STA to develop the list of nominees for the seat to be appointed from Solano 
County, the STA Board Supports this bill. The bill met opposition in the Senate, where it 
remains; AB 935 is a two-year bill.  
 

6. SB 791 (Wyland) would have reduced transportation funding by eliminating the 
requirement that the State Board of Equalization adjust the rate of the excise tax on 
motor vehicle fuel, and instead would require the Department of Finance to annually 
calculate the rate and report that calculated rate to the Legislature. The rate for the 
state's next fiscal year would remain the same as the rate of the current fiscal year or 
would decrease based on the reported rate. The STA Board Opposes this bill. SB 791 is 
a two-year bill.  
 

7. SCA 4 (Liu) and SCA 8 (Corbett) would lower the two-thirds voter threshold to raise 
taxes to fund transportation projects to fifty-five percent. The STA Board Supports both 
of these bills. One of the bills was subsequently amended to add “strings” to the 
expenditure of local funds raised with the lowered threshold; the Board should discuss 
over the coming months its priorities relative to these state impositions. In the 
meantime, both are two-year bills.  

 
Transportation Funding 
 
Cap and Trade revenues will be at the center of the discussion between now and the adoption 
of the 2014-15 Budget Act, relative to transportation funding. The Governor will release his 
budget on January 10 and we anticipate it will contain some appropriation of Cap and Trade 
revenues to projects in the transportation sector. How much and for what purposes are 
unknown at this time, but early indications are some mix of Active Transportation and Rail 
Modernization will be funded, contingent on a mix of state and regional/ local decision making.  
 
The California Road Repairs Act was submitted to the Attorney General for consideration on 
November 18, 2013. This proposed initiative, sponsored by Transportation California and the 
California Alliance for Jobs, would assess an annual “California Road Repair Fee” on all vehicles, 
excluding heavy duty trucks (over 10,000 lbs.), equal to 1 percent of each vehicle’s value in 
quarter-percent increments phased in over four years. The annual total revenue raised is 
estimated to be $2.9 billion per year when the rate reaches 1 percent in 2018, or nearly $25 
billion over the first ten years. Heavy trucks will pay a fair share equivalent increase in the diesel 
tax, which they prefer to a value-based fee. 
 
All new revenue raised must be used exclusively for road, bridge and transit system 
maintenance, rehabilitation, and transit vehicle replacement only. The funds would be allocated 
as follows: 

• 25% of all new revenue to all cities in California distributed on a formula allocation 
based on population. 

• 25% of all new revenue to all counties in California based on a formula allocation 
equal to 75% per fee-paying vehicle and 25% per road miles. 

93



 

 

4 
 

• 40% of all new revenue to the State Highway System based on a formula allocation 
of ½ allocated 60% to Southern California/ 40% to Northern California, and ½ 
allocated on a “highest need” basis statewide. 

• 10% of all new revenue to public transit system maintenance, rehabilitation and 
vehicle replacement based on the current State Transit Assistance Program formula. 

 
All new funds raised in the Act would be constitutionally dedicated only for the purposes 
enumerated above and not available for reallocation or loan for any other purpose, without a 
new authorization by the voters. 
 
We will work with Authority staff and the Board to position the STA in the negotiations over 
these efforts in the months to come, to maximize return to Solano County transportation 
projects and services. 

94



Agenda Item 9.N 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE: Jepson Parkway Concept Plan Update Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
The Jepson Parkway Concept Plan was originally adopted by the STA Board on May 10, 2000.  
The Plan envisioned a parkway designed to improve intra-county mobility for residents by 
improving a series of local roads connecting I-80/Leisure Town Road interchange in Vacaville 
with Highway 12 in Suisun City.  Community leaders, members of the public, public works and 
planning staff from the cities of Fairfield, Suisun City, Vacaville and the County of Solano were 
instrumental in developing the plan.   
 
Their collective input formed the plan with the following transportation objectives and benefits:  

1. Implement safety improvements at various locations and road segments; 
2. Promote linkages between future land uses and transportation facilities to reduce the need 

for vehicle trips and take advantage of transit, rideshare, bicycle and pedestrian modes; 
3. Relieve existing and anticipated traffic congestion on local north-south routes in Solano 

County; 
4. Provide improved and new transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities; 
5. Provide a grade-separated crossing of the Union Pacific Railroad; 
6. Create a safe, efficient transportation network for the movement of people and goods 

within Solano County; 
7. Protect residents living adjacent to roadways in the corridor from the impacts of existing 

and anticipated future traffic levels using landscape and noise buffers; 
8. Provide traffic signals at major junctions along the corridor to improve access and safety 

for existing uses; 
9. Provide efficient local streets to serve local trips that currently have to use the freeway 

system; and 
10. Improve access for emergency vehicles and transit services. 

 
The original Jepson Parkway Concept Plan features concepts that integrate roadway 
improvements, transit, bikeway/pedestrian elements, landscape design, open space protection, 
and land use guidelines in a single comprehensive plan.   
 
Discussion: 
On October 10, 2012, the STA Board approved STA staff's recommendation to  update the 
Concept Plan to reflect changes to the corridor and to reiterate the corridor’s purpose and vision.  
Several planning and construction projects are underway or have been completed along the 
corridor since the Concept Plan was original adopted.  The Concept Plan Update scope of work 
includes: 

95



• Updated Transit Element to include updated transit and train service connections and 
stops. 

• Updated Bicycle and Pedestrian Element to highlight completed and planned projects 
(including wayfinding signs). 

• Updated Landscape Element with concept agreement for maintenance of landscape 
improvements. 

• Updated Roadway Phasing and Management Plan. 
• Add Land Use Section to document existing and planned land uses. 
• Add Traffic Circulation and Access Section with the goal to generate policy consensus on 

LOS, full/partial movement. 
 

Fehr and Peers was hired by the STA to assist in the Concept Plan Update in October 2012 and 
have since coordinated with staff from STA and member agencies as part of the Jepson Parkway 
Working Group.   While the majority of the tasks have been accomplished, additional tasks have 
been identified related to the Traffic Circulation and Access Section.  Fehr and Peers is 
anticipated to provide additional traffic analysis and speed assessment for the corridor.  The 
traffic analysis will be necessary to ensure future corridor improvements maintain a desired level 
of service and traffic speed.  The budget for this task is estimated at $10,000.  Therefore, STA 
staff is recommending a contract amendment to extend Fehr and Peers contract with the 
additional budget of $10,000 to accomplish this task.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The Jepson Parkway Concept Plan Update is currently funded through Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) funds and Planning, Programming and Monitoring Funds (PPM) for a total of 
$99,934.  STA staff is recommending a contract extension and additional budget of $10,000 
from PPM funds to complete the Concept Plan Update.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the STA Executive Director to sign an extension to Fehr and Peers' contract with an 
additional $10,000 to complete the Jepson Parkway Concept Plan Update. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

96



Agenda Item 9.O 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE: STA Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Implementation 
  
 
Background: 
Since 2008, the STA and its member agencies have studied the potential for a Regional 
Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) to assist in addressing a regional transportation funding 
shortfall projected to occur in the next 30 years.  In 2009, Economic Planning Systems (EPS) and 
Fehr and Peers were selected to conduct a RTIF Nexus Report required by AB 1600 to address 
how a potential fee program would relate fees collected to funding transportation improvement 
projects.  The RTIF Nexus Report was subsequently approved by the STA Board on July 11, 
2013 for its inclusion in the County of Solano's Public Facility Fee (PFF) Program Update.  STA 
staff has since coordinated with staff from the County, EPS and Fehr and Peers to ensure the 
RTIF Nexus Report was consistent with the PFF Nexus Report.  In early November, the County 
released the PFF Nexus Report for public input and held a public input meeting on November 
12th to discuss the PFF Update purpose and process.   
 
Discussion: 
The County Board of Supervisors approved PFF Update at their December 3rd meeting with 
$1,500 per dwelling unit equivalent allocated toward the STA's RTIF.  This list of eligible RTIF 
Projects is included as Attachment A.   STA staff is recommending that the STA Board formally 
authorize the STA Executive Director to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the County 
of Solano to coordinate the administration and expenditure of the Regional Transportation 
Impact Fee at this time.    
 
The fee from the PFF is expected to begin collection in February 2014, after a 60 day review 
period.  STA staff will continue to coordinate with policy makers and staff from the cities and 
the County to develop early implementation steps related to: 

1. Fee collection and tracking 
2. Establishing Working Group Districts directly correlated with RTIF Implementation 

Packages (as identified in Attachment A) 
3. Auditing and reporting 
4. Project prioritization 
5. Policies for shifting of funds between districts 
6. Decision-making processes within and between RTIF Working Groups 

 
To accomplish this task, STA staff is recommending a contract with Fehr and Peers. Fehr and 
Peers was previously a sub-consultant to EPS for the STA's RTIF Nexus Plan effort and has been 
an important consultant resource since their involvement in 2009.  Their primary role has been to 
forecast land use and RTIF revenue projections.   The STA Board previously approved a contract 
amendment for EPS and Fehr and Peers (as their sub-consultant) to assist in ensuring the STA's 
RTIF Nexus Report's consistency with the County PFF and to initiate the ground work for RTIF 

97



implementation.  The majority of the tasks under that amendment were completed by EPS; 
however, several tasks remain for Fehr and Peers to assist STA staff.  A more detailed scope of 
work for Fehr and Peers is also attached as reference (Attachment B).  The budget for the scope 
of work is estimated at $15,650 with a contingency estimate of $4,350 for a total of $20,000.  If 
approved by the STA Board, STA staff will utilize the balance of $4,000 from EPS's existing 
contract for Fehr and Peers sub-consultant services and use $16,000 from Planning, Program and 
Management (PPM) Funds.     
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The budget estimate for the scope of work is $20,000.  STA staff will close out EPS' contract and 
use the cost savings of $4,000 plus $16,000 from Planning, Program and Management (PPM) 
Funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the STA Executive Director to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the 
County of Solano to coordinate the expenditure of the Regional Transportation Impact 
Fee; and 

2. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into a contract with Fehr and Peers for the 
scope of services as specified in Attachment B for an amount not-to-exceed $20,000. 

 
Attachment: 

A. Regional Traffic Impact Fee Implementation Packages 
B. Anticipated Work Effort for RTIF Implementation Support 

98



99



This page intentionally left blank. 

100



 

100 Pringle Avenue | Suite 600 | Walnut Creek, CA 94596 | (925) 930-7100 | Fax (925) 933-7090 
www.fehrandpeers.com 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: November 21, 2013 

To: Robert Guerrero, STA 

From: Julie Morgan, Fehr & Peers 

Subject: Anticipated Work Effort for RTIF Implementation Support 

WC09-2657 

The work of Fehr & Peers on the refinements of the STA RTIF nexus study and the preparation of 

additional technical information is largely complete. We understand that you are now requesting 

that Fehr & Peers staff take on an expanded role in the RTIF implementation process than had 

originally been anticipated.  To make sure we are on the same page, the following summarizes a 

set of tasks that we feel will be needed to assist the STA in establishing a workable RTIF 

administrative procedure.  Where appropriate, we have identified tasks that can be shared 

between STA and FP staff, or that STA staff could take the lead on, in order to minimize the cost 

for consultant time. Unless otherwise noted, the FP hours estimated here would be for Julie 

Morgan. 

1. We understand that the decision has been made to distribute the RTIF revenues back to 

each district from which the revenues were generated.  A Working Group will be set up 

for each district, made up of local agency representatives, which will be charged with 

administering the RTIF funds.  STA will want to set some basic ground rules for how the 

Working Groups will function, and anticipate questions and issues that may come up 

once the Working Groups begin working together.  FP’s role will be to assist STA staff in 

anticipating questions and developing policies for handling situations involving: 

a. Fee collection and tracking 

b. Auditing and reporting 

c. Project prioritization 

d. Shifting of funds between districts 

e. Decision-making processes within and between Working Groups 

101

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



Robert Guerrero 
November 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

We will collaborate with STA staff on developing an outline of Working Group policies 

and procedures, and will participate in an internal meeting with STA staff to brainstorm 

other issues and settle on policies.  (Estimate: 12 hours = $3180) 

2. STA would distribute the outline of Working Group policies to the RTIF Policy Committee 

and hold a meeting with them to solicit their input on which method they think is best. FP 

would facilitate this meeting. This meeting would also review the project area boundaries 

and talk about any changes to the boundaries that the group would recommend. FP 

would revise the RTIF implementation and administration process outline and the project 

area boundaries, per the discussion at the stakeholder meeting. (Estimate: 14 hours = 

$3710) 

3. FP would coordinate with STA on the best way to proceed.  There may need to be one 

additional general meeting with the stakeholders to finalize the administrative process, or 

perhaps meetings with the individual Working Groups would be the best option at that 

stage.  The level of effort needed for this task would depend on the number of meetings 

required.  We would allocate 4 hours of FP staff time ($1060) for each meeting.  If 

additional work were needed to change the project area boundaries or to investigate 

other implementation options, that could be handled on a time-and-materials basis.  We 

are assuming participation at 6 meetings in this task.  (Estimate: $1060 * 6 = $6,360) 

4. FP would prepare documentation of the decision-making process outlined in the 

preceding tasks. The documentation would be prepared as a technical memorandum that 

would involve a description of the final project area boundaries and any changes made to 

those boundaries, and a description of the Working Group policies and procedures. This 

task will involve some time from FP technician staff, as well as from Julie; an average 

hourly billing rate has been applied to account for this.  (Estimate: 12 hours = $2400) 

5. There may be a need for an additional task to develop a plan for how STA staff will 

administer the RTIF program. This task would involve outreach to other agencies that 

operate similar programs to learn how much staff time is allocated to the program each 

year and what they have learned are the important steps in administering a regional fee 

program. FP does not anticipate being involved in this task; it could be handled by EPS 

and/or by STA staff. 

We look forward to continuing to work with you on this very important project, and welcome 

your feedback on whether our understanding of the next steps aligns with your expectations. 

Total Estimated Budget: $15,650  

102



Robert Guerrero 
November 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

Meetings:  

• 1 Internal staff meeting 

• 1 Policy Committee Meeting 

• 6 Working Group Meetings  

Deliverables: 

• Outline of Working Group issues and policy needs 

• Technical memorandum on district boundaries and Working Group policies and 

procedures 

 

103



This page intentionally left blank. 

104



Agenda Item 9.P 
December 11, 2013 

 

 
 
DATE:  November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE:  Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for Soltrans and Benicia 
 
 
Background: 
On May 8, 2013, the STA Board approved a 50% match to partner with Solano Transit 
(SolTrans) to conduct a Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Feasibility Study for two locations in 
the City of Vallejo.  The City of Benicia expressed a similar interested in exploring the 
feasibility of implementing CNG technology for its city fleet and related support facilities.  The 
City submitted a formal funding request to the STA Board and on June 12th, the STA Board 
approved a recommendation to partner with the City to study one location at the Benicia 
Industrial Park.   
 
The total STA contribution for all three locations was $30,000 from State Transit Assistance 
Funds (STAF). 
 
Discussion: 
A Request for Proposal (RFP) was distributed during in early summer.  The RFP included the 
following scope of work: 

1) Site evaluation related to CNG fuel accessibility (coordinated with PG&E) 
2) Fueling needs assessment 
3) Equipment recommendations 
4) Plot Plan for each location 
5) Photographs 
6) Cost benefit analysis 
7) Opportunities to serve operation and management costs 

 
As a result of the RFP process and consultant selection process, staff from Soltrans, City of 
Benicia and STA selected Clean Energy to assist in developing the CNG Feasibility Study.  
Clean Energy has a long history of evaluating and constructing CNG fueling facilities 
nationwide.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The budget for the CNG Feasibility Study is $60,000 consisting of $30,000 from STAF provided 
by STA, and $30,000 from the City of Benicia and Soltrans.  
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into contract with Clean Energy to develop the 
CNG Feasibility Study in partnership with Soltrans and the City of Benicia for an amount not-to-
exceed $60,000. 

105



This page intentionally left blank. 

106



Agenda Item 9.Q 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Associate Planner 
RE: Model Update: Conversion to an Activity Based Model (ABM) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) developed the Solano-Napa Travel Demand Model 
(Solano-Napa Model) in 2005 to support system-wide, corridor, and local transportation 
planning and policy analysis and decision-making throughout the County.  The model covered 
the entire Bay Area and accounted for trip generation and demand in the Sacramento and San 
Joaquin County regions.  The STA developed the Solano-Napa Model in partnership with the 
seven cities and County of Solano staff, Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
(NCTPA), the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and Caltrans.  The Solano-Napa 
Travel Demand Model was designed to provide traffic forecasts for major roadways in Solano 
and Napa Counties.   

The Solano-Napa Model was updated in 2010 for the STA’s Regional Transportation Impact Fee 
(RTIF) study.  The update addressed land use and network changes from the 2008 version of the 
model to reflect 2010 traffic conditions and projected 2035 traffic conditions.  The Model was 
updated again in time for the 2011 Congestion Management Program (CMP) and projected to 
year 2040 traffic conditions for consistency with MTC’s Regional Transportation Plan.  The 
2011 update included more detailed TAZs and networks in Napa, and Truck trip analysis, which 
separated truck trips from other trips on the network to allow for more detailed analysis of truck 
trips on major arterials in the County. 

Discussion: 
As the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for Solano County, the STA is mandated to 
update the Solano County CMP once every two years as part of the CMP update.  The 
requirements include reviewing the consistency of the CMA modeling tool with MTC’s regional 
model.  In 2011, MTC replaced the BAYCAST-90 model, a trip-based model that had been in 
place for the past two decades, with an activity-based model (ABM) called Travel Model One.  
MTC has permitted CMAs to compare their local models with either BAYCAST-90 or Travel 
Model One for the last two CMP updates, and STA has been able to demonstrate consistency 
with BAYCAST-90 model for both the 2011 and 2013 CMP update.  It is unclear how long the 
BAYCAST-90 comparison option will be available to CMAs, and it is likely that the Bay Area 
CMAs will eventually be required to be consistent with Travel Model One. 

In anticipation of this requirement and the STA’s need to update the model for upcoming 
projects studies, STA staff proposes to align the Solano-Napa Model with MTC’s Travel Model 
One.  The new Solano-Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM) would inherit all models from 
MTC’s model, including transit and truck forecasting and toll road modeling capabilities.  The 
initial development cost associated with conversion to the SNABM can be offset by the savings 

107



of future model update costs, such as recalibrating every 10 years, and adding new capabilities, 
including express lanes, truck and transit forecasting, bicycle and pedestrian travel, and 
greenhouse gas emission analysis.  See Attachment A for the Scope of Work and Budget for the 
development of SNABM.    

STA staff proposes to amend Cambridge Systematics agreement to include the conversion to 
SNABM as part of their scope of work. STA currently contracts with Cambridge Systematics to 
provide on-call model services to member agencies and project managers seeking technical 
support regarding the Solano-Napa Model.  In addition to distributing the model files and 
responding to technical questions, Cambridge Systematics has also updated the model user 
guide, converted the files to a more user friendly application through the Cube Program, and 
performed the 2011 Model Update.  Cambridge Systematics staff has direct experience with the 
Solano-Napa Model and is knowledgeable about its capabilities and areas for improvement.  
 
The timeline for the development of the SNABM is as follows: 
 

November 2013 Committee review 

December 2013 STA Board Approval 

January – March 2014 Modify MTC AMB 

March – April 2014 Develop 2010 and 2040 Models 
April – June 2014 2010 Model Validation 
June 2014 Documentation and Training; Model Completion 

 
On November 4, 2013, the STA’s Model TAC convened to discuss the conversion to an activity 
based model.  Cambridge Systematics, staff from Metropolitan Transportation Commission, and 
Caltrans were present to discuss the pros and cons of adopting an activity based model at this 
time.  After healthy discussion, the Model TAC unanimously approved the recommendation to 
convert to an activity based model.   
 
At the November 12, 2014 meeting, the Intercity Transit Consortium unanimously approved the 
recommendation.  Similarly, the STA TAC unanimously approved the recommendation on 
November 20, 2014. 
 
In order to meet the June 2014 completion goal of the SNABM, STA issued Cambridge 
Systematics a Notice to Proceed (NTP) for an amount not to exceed $25,000 to begin work on 
the model update. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The proposed budget to convert the Solano-Napa Travel Demand Model to an activity-based 
model is $120K.  Additional transit and truck model validation will cost $20K and $10K, 
respectively.  The total project cost would be no more than $150K.  Funds for the model update 
will be a combination of Surface Transportation Program-Planning, State Transit Assistance 
Funds, and a contribution of $30,000 from NCTPA.   

108



Recommendation:   
Approve the following: 

1. The Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the Solano-Napa Activity-Based 
Model (SNABM) (Attachment A); 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to amend the current contract with Cambridge 
Systematics to include the development of the SNABM; 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Cambridge Systematics 
to develop the SNABM for an amount not to exceed $150,000; and 

4. Dedicate $20,000 of State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) for the transit element of the 
Solano Napa Activity-Based Model (SNABM). 

 
Attachment:   

A. Solano Napa Activity-Based Model Development Scope and Budget 

109



This page intentionally left blank. 

110



 

555 12th Street ,  Sui te  1600 
Oakland,  CA  94607 

 te l  510-873-8700 www.camsys.com fax  510-873-8701 

Memorandum 

TO: Sofia Recalde, Bob Macaulay 

FROM: Lawrence Liao 

DATE: October 25, 2013 

RE: Draft STA Activity-Based Model Development Scope & Budget with Optional Tasks 

Introduction 

The current version of STA model (SNTDM) was developed in 2008, with a base year of 2005, 
and subsequently validated to 2010 count data for the Regional Traffic Impact Fee (RTIF) Study 
in 2011. The STA model was later updated in February 2012, by Cambridge Systematics (CS), 
according to the MTC 2011 Congestion Management Programs (CMP) Guidelines, as well as 
some improvements and updates identified by STA planning staff. The current STA model has 
2010 and 2030 model years.  

To satisfy the bi-annual model update requirements for CMP consistency checks, and meet the 
longer term model development/maintenance needs, we propose to migrate the STA model to 
the new MTC activity-based model (ABM) platform. The initial development cost will be offset 
by the savings of future model update costs, such as recalibrating every 10 years, and adding 
new modeling capabilities, such as express lanes, bike/ped, and GHG analysis. 

The scope and budget for developing a Solano Napa ABM model (SNABM) is described in the 
subsequent sections. 

 

Task 1. Modify MTC ABM for Solano and Napa Counties  

The objective of this task is to modify the MTC ABM model structure to accommodate 
additional zonal and network details in the Solano and Napa counties areas and create a Solano 
Napa ABM model. 

The MTC Travel Model One is an activity-based model in which the primary unit of analysis is 
a tour (activities occur between tours); whereas the STA model is a trip-based model in which 
the primary unit of analysis is a trip. A tour is a sequence of trips from a primary origin, such as 
a residence, to a series of stops, including a primary destination, such as a place of work, and 
back to the primary origin. Tours, therefore, are a collection of trips. Consequently, it is a 
complete paradigm shift to move from a trip-based model to an activity-based model.  

ATTACHMENT A 

111



-  2 -  

The MTC Travel Model One operates on a synthetic population that includes representative 
households and persons for each actual household and person in the nine-county Bay Area – 
both in the base year and forecast years. A Population Synthesizer is used to produce detailed 
descriptions of households and the persons in those households, the details of which are drawn 
from the Census. A series of travel-related choices are simulated for each household and person 
within each household; these choices are simulated in the following sequence: 

 Usual workplace and school location – Each worker, student, and working student in the 
synthetic population selects a travel analysis zone in which to work or attend school (or one 
zone to work and another to attend school); 

 Household automobile ownership – Each household, given the household location and 
demographics as well as each members’ work and/or school locations, decides how many 
vehicles to own; 

 Daily activity pattern – Each household determines, together, the daily activity pattern of 
each household member, the choices being mandatory (go to work or school), nonmandatory 
(leave the house, but not for work or school), or stay at home; 

 Work/school tour frequency and scheduling – Each worker, student, and working student 
decides how many round-trips they will make to work and/or school, and then schedules a 
time to leave home for work and/or school as well as a time to return home; 

 Joint non-mandatory tour frequency, party size, participation, destination, and scheduling – 
Each household determines the number and type (e.g., to eat, to visit friends, etc.) of “joint” (i.e. 
two or more members of the same household traveling together) non-mandatory (i.e. not work 
or school) round trips in which to engage, then determines which members of the household 
will participate, where and at what time the tour (i.e. the time leaving home and the time 
returning home) will occur; 

 Non-mandatory tour frequency, destination, and scheduling – Each person determines the 
number and type of non-mandatory (e.g., to eat, to visit friends, to shop, etc.) round trips to 
engage in during the model day, where to engage in them, and at what time to leave and return 
home; 

 Tour travel mode – The tour-level travel mode choice (e.g., drive alone, walk, take transit, 
etc.) decision is simulated separately for each tour and represents the best mode of travel for the 
round trip (a “tour” is a round trip from either home or the workplace); 

 Stop frequency and location – Each traveler or group of travelers decide whether to make a 
stop on an outbound (from home) or inbound (to home) leg of a travel tour, and if a stop is to be 
made, where the stop is made, all given the round trip tour mode choice decision; 

112



-  3 -  

 Trip travel mode – A trip is a portion of a tour, either from the tour origin to a stop, a stop to 
another stop, or a stop to a tour destination, and a separate mode choice decision is made for 
each trip, doing so with awareness of the prior tour mode choice decision; 

 Assignment – Vehicle trips for each synthetic traveler are aggregated to build time-of-day 
specific matrices (i.e. tables of trips segmented by origin and destination) that are assigned via 
the standard static user-equilibrium procedures to the highway network (i.e. each vehicle is 
assigned to his or her shortest cost – both monetary and non-monetary – path between the 
origin 

We will review and make necessary modifications to each step of the MTC Travel Model One 
process to incorporate the additional information in Solano and Napa Counties from the 
SNTDM. The resulting SNABM will include added zonal and network details in the Solano and 
Napa county areas, and will be consistent with the MTC Travel Model One in the remaining 
Bay Area counties. 

Deliverables:  

• Revised MTC Travel Model One process that is compatible with additional zonal and 
network details in the Solano and Napa county areas 

• Technical memorandum summarizing model development work  

 

Task 2. Develop 2010 and 2040 Models 

The objective of this task is to prepare the input data for 2010 and 2040 SNABM models. We 
propose to use 2010 as the base year for SNABM because the current SNTDM was validation to 
the 2010 conditions, so the validation targets are readily available. Thus, no additional data 
collection will be needed for validation.  

The MTC Travel Model One was used to prepare the Plan Bay Area which covers the time 
period through 2040. Consequently, it is an ideal starting point for creating the input data for 
the 2040 SNABM model. We will incorporate the feedback on 2040 land use data from Napa 
county jurisdictions in a previous effort in the development of the 2040 model.  

Deliverables:  

• 2010 and 2040 SNABM models 

• Technical memorandum summarizing the input assumptions of 2010 and 2040 SNABM 
models 

113



-  4 -  

Task 3. SNABM 2010 Model Validation 

The objective of this task is to validate SNABM 2010 model to same 2010 conditions as 
represented in the SNTDM 2010 model. We will check the SNABM 2010 model outputs against 
the same targets used in SNTDM 2010 model validation and make necessary adjustments to the 
SNABM model.  

Deliverables:  

• Revised and validated SNABM 2010 model 

• Technical memorandum summarizing the validation process and results 

 

Task 4. Documentation and Training 

The objective of this task is to provide documentation and training for the new SNABM. We 
will prepare a model report  that  describes the assumptions, development methods, and 
outputs from the model, and a user’s guide on how to set up and apply SNABM, as well as how 
to interpret model results.  

Deliverables:  

• SNABM model report and user’s guide. 

• Sixteen (16) Hours of training on how to apply the new SNABM 

 

Optional Task 1. Transit Model Validation 

The objective of this optional task is to validate the transit model for the Solano and Napa 
county areas in the SNTDM 2010 model. We will obtain existing transit route, fare, parking and 
boarding information from local transit operators. No additional data collection will be 
conducted. The transit network coding in the Solano and Napa county areas, in the SNTDM 
2010 model, will be compared to local data and revised as necessary. The transit ridership from 
the model will be validated using the boarding data from local transit operators. It is proposed 
that modeled daily regional ridership be within 10 percent of the boarding counts. 

Deliverables:  

• Revised and validated SNABM 2010 transit model 

• Technical memorandum summarizing the validation process and results 

114



-  5 -  

Optional Task 2. Truck Model Validation 

The objective of this optional task is to validate the truck model for the Solano and Napa county 
areas in the SNTDM 2010 model. We will validate the truck trip tables and truck volumes on 
freeways, and state routes based on available truck trip information. No additional data 
collection will be conducted. The coding of truck routes in the Solano and Napa county areas, in 
the SNTDM 2010 model, will be compared to local data and revised as necessary. In addition to 
Caltrans truck count data, we will utilize other available data source for our validation. For 
example, Caltrans is developing a Statewide Freight Forecasting Model (CSFFM) to provide a 
comprehensive freight analysis and modeling tool that will identify the individual movement of 
commodities transported by trucks, rail, and air. CSFFM will be used to validate the regional 
truck trip tables if it is completed at the time of this validation.  

Deliverables:  

• Revised and validated SNABM 2010 truck model 

• Technical memorandum summarizing the validation process and results 

 

The draft budget for the tasks are shown in the following table: 

Proposed Tasks Cost 

Modify MTC ABM  $    72,000  

Develop 2010 and 2040 Models  $    24,000  

2010 Model Validation  $    16,000  
    Optional 1: Transit Model Validation  $       20,000  

    Optional 2: Truck Model Validation  $       10,000  

Documentation and Training  $      8,000  

Subtotal without Optional Validation  $  120,000  
Subtotal with Optional Validation  $      150,000  

 

 

 

115



This page intentionally left blank. 

116



Agenda Item 10.A 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  November 22, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program 
  Fourth Quarter Report 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) administers the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
(AVA) Program for Solano County.  These administrative duties include disbursing funds 
collected by the State Controller's Office from the Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) vehicle 
registration fee of $1 per registered vehicle, using the funding formula of 50% based on 
population and 50% on vehicles abated.  
 
The AVA Member Agencies for Solano County are the City of Benicia, City of Dixon, City of 
Fairfield, City of Rio Vista, City of Suisun City, City of Vacaville, City of Vallejo, and County 
of Solano.   
 
Discussion: 
For the Fourth Quarter, STA received the allocation from the State Controller’s Office in the 
amount of $96,329 and has deducted $2,890 for administrative costs.  The STA disbursed cost 
reimbursement to member agencies for the Fourth Quarter in the total amount of $112,975, 
which includes the end of the year distribution adjustments.  The remaining AVA fund balance 
after the fourth quarter disbursement to the member agencies is $180,032 which is carried over 
into FY 2013-14.   
 
Attachment A is a matrix summarizing the AVA Program activities for FY 2012-13 and is 
compared to the total FY 2011-12 numbers of abated vehicles and cost reimbursements 
submitted by the members of the Solano County’s AVA Program.  This matrix shows total 
program activities in FY 2012-13 at 108% compared to FY 2011-12.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Summary of Solano Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program for FY 2012-13 and 
FY 2011-12 

117



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

Summary of Solano Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program for 
FY 2012-13 and FY 2011-12 

Fourth Quarter Ending June 30, 2013 
 

FY 2012-13  

 
 
 

FY 2011-12 
 
 
Member Agency 

# of 
Abated 
Vehicles 

Reimbursed 
Amount 

Cost per 
Abatement 

% of Abated 
Vehicle from 

Prior FY 

# of Abated 
Vehicles 

 
Reimbursed 

Amount 
Cost per 

Abatement 

City of Benicia 31 $8,064 $260 119% 26 $7,633 $294 

City of Dixon 170 $12,063 $71 168% 101 $7,361 $73 

City of Fairfield 1,162 $52,891 $46 104% 1,114 $26,067 $23 

City of Rio Vista 0 0 $0 0% 0 $0 $0 

City of Suisun 103 $41,709 $405 85% 121 $47,920 $396 

City of Vacaville 121 $87,813 $726 103% 117 $50,263 $430 

City of Vallejo 1,484 $165,252 $111 113% 1,314 $142,619 $109 

Solano County 
Unincorporated 
area 

19 $1,975 $104 34% 56 $8,021 $143 

Total 3,090 $369,767 $120 108% 2,849 $289,884 $102 

 
The total remaining AVA fund available after the fourth quarter disbursement to member 
agencies is $180,032.  This amount is carried over to FY 2013-14 and is available for 
disbursement to member agencies utilizing the funding formula, in addition to the State 
Controller’s Office allocation for FY 2013-14. 
 

118



Agenda Item 11.A
         December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 

 
DATE:   November 22, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: STA’s Annual Audit Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13 
 
 
Background:  
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is annually required to prepare an audited financial 
statement in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34 
(GASB 34) and the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 (Audits of State, 
Local Government, and Non-Profit Organizations). 
 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day (VTD) & Co, LLP, a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) firm from Palo 
Alto, California, is the auditing firm retained by the STA to perform the STA’s annual financial 
reviews and funding compliance, appraise STA’s accounting internal controls, and issue Single 
Audit Reports.  VTD has extensive experience in conducting governmental audits with 
concentration in transit program and activities in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards Board (GASB), the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the 
OMB Circular A-133. 
 
Discussion: 
In October 2013, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co, LLP performed their fourth annual financial 
review, funding compliance, and internal controls audit for STA.  Their audit evaluation resulted 
of a thoroughly-prepared audit process noting no matters involving internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation to be considered of any material weaknesses.  The audit report is 
formatted to reflect GASB reporting requirements and compliance. 
 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co, LLP issued STA’s Basic Financial Statements and Single Audit for 
FY 2012-13, which reflects an overall financial position with no reportable deficiencies or 
material weakness that will adversely affect STA’s primary missions.  The audit did not disclose 
any reportable findings or questions in accordance with GASB 34 and OMB Circular A-133. 
 
The annual audit for FY 2012-13 is the eighth consecutive fiscal year STA has received an 
unqualified audit report.  This fiscal and administrative requirement is sufficient to ensure that 
STA funds are used in compliance with all applicable Federal statutory and regulatory 
provisions, and costs were reasonable and necessary for operating its programs. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Solano Transportation Authority Basic Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 
2013.  (Copies have been provided to the STA Board Members under separate enclosure. 
Copies are available upon request by contacting the STA office at (707) 424-6075.) 

119

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



This page intentionally left blank. 

120



Agenda Item 11.B 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 
RE:  I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project - Construction Allocation  
 
 
Background: 
Since 2001, STA staff has been working with project consultants, Caltrans and Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) to complete improvements to the I-80/I-680/SR 12 
Interchange Complex.  In order to advance improvements to the Interchange in a timely 
fashion, seven separate projects have either been implemented or are currently being 
implemented, which include the following: 
 
 North Connector Project (completed) 
 I-80 HOV Lanes Project (completed) 
 I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation (under construction) 
 I-80 Express Lanes Project (Environmental Study Underway) 
 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Phase 1 (FEIS/EIR completed December 2012) 

o I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Initial Construction Package (subject of this 
staff report) 

o I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Construction Package 2 (preliminary design 
underway) 

o I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Construction Package 3 (preliminary design 
underway) 

 
Discussion: 
As mentioned above, the Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact Report 
(EIS/EIR) for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Phase 1 project was approved in December 
2012.  Since the project reached this major milestone, staff has been proceeding with 
implementing the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Phase 1 project.  The I-80/I-680/SR 12 
Interchange – Phase 1 project is currently planned to be implemented through 7 individual 
construction packages.  The first construction package to go to construction is the Westbound 
(WB) I-80 to SR 12 (West) Connector and Green Valley Road Interchange Improvements 
(Initial Construction Package), which is expected to have an approved construction contract 
in late 2013/early 2014.  The CTC has allocated $24 M in remaining Trade Corridor 
Improvement Funds (TCIF) and $11 M in State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
for the Initial Construction Package (ICP) for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange.   
 
In order to maintain the schedule for the first construction package, STA staff is now 
recommending the Board approve an allocation request of Bridge Toll funds in the amount of 
$29.448 million for the construction phase for the ICP (Attachment A).  As part of the 
standard process, STA is required to approve the attached resolution, the Initial Project 
Report (IPR) for RM2 Project 7 and cash flow plan (attachments to resolution).   

121



Fiscal Impact:  
This funding allocation request of $29.448 million for Construction Phase for the I-80/I-
680/SR12 Interchange - ICP project would be funded with Regional Measure 2 or AB1171 
funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the attached Resolution No. 2013-27 and Funding Allocation Request from 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $29.448 million in Regional Measure 2 
or AB1171 funds for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project - ICP for the Construction 
Phase. 
 
Attachment:   

A. STA Resolution No. 2013-27 

122



 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION No. 2013-27 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AUTHORIZING AB1171 FUNDING ALLOCATIONS FROM THE METROPOLITAN 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR THE I-80/I-680/SR12 INTERCHANGE 

PROJECT – INITIAL CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE (ICP) 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (“MTC”) is the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to Government Code 
Sections 66500 et seq; and 
 
WHEREAS, Streets and Highway Code Sections 30950 et seq. created the Bay Area Toll 
Authority (“BATA”), which is a public instrumentality governed by the same board as that 
governing MTC; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Streets  and Highways Code (“SHC”) Section 31010 (b), funds 
(generally referred to as “AB1171 funds”) generated in excess of those needed to meet the toll 
commitments as specified in paragraph (4) or subdivision (b) of section 188.5 of the SHC 
shall be available to BATA for funding projects consistent with SHC Code Sections 30913 
and 30914; and 
 
WHEREAS, SB 916 (Chapter 715; Statutes 2004), commonly referred to as Regional 
Measure 2 (“RM2”) identified projects eligible to receive funding under the Regional Traffic 
Relief Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC is responsible for funding projects eligible for RM2 funds pursuant to 
Streets and Highways Code Section 30914 (c) and (d); and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC has established a process whereby eligible transportation project sponsors 
may submit allocation requests for RM2 and AB1171 bridge toll funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, allocations to MTC must be submitted consistent with procedures and 
conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, Solano Transportation Authority is the sponsor of the I-80/I-680/SR12 
Interchange Project – Initial Construction Package (PROJECT), which is eligible for RM2 
and AB 1171 funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the AB1171 allocation request, attached hereto in the Initial Project Report and 
incorporated herein as though set forth at length, lists the project, purpose, schedule, budget, 
expenditure and cash flow plan for which Solano Transportation Authority is requesting that 
MTC allocate funds; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT: 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority certifies the PROJECT is consistent with 
the Regional Transportation Plan (“RTP”); and be it further 
 

123

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



 

RESOLVED, that the year of funding for any design, right-of-way and/or construction 
phases has taken into consideration the time necessary to obtain environmental clearance and 
permitting approval for the project; and be it further  
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority approves the updated Initial Project 
Report, attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority approves the cash flow plan, attached to 
this resolution; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority has reviewed the project needs and has 
adequate staffing resources to deliver and complete the project within the schedule set forth in 
the updated Initial Project Report, attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, Solano Transportation Authority is an eligible sponsor of projects in the RM2 
Regional Traffic Relief Plan, Capital Program, in accordance with California Streets and 
Highways Code 30914 (c); and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, the PROJECT is eligible for receipt of AB1171 funds consistent with 
California Streets and Highway Code section 31010 (b); and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority is authorized to submit an application for 
RM2 and AB1171 funds for PROJECT in accordance with California Streets and Highways 
Code sections 30913 and 30914(c) as applicable; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that there is no legal impediment to Solano Transportation Authority making 
allocation requests for RM2 and AB1171 funds; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed project, or the ability of Solano Transportation Authority to 
deliver such project; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that Solano Transportation Authority indemnifies and holds harmless MTC, its 
Commissioners, representatives, agents, and employees from and against all claims, injury, 
suits, demands, liability, losses, damages, and expenses, whether direct or indirect (including 
any and all costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of any act or 
failure to act of Solano Transportation Authority, its officers, employees or agents, or 
subcontractors or any of them in connection with its performance of services under this 
allocation of RM2 and AB1171 funds. In addition to any other remedy authorized by law, so 
much of the funding due under this allocation of RM2 and AB1171 funds as shall reasonably 
be considered necessary by MTC may be retained until disposition has been made of any 
claim for damages; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority shall, if any revenues or profits from any 
non-governmental use of property (or project) that those revenues or profits shall be used 
exclusively for the public transportation services for which the project was initially approved, 
either for capital improvements or maintenance and operational costs, otherwise the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission is entitled to a proportionate share equal to MTC’s 
percentage participation in the projects(s); and be it further 

124



 

RESOLVED, that assets purchased with RM2 and AB1171 funds including facilities and 
equipment shall be used for the public transportation uses intended, and should said facilities 
and equipment cease to be operated or maintained for their intended public transportation 
purposes for its useful life, that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) shall be 
entitled to a present day value refund or credit (at MTC’s option) based on MTC’s share of 
the Fair Market Value of the said facilities and equipment at the time the public transportation 
uses ceased, which shall be paid back to MTC in the same proportion that RM2 and AB1171 
funds were originally used; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority shall post on both ends of the 
construction site(s) at least two signs visible to the public stating that the PROJECT is funded 
with AB1171 Toll Revenues; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority authorizes its Executive Director, or 
his/her designee, to execute and submit an allocation request to MTC for AB1171 funds in the 
amount of $29,448,000.00 for the Construction phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project 
– Initial Construction Package (ICP), purposes and amounts included in the project application 
attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that Solano Transportation Authority authorizes its Executive Director, or his 
designee, has been delegated the authority to make non-substantive changes or minor 
amendments to the IPR as he deems appropriate; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution shall be transmitted to MTC in conjunction with 
the filing of the Solano Transportation Authority application referenced herein. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
       Steve Hardy, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 

 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted by said Authority 
at the regular meeting thereof held this day of December 11, 2013. 

 
 

__________________________________ 
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 

Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 11th day of December, 
2013 by the following vote: 

Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 
 Clerk of the Board 

125



This page intentionally left blank. 

126



 

 

Regional Measure 2 
Initial Project Report (IPR) 

August 2013 

 
Project Title:   
 
 
 
 
RM2 Project No.  
 

Allocation History: 

 MTC Approval Date Amount Phase 

#4 October 2007 $8,300,000 PA/ED for I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange (Original 
allocation was $13.2M and $5.2M was transferred 
to I-80 EB Truck Scales per Allocation #6) 

#11 September 2009 $5,200,000 PA/ED for I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange 

#12 February 2010 $2,900,000 
Utility Relocation for I-80/I-680/SR12 
Interchange 

#15 December 2010 $ 7,000,000 PA/ED for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange 

#18 July 2011 $7,000,000 PA/ED for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange 

#19 February 2012 $14,280,000 
R/W Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package 

#20 June 2012   $1,500,000 PA/ED for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange 

#21 October 2012   $5,980,000 
R/W Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package 

#22 December 2012   $5,796,000 
R/W Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package 

#23 March 2013     $900,000 
Final Design (PS&E) Phase for the I-80/I-
680/SR12 Interchange – Initial Construction 
Package 

#24 May 2013 $10,400,000 
R/W Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange – 
Initial Construction Package 

#25 June 2013   $1,597,000 
Final Design (PS&E) Phase for the I-80/I-
680/SR12 Interchange –Construction Package 2 

#26 June 2013   $3,916,000 
Final Design (PS&E) Phase for the I-80/I-
680/SR12 Interchange –Construction Package 3 

                                                         Total:           $74,769,000 
       

 
 

Solano County Corridor Improvements near Interstate 
80/Interstate 680 Interchange 

7 

127



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 2 - 

 
 

Current Allocation Request: 

IPR Revision Date Amount Being 
Requested 

Phase Requested 

August 2013     $29,448,000 
Construction Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 
Interchange – Initial Construction Package (ICP) 

 
I. OVERALL PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
Project Sponsor / Co-sponsor(s) / Implementing Agency 
 
 
 
 
Project Purpose 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Project Description (please provide details, expand box as necessary) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Project Graphics to be sent electronically with This Application 

 
Impediments to Project Completion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Solano Transportation Authority is the project sponsor and implementing agency. 

The I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange experiences traffic congestion due to San Francisco Bay Area 
commuter traffic, regional traffic using the interstate system, and recreational traffic traveling between 
the San Francisco Bay Area and Lake Tahoe.  The objectives of the proposed project are to alleviate 
congestion, improve safety, and provide for existing and proposed traffic demand by upgrading the 
capacity of the freeway and completing a local roadway system that will provide local travelers 
alternatives to using the freeways for local trips.   

 

 
 The I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project proposes improvements to address traffic 
operations and congestion in the existing interchange complex, which is located in Solano County.  
Improvements being considered or cleared in the Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental 
Impact Report (EIS/EIR) and other environmental documents include the following components:  
modification of existing interchanges, adding freeway lanes, constructing new interchanges, auxiliary 
lanes, high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes and frontage roads within and adjacent to existing freeway 
rights of way, relocation of the existing westbound truck scales within the interchange area to improve 
ingress and egress of the truck traffic.   
 

The major impediment to accomplish the project completion will be securing necessary funds to 
complete the interchange improvements.  However, there are deliverable phases of this project that are 
serviceable, provide independent utility and have logical termini.  Some of these phases (as discussed 
below) can be and are being delivered by currently identified fund sources. 
 
The STA is currently delivering the I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C improvements, with the expectation that the 
I/C improvements will need to be constructed with multiple construction packages. 
 

128



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 3 - 

Operability 
 
 
 
 
 
 
II. PROJECT PHASE DESCRIPTION and STATUS 

 
Environmental –  Does NEPA Apply: X Yes  No
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Design –  

 
 

 
 

 
 
Right-of-Way Activities / Acquisition – 
 
 
 
 
 
Construction / Vehicle Acquisition -  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
III. PROJECT BUDGET  
 

 

Project Budget (Escalated to year of expenditure) 

Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – CP 1, 2, 3 
Total Amount - Escalated  

(Thousands) 
Environmental Studies & Preliminary Eng (ENV / PE / PA&ED) $29,000 
Design - Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) 6,413 
Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition (R/W) 92,837 
Construction  / Rolling Stock Acquisition (CON) 189,604 

Total Project Budget (in thousands) $317,854 
 
 
 

 
I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project -The environmental document (EIR/EIS) for the I-80/I-
680/SR12 I/C Project was approved in December 2012.  The document covers the entire project and 
as such, a Notice of Determination (NOD) has been approved for the entire project.  However, a 
Record of Decision (ROD) has been issued for the fundable first phase.   
 

Final Design for the first construction package (Initial Construction Package (ICP) was completed in 
May 2013.  Detailed preliminary engineering for I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange project started in late 
2008 and is ongoing for Construction Packages 2 and 3.   With this allocation, the Initial Construction 
Package (ICP) will proceed into the Construction Phase.  

Right-of-way acquisition for ICP started in spring 2012 and is currently underway.  Utility relocation 
plans are underway.  Right-of-way acquisition for Construction Package 2 and 3 has not started. 

It is currently envisioned that the fundable phase of the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange will be 
implemented with 7 construction packages.  The first construction package (Initial Construction 
Package (ICP)) is expected to start construction in late 2013.  Construction for Construction Packages 
2 and 3 have not been scheduled at this time. 

Caltrans will be responsible for owning and operating the mainline I/C and I-80 WB Truck Scale 
improvements. 
 

129



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 4 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Project Budget (Escalated to year of expenditure) 
Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Initial Const Package, 
aka, ICP or CP1 

Total Amount - Escalated  
(Thousands) 

Environmental Studies & Preliminary Eng (ENV / PE / PA&ED) $27,400 
Design - Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) 900 
Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition (R/W) 39,356 
Construction  / Rolling Stock Acquisition (CON) 64,860 

Total Project Budget (in thousands) $132,516 
 
 

Project Budget (Escalated to year of expenditure) 
 

Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Const Package 2 (CP2) 
Total Amount - Escalated  

(Thousands) 
Environmental Studies & Preliminary Eng (ENV / PE / PA&ED) $,696 
Design - Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) 1,597 
Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition (R/W) 6,696 
Construction  / Rolling Stock Acquisition (CON) 37,354 

Total Project Budget (in thousands) $49,343 
 
Project Budget (Escalated to year of expenditure) 

Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Const Package 3 (CP3) 
Total Amount - Escalated  

(Thousands) 
Environmental Studies & Preliminary Eng (ENV / PE / PA&ED) $6,704 
Design - Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) 3,916 
Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition (R/W) 46,785 
Construction  / Rolling Stock Acquisition (CON) 87,390 

Total Project Budget (in thousands) $144,795 
 
 
 

IV. OVERALL PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Initial Const Package, 
aka, ICP or CP1 
Phase-Milestone 

Planned (Update as Needed) 

Start Date Completion Date 

Environmental Document 06/02 (A) 12/12 (A) 

Environmental Studies, Detailed Preliminary Eng. (ENV / PE / 
PA&ED) 06/02 (A) 12/12 (A) 

Final Design - Plans, Specs. & Estimates (PS&E) 08/12 (A) 05/13 (A) 

Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition 
(R/W) 04/12 (A) 04/14 

Construction (Begin – Open for Use)  / Acquisition / Operating Service 
(CON) – ICP 10/13 12/15 

130



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 5 - 

 
Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Const Package 2 
(CP2) 
Phase-Milestone 

Planned (Update as Needed) 

Start Date Completion Date 

Environmental Document 06/02 (A) 12/12 (A) 

Environmental Studies, Detailed Preliminary Eng. (ENV / PE / 
PA&ED) 06/02 (A) 06/13 (A) 

Final Design - Plans, Specs. & Estimates (PS&E) 07/13 07/14 

Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition 
(R/W) 01/14 06/15 

Construction (Begin – Open for Use)  / Acquisition / Operating Service 
(CON) – CP2 10/15 10/17 

 
 

Phase: I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C Improvements – Const Package 3 
(CP3) 
Phase-Milestone 

Planned (Update as Needed) 

Start Date Completion Date 

Environmental Document 06/02 (A) 12/12 (A) 

Environmental Studies, Detailed Preliminary Eng. (ENV / PE / 
PA&ED) 06/02 (A) 06/13 (A) 

Final Design - Plans, Specs. & Estimates (PS&E) 07/13 05/15 

Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition 
(R/W) 01/15 06/16 

Construction (Begin – Open for Use)  / Acquisition / Operating Service 
(CON) – CP3 10/16 10/18 

 
 

 
 
V. ALLOCATION REQUEST INFORMATION 

Detailed Description of Allocation Request 
 
 
 
 

Amount being requested (in escalated dollars) $ 29,448,000 

Project Phase being requested Construction 

Are there other fund sources involved in this phase? X Yes    No 

Date of anticipated Implementing Agency Board approval the RM2 IPR 
Resolution for the allocation being requested September 2013 

Month/year being requested for MTC Commission approval of 
allocation September 2013 

 

FY 2013-14:  Construction Phase for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project – Initial Construction Package (ICP) 

131



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 6 - 

Status of Previous Allocations (if any) 
 
 
 
 
Workplan  Workplan in Alternate Format Enclosed   

 
TASK 
NO Description Deliverables 

Completion 
Date 

1 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – ICP or CP1 Draft ED 08/10 (A) 
2 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – ICP or CP1 Final ED 12/12 (A) 
3 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – ICP or CP1 Final Design 05/13 (A) 
4 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – ICP or CP1 Right of Way Acquisition 04/14 
    

5 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP2 Draft ED 08/10 (A) 
6 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP2 Final ED 12/12 (A) 
7 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP2 Final Design 06/14 
8 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP2 Right of Way Acquisition 06/15 
    

9 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP3 Draft ED 08/10 (A) 
10 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP3 Final ED 12/12 (A) 
11 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP3 Final Design 05/15 
12 I-80/I-680/SR12 I/C – CP3 Right of Way Acquisition 05/16 

    
    

 
(A) = Actual Date 

 
Impediments to Allocation Implementation 
 

 
 
 
 
 

VI. RM-2 FUNDING INFORMATION 
 
RM-2 Funding Expenditures for funds being allocated 
 
X The companion Microsoft Excel Project Funding Spreadsheet to this IPR is included. 
 
Next Anticipated RM-2 Funding Allocation Request 
 
 

 
 
 
VII. GOVERNING BOARD ACTION 

Check the box that applies:  
 
X Governing Board Resolution attached 

Work is progressing well with the previous allocations. 

No impediments.  The STA, in cooperation with Caltrans, is prepared to move expeditiously 
to complete the Construction Phase of the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project –Initial 
Construction Package (ICP).   

N/A 

132



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 7 - 

 
 Governing Board Resolution to be provided on or before: 

 
VIII. CONTACT / PREPARATION INFORMATION 

 
Contact for Applicant’s Agency 
Name:  Janet Adams 
Phone: (707) 424-6010 
Title:    Director of Projects 
E-mail: jadams@sta-snci.com 
 
Information on Person Preparing IPR 
Name:  Dale Dennis 
Phone:  (925) 595-4587 
Title:    STA Project Management Consultant 
E-mail: dodennis@dataclonemail.com 
 
Applicant Agency’s Accounting Contact  
Name:  Susan Furtado 
Phone: (707) 424-6075 
Title:    Accounting Manager 
E-mail: SFurtado@STA.local 
 
 
Revised IPR 09.28.07.doc 

133



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 1 - 

Instruction Sheet 
 
Cover Page 
 

Project Title and Number - Project name familiar with project sponsor, as displayed in the federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or other funding/planning documents. Provide RM2 project 
number for the individual project(s). 

 
Allocation History and Current Allocation Request- Include information on past allocations and current 
allocation request. Add additional entries as necessary. 

 
I. Overall Project Information 
 

Project Title- Project name familiar with project sponsor, as displayed in the federal Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) or other funding documents. If this project is subset of a larger RM2 project, 
please state and summarize overall project but fill out this report for the individual project(s). 
 
Project Sponsor/ Co-sponsor(s)/Implementing Agency- Identify Project Sponsor and any co-sponsor(s) 
as specified in statute. Identify a Lead Sponsor responsible for ensuring the delivery of the RM-2 project 
and responsible for addressing any funding shortfalls. If different from the sponsor, identify the 
Implementing Agency responsible for delivering the project. If multiple agencies identify agency 
responsibilities for delivering the project or project elements, and if necessary, specify the agency 
responsible for seeking and processing the RM2 allocation(s). 
 
Project Purpose- Describe the project purpose, including the problem being addressed and specific 
accomplishment to be achieved and resulting benefits, as well as the value of the project to the region or 
corridor, and an explanation of the project as a worthy transportation investment. 
 
Project Description- Highlight any differences or variations from the RM-2 legislated project description, 
or changes in project scope since the previous IPR. If the RM-2 funding is for a deliverable phase or 
useable segment of the larger project, the RM-2 segment should be described separately as a subset of the 
overall project description. It must be demonstrated that the RM-2 funded component or phase will result in 
an operable or useable segment. Include a summary of any prior completed phases and/or future phases or 
segments associated with the RM-2 segment. Check off whether project graphics information is included in 
the application. 

 
Impediments to Project Completion - Discussion should include, but not be limited to, the following 
potential issues that may adversely affect the proposed project or the ability of the sponsor or implementing 
agency to carry out such projects: 

 - Any uncommitted future funding needs 
 - Significant foreseeable environmental impacts/issues 
 - Community or political opposition 
 - Relevant prior project funding and implementation experience of sponsor/implementing agency 
 - Required public or private partnerships 
 - Right of way constraints 
 - Timeliness of delivery of related transportation projects 
 - Availability and timeliness of other required funding 
 - Ability to use/access other funding within required deadlines 
 - Legal impediments and any pending or threatened litigation. 
 

134



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 2 - 

Operability- Discuss ability to operate and maintain the transportation investment once completed, 
including timeframe and expected fund source and amount needed to support the continued operations and 
maintenance of the delivered project. 

 
II. Project Phase and Status 

 Describe the status of each phase of the RM-2 funded phase or operable/useable segment.  
 

• Environmental – Discuss status and type of environmental document (indicate if NEPA applies by 
checking the correct box), scheduled date of circulation of draft document and expected final 
document date.  Explanation of environmental issues requiring special attention.  Identification of 
Lead Agency under CEQA.   

 
• Design – Discuss status of project design, including identification of special design considerations, 

such as design-build or design sequencing, and any special circumstances for the design of the RM-2 
funded operable/useable segment.   

 
• Right-of-Way Activities / Acquisition – Discuss status of right of way acquisition including any 

right of way constraints for the RM-2 funded operable/useable segment.   
  

• Construction / Vehicle Acquisition / Operating Service - Discuss status or special circumstances 
for project construction, equipment / vehicle acquisition or service operations for the RM-2 funded 
operable/useable segment. 

 
 
III. Total Project Budget Information 

Provide the total cost estimates for the four phases (ENV, PS&E, R/W and CON / Operating). The 
estimate shall be in both escalated (to the year of expenditure including prior expenditures) and 
current (at time of the preparation of the IPR) dollars.  If the project is for planning activities, 
include the amount in environmental phase. 

 
 
IV. Project Schedule 

Provide planned start and end dates for key milestones of project phases (as applicable).  The RM-2 funded 
phase or component must result in a useable or operable segment. Information shall be provided by month 
and year. 

 
 
V. Allocation Request Information 

Provide a description of the phase; include an expanded description outlining the detailed scope of work, 
status of work, work products. Include any prior completed phases and/or future phases or segments 
associated with the RM-2 segment.  Indicate whether there are non-RM2 funds in the phase by checking the 
correct box. It must be demonstrated that the RM-2 funded component or phase will be fully funded and 
result in an operable or useable segment. Include details such as when the board of the Implementing 
Agency will approve the allocation request and the month/year being requested for the MTC to approve the 
request noting that this will normally take sixty days from the submission of the request. 

 
Status of Previous Allocations - Please provide an update of the previous allocations for this project or 
subproject, referencing the outcome, approval dates of important actions, and pertinent completed 
documents.   

 

135



Regional Measure 2 – INITIAL PROJECT REPORT 
 
 

   
 - 3 - 

Workplan - Either populate the table below or attach a workplan in a comparable format. If a consultant is 
being hired to complete the workplan, please indicate such and enclose a copy of that plan to MTC. If the 
workplan is to be detailed out by the Regional Measure 2 allocation, please fill out the work plan to the best 
of your knowledge and indicate when a more detailed workplan will be submitted. 

 
Impediments to Allocation Implementation - Include a summary of any impediments to complete 
the phase.  Summary should include, but not be limited to, discussion of any potential cost 
increases, significant environmental impacts/issues, community or political opposition, viability of 
the project sponsor or implementing agency, relevant prior project funding and implementation 
experience, required public or private partnerships, potential project implementation issues 
including right of way constraints, timeliness of delivery of related transportation projects, 
availability and timeliness of other required funding, ability to use/access other funding within 
required deadlines, legal impediments, and any pending or threatened litigation which might in any 
way adversely affect the proposed project or the ability of the sponsor or implementing agency to 
carry out such projects. 

 
VI. RM-2 FUNDING INFORMATION 

 
RM-2 Funding Spreadsheet - To capture the funding data for your project, you will need to refer to the 
Microsoft Excel spreadsheet that is part of this IPR. The spreadsheet comprises of five tabs that needs to be 
completed or updated. Instructions are included on the accompanying Excel file to the IPR. Confirm that 
the required fundingspreadsheet (Microsoft Excel) is completed and enclosed by checking the box. 

 
Next Anticipated RM-2 Funding Allocation Request - Summarize the approximate timing of the RM-2 
funding need.  If previously allocated RM-2 funds were not fully expended in the year for which an 
allocation was made, or there is a balance of unexpended RM-2 allocations, provide a status of the non-
expenditure of RM-2 allocations, and the expected expenditure date(s).  Explain any impacts to RM-2 
funding needs as a result of any project delays or advances. 

 
 
VII. GOVERNING BOARD ACTION 

The IPR must be approved by the board or governing body of the agency responsible for preparing and 
submitting the IPR prior to MTC approval of the IPR and allocation of funds.  Check the box on whether 
verification of the governing board action is attached. If not, indicate when the verification will be available 

 
 
VIII. CONTACT / PREPARATION INFORMATION 

Provide applicable contact information including agency, contact/project manager names, phone numbers, 
e-mail, and mailing addresses.  Also provide the date the report was prepared, agency and name of person 
preparing this report.   

 
 

136



RM-2 Initial Project Report
Committed Funding Plan Page 1 of 1

RM-ver 02

Project Title: Solano County Corridor Improvements near Interstate 80/Interstate 680 Interchange Project ID: 7
Agency: Plan Date: 31-Jul-13

Fund Source Phase Prior 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Future

Committed TOTAL

TCRP - I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange - Overall ENV 8,400 8,400
STIP - I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange - Overall ENV 400 400
TCRP - N. Conn ENV 3,000 3,000
Local - N. Conn PS&E 2,300 2,300
Local - N. Conn R/W 1,000 1,000
Local - N. Conn CON 18,900 18,900
RM2 - N. Conn ENV 2,500 2,500
RM2 - N. Conn PS&E 1,000 1,000
RM2 - N. Conn R/W 7,000 7,000
RM2 - N. Conn CON 2,300 15,200 (4,000) 13,500
RM2 - HOV Lanes ENV 3,475 1,000 4,475
RM2 - HOV Lanes PS&E 4,525 4,525
RM2 - HOV Lanes CON 2,000 (78) 1,922
CMIA - HOV Lanes CON 24,324 8,226 32,550
Federal - HOV Lanes CON 15,377 15,377
RM2 - I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange - Overall ENV 8,300 5,200 13,500
AB1171 - Interchange (ICP, CP2, CP3) ENV 7,000 7,000 1,500 15,500
AB1171 - Interchange (ICP, CP2, CP3) PS&E 78 78
AB1171 - Interchange (ICP, CP2, CP3) PS&E 822 5,512 6,334
RM2 - Interchange (ICP) R/W 2,900 10,400 13,300
AB1171 - Interchange (ICP) R/W 14,280 11,776 26,056
AB1171 - Interchange (ICP) CON 29,448 29,448
STIP (ICP) CON 11,412 11,412
CMIA (ICP) CON 24,000 24,000
Br Tolls/Fed/STIP/Local ( CP 2) R/W 6,696 6,696
Br Tolls/Fed/STIP/Local ( CP 2,3) R/W 46,785 46,785
Br Tolls/Fed/STIP/Local ( CP 2, 3) CON 37,354 87,390 124,744
TCRP - EB Truck Scales ENV 600 600
RM2 - I-80 EB Truck Scales ENV 5,200 1,000 6,200
RM2 - I-80 EB Truck Scales PS&E 16,700 (4,500) (870) (2,100) 9,230
RM2 - I-80 EB Truck Scales R/W 7,500 (2,000) 5,500
RM2 - I-80 EB Truck Scales CON 870 870
AB1171 - I-80 EB Truck Scales CON 22,583 22,583
TCIF/SHOPP CON 37,292 37,292
RM2 - FF-Vac Express Lanes ENV 1,100 15,300 16,400
RM2 - Vallejo Express Lanes ENV

Federal, State - Interchange (CP 1) CON

Local, Federal or STIP ENV 14,168 14,168
Local, Federal or STIP PS&E 122,085 122,085
Local, Federal or STIP R/W 79,485 79,485
Local, Federal or STIP CON 1,416,806 1,416,806

Prior 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Future

Committed TOTAL

8,800 3,000 9,275 7,525 83,001 15,122 42,626 17,800 81,155 88,032 42,866 46,785 1,719,934 2,165,921
Comments:

RM2 - Initial Project Report

FUNDING SOURCE STILL TO BE DETERMINED (LIST POTENTIAL SOURCES THAT WILL LIKELY BE PURSUED) 

Enter all funding for the project - both Committed and Uncommitted.  Enter amounts in thousands and escalated to the year of funding

UNCOMMITTED FUNDING PLAN (NON-PROGRAMMED/ALLOCATED, BUT PLANNED FUNDING)

COMMITTED FUNDING PLAN

(Amounts Escalated in Thousands)
TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING PLAN

Eligible Phases:  ENV (or PA&ED), PS&E, R/W or CON.  For planning activites use ENV.  For Vehicles, Equipment or Operating use CON. OK to use CT R/W SUP or CT CON SUP for Caltrans support, but not necessary (optional).

Solano Transportation Agency
TOTAL PROJECT:  COMMITTED + UNCOMMITTED

TOTAL PROJECT:  COMMITTED + UNCOMMITTED

137



This page intentionally left blank. 

138



Agenda Item 11.C 
December 12, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 

Engineering 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
Bay Trail Project 
The San Francisco Bay Trail Project is a planned 500-mile, multiple-use trail administered by the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG). When complete, the trail will encircle San 
Francisco Bay, linking the shorelines of 47 cities and nine counties. Currently, 300 miles of Bay 
Trail are complete. 
 
In partnership with the State Coastal Conservancy, the Bay Trail Project is soliciting grant 
applications for trail planning and construction projects to complete gaps in the Bay Trail. 
Approximately $2.4 million is available from Proposition 84 to fund projects that complete Bay 
Trail gaps, provide strong leverage with local matching contributions, incorporate partnerships, 
encourage creative solutions and demonstrate readiness. 

 
Solano County Bay Trail Project Segments 
The City of Benicia and City of Vallejo have existing Bay Trail project alignments planned. 
Within the City of Vallejo, the Bay Trail coincides with another regional trail system connecting 
Napa County and Solano County called the Vine Trail. The Vine Trail is also a multiple-use trail 
that is administered by the Vine Trail Coalition. Its endpoints are the Vallejo Ferry Terminal and 
City of Calistoga. At present, the City of Vallejo is coordinating with the Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA), Bay Trail, and Vine Trail Coalition staff to develop a feasibility study and 
preliminary engineering to deliver both the Bay Trail and Vine Trail segments within City of 
Vallejo city limits. 
 
Discussion: 
The Bay Trail Project has offered an opportunity to apply for a $50,000 grant through their grant 
program to help fund the "Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and 
Preliminary Engineering." The Vine Trail Coalition has also offered up to $50,000 to support the 
pursuit of the document through a cooperative agreement. Together, a total of approximately 
$100,000 is available to complete the document.  
 
To obtain the grant funding, STA staff proposes to submitted a grant application to the Bay Trail 
Project in the amount of $50,000 by November 18, 2013. This deadline is per the request of Bay 
Trail Project staff in order to meet their Steering Committee meeting of December 12, 2013. 
STA staff has agreed to complete the feasibility study as the project sponsor on behalf of the City 
of Vallejo, per written letter submitted to STA on August 27, 2013 (Attachment A). 
 

139



As part of the grant application requirements, a resolution authorizing a grant application to the 
Bay Trail is required. Attachment B is the resolution. 
 
There are many existing facilities in City of Vallejo that can be connected through these gap 
closure projects. To determine the scope of the project and costs involved with constructing a 
bicycle and pedestrian path that is consistent with the Bay Trail and Vine Trail alignments, a 
feasibility study is needed. 
 
It is the City of Vallejo's intent to sponsor the project based on the feasibility study findings. 
Based on the findings and timing, City of Vallejo staff has expressed the interest in evaluating 
the opportunity for STA to act as the Project Sponsor on a phase-by-phase basis. The project 
schedule and scope can be found in Attachment C. 
 
The STA TAC reviewed this item at their November 20, 2013 meeting and unanimously 
approved the recommendation. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None to the STA General Fund.  Initial funding for this preliminary work is to be funded by the 
San Francisco Bay Trail and the Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition for a total of $100,000. 
 
Recommendation:   
Approve the following: 

1. Approve the Scope of Work and Budget for the development of the Solano County Bay 
Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering;  

2. Authorize a grant application to the Bay Trail Project for the amount of $50,000 for the 
Vine Trail Project; 

3. Approve Resolution No. 2013-28 authorizing an application for Local Assistance 
Funding from the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) for a Trail Feasibility 
and Implementation Study for the San Francisco Bay Trail Project; 

4.  Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with ABAG and supporting 
agencies to accept the Bay Trail grant if awarded; 

5. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the Vine Trail Coalition 
for the amount of $50,000 for the Vine Trail Project; 

6. Authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for Proposals for the Solano County 
Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering; and 

7. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with selected consultant to 
develop the Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering for an amount not to exceed $100,000. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Letter from City of Vallejo 
B. STA Resolution No. 2013-28 Authorizing an Application for Local Assistance from 

ABAG 
C. Scope of Work for Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and 

Preliminary Engineering 

140



141

SWoo
Text Box
Attachment A



This page intentionally left blank. 

142



ATTACHMENT B 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-28 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SOLANO 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR LOCAL 

ASSISTANCE FUNDING FROM THE ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA 
GOVERNMENTS (ABAG) FOR A TRAIL FEASIBLITY AND IMPLEMENTATION 

STUDY FOR THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL PROJECT UNDER THE 
CALIFORNIA CLEAN WATER, CLEAN AIR, SAFE NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS, AND 

COASTAL PROTECTION ACT OF 2002 
 

WHEREAS, the California Clean Water, Clean Air, Safe Neighborhood Parks, and Coastal 
Protection Act of 2002 provides grant funding to conserve natural resources, to acquire and 
improve state and local parks, and to preserve historical and cultural resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, in partnership with the State Coastal Conservancy, the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) is soliciting applications for grant funds for trail planning and 
construction projects to complete gaps in the Bay Trail Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, local, state or federal government agencies, special districts and qualified 
non-profit organizations are eligible to receive grant funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the grant program favors construction of high-priority Bay Trail segments that 
offer matching or in-kind contributions, innovative solutions, partnerships, and employment  of 
the California Conservation Corps or local corps, or which offer planning and design or 
technical studies that overcome obstacles to future trail developments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant will enter into a contract with ABAG for the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, project development for the Wetlands Edge Bay Trail was added  to the Capital 
Program for FY 2007-08 as a result of Resolution 2007-147. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Solano 
Transportation Authority hereby: 
 

1.  Approves filing an application for local assistance funds from ABAG for the San 
Francisco Bay Trail Project under the California Clean Water, Clean  Air, Safe 
Neighborhood  Parks and Coastal Protection Act of 2002; called the Kensington 
Way, Kimberly Park Wetlands Bay Trail  and 

 
2.  Appoints the Executive Director or his designee as the agent of the Solano 

Transportation Authority to conduct all negotiations and execute and submit 
all documents, including but not limited to applications, agreements, 
amendments, payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for 
completion of the aforementioned project. 

 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Steve Hardy, Chair 
       Solano Transportation Authority 

 
143



 

 

 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted by said Authority at the regular 
meeting thereof held this day of December 11, 2013. 

 
 

      __________________________________ 
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
 
Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 11th day of December, 2013 by the 
following vote: 

Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 
 Clerk of the Board 
 

144



 City of Vallejo - SR 29 and SR 37 corridor - Vallejo Ferry Terminal to Solano County Line 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Project 

October 30, 2013 

 Solano Transportation Authority | Page 1 of 5 
 

Attachment C 
Project Scope of Work 

Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail 
Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering 

 
  On Route State Route (SR) 29 and SR 37 corridor 

  Between Vallejo Ferry Terminal 

  And  Solano County Line 

 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has agreed to sponsor the Solano Vine Trail 
Feasibility Study on behalf of the City of Vallejo. City of Vallejo staff is in the process of 
preparing a letter to formally request this of the STA.  
 
The below scope of work reflects the anticipated process and deliverables for the STA Solano 
County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering. 
 
VICINITY MAP 

 
 
  

Two Study Areas Identified: 

1. Area #1 - Connection of 
Existing Bike Path on 
South side of Hwy 37 to  
proposed Napa Valley 
Vine Trail and SF Bay 
Trail Alignment 

2. Area #2 - Connection of 
SF Bay Trail with 
Existing Bike Path 

Solano County Line 

Vallejo Ferry Terminal 

Napa Valley Vine Trail alignment in American Canyon 

SF Bay Trail 
(Proposed) 

SF Bay Trail 
(Existing) 

Existing Bike Path 

Area #1 

Area #2 

145



 City of Vallejo - SR 29 and SR 37 corridor - Vallejo Ferry Terminal to Solano County Line 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Project 

October 30, 2013 

 Solano Transportation Authority | Page 2 of 5 
 

 
RESPONSIBLE PARTIES/STAKEHOLDERS 
The STA with the assistance  of a consulting firm will perform this work. Scoping and review of 
the study will be coordinated through a Stakeholder group of 7-8 participants. Changes to the 
scope of work may be necessary to integrate a comprehensive outreach approach suggested by 
the Stakeholders: 

1. STA 
2. City of Vallejo 
3. Bay Trail Project 
4. Vine Trail Coalition 

 
OVERALL PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

• Define Purpose and Need for project 
• Identify specific route alternatives and feasibility of each alternative in two key areas 

identified through existing pre-planning completed by the Bay Trail Project and Napa 
Vine Trail Coalition 

• Define design concept for alignment alternatives 
• Identify project costs, scope, and schedule 
• Identify phasing of the project 
• Identify right-of-way approach 
• Define ownership and maintenance responsibilities 

 
1. PROJECT INITIATION 

Task 1.1 Project Kick-off Meeting 
• STA will hold a kick-off meeting with Stakeholder group to discuss project 

expectations, budget, scope, and schedule. Meeting summary will be documented 
• Responsible Party: STA 

 
Task 1.2 Staff Coordination 

• Weekly conference call project team meetings with consultants to ensure good 
communication on upcoming tasks and to make sure the project remains on time 
and within budget. Stakeholders will be invited to major team meetings. 

• Responsible Party: STA 
 
 

Task 1.3 Agreement for STA Project Sponsorship in Coordination with City of Vallejo 
• Complete an agreement process for designation of STA as project sponsor 

Responsible Party: STA and City of Vallejo 
 

Task 1.4 Identify Existing Conditions 
• Gather existing conditions and background data by identifying opportunities and 

constraints as well as standards that should be used to guide preparation of the plan 

146



 City of Vallejo - SR 29 and SR 37 corridor - Vallejo Ferry Terminal to Solano County Line 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Project 

October 30, 2013 

 Solano Transportation Authority | Page 3 of 5 
 

such as existing and planned land uses, demographics, and travel connections within 
the City of Vallejo. 

• Inventory and evaluate existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
Responsible Party: STA 

 
Task Deliverable 
1.1 Meeting Notes 
1.2 Weekly meeting notes 
1.3 Executed Consultant Contract 
1.4 Existing Conditions Report 

 
2. PUBLIC OUTREACH 

Note: All meetings will be publically noticed to allow for community participation. 
 
Task 2.1 Stakeholder Workshop #1 

• This workshop will introduce the project to the stakeholder group, define project 
parameters, inform the community of project opportunities and constraints, and 
solicit opinions from the stakeholder group and community participants to shape. 
Present option to host a walking tour for following meeting. Task 3.1, Develop 
Alignment/Design Concept 
Responsible Party: STA 
 

Task 2.2 Stakeholder Workshop #2 
• Use of maps and graphics on a display board and PowerPoint to present the feasible 

alignment and design concept. Stakeholder group will decide on preferred 
alternatives. Continue to solicit feedback from the stakeholder group and 
community to shape Task 3.3, Draft Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility 
Study and Preliminary Engineering 
Responsible Party: STA 
 

Task 2.3 Stakeholder Workshop #3 
• Present Draft Study and Report and continue to solicit feedback for public 

comments to shape Task 3.3, Draft Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Feasibility 
Study and Preliminary Engineering and Task 3.6, Draft Solano County Bay Trail and 
Vine Trail Feasibility Study and Preliminary Engineering 
Responsible Party: STA 

 
 
3. FEASIBILITY 

Task 3.1 Develop Alignment Options in 2 target areas 
• Based on the existing conditions report and the stakeholder/community input from 

Workshop #1, a concept alignments will be developed with design options 
identified. 

147



 City of Vallejo - SR 29 and SR 37 corridor - Vallejo Ferry Terminal to Solano County Line 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Project 

October 30, 2013 

 Solano Transportation Authority | Page 4 of 5 
 

Responsible Party: STA 
 

Task 3.2 Develop Project Estimate 
• Work with STA Legal Counsel to review ROW 
• Workshop #2 to select alignment and design alternatives 

Responsible Party: STA 
 
Improvements    
 Lane Miles ROW Estimate 
Total Lane Miles of Improvements    
Class I Multi-use Path    
Bicycle Lanes (without road widening)    
Bicycle Lanes (with road widening)    
Pedestrian Facilities    
 
A more detailed Project Estimate sheet will be developed to include segments and endpoints 
for improvement, total length, width, construction cost, environmental/preliminary engineering 
cost, PS&E cost, and construction management cost information. 
 
4. IMPLEMENTATION 

Task 4.1 Funding Strategy and Grant Request 
• Develop list of potential funding sources 

Responsible Party: STA 
 

5. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 
Task 5.1 Identify Project Engineer/Manager to Sponsor Delivery of Project 

• Discuss and select an agency to sponsor delivery of environmental clearance and 
construction for Solano Vine Trail Project 

Responsible Party: Stakeholder Group 
 
Task 5.2 Prepare Supporting Documentation 

• Provide resolutions of support 
• Provide letters of support 

Responsible Party: Stakeholder Group 
 
 

6. CONCLUSION 
Task 6.1 Prepare Final Document 

• Complete final document based on stakeholder workshop meetings #1 and #2 
• Workshop #3 to review and approve final study 

Responsible Party: STA 
 

 

148



 City of Vallejo - SR 29 and SR 37 corridor - Vallejo Ferry Terminal to Solano County Line 
Solano County Bay Trail and Vine Trail Project 

October 30, 2013 

 Solano Transportation Authority | Page 5 of 5 
 

Proposed Project Timeline 
Task Deliverable Timeframe 
Task 1. Project Initiation Existing Conditions Report January 2014 
Task 2. Public Outreach Alignment/Design Options and Phases January - March 2014 
Task 3. Feasibility Cost Estimates March 2014 
Task 4. Implementation Funding Strategy and Grant Request List Late March 2014 
Task 5. Project Management 
and Administration 

Identify Project Sponsor to deliver environmental 
and construction phase of project  

April 2014 

Task 6. Conclusion Final Document May 2014 
 
 

149



This page intentionally left blank. 

150



Agenda Item 12.A 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  November 25, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Jessica McCabe, Project Assistant 
RE: Public-Private Partnership (P3) Update  
 
 
Background: 
Defining Public-Private Partnerships (P3) 
According to the National Council for Public-Private Partnerships (P3), a P3 is a contractual 
agreement between a public agency and a private sector entity, through which the skills and 
assets of each sector are shared in delivering a service or facility.  In addition to the sharing of 
resources, each party shares in the risks and rewards potential. 
 
P3's are often distinguished between governments that use the traditional "Design-Bid-Build" 
model of public infrastructure investment and those governments that create partnerships to 
transfer various responsibilities to the private sector, such as project design, construction, 
finance, maintenance, and operation. 
 
P3's can accomplish the following objectives: 

• Make possible major infrastructure investments that might not otherwise receive 
financing. 

• Accelerate projects into construction compared to traditional delivery methods. 
• Transfer Prudent Risk to the Private Sector 
• Capture Private Sector Innovation 
• Promote Life Cycle Efficiencies/Performance 
• Create Competitive Tension to Drive Value 
• Leverage existing funding 
• Spur economic growth 

 
Solano County P3 Feasibility Study Focus 
For Solano County, this study's focus will be on developing and maintaining transit facilities of 
regional significance along the I-80 corridor through P3s.  The intent is to explore traditional 
P3s, but also look at more global opportunities associated with transit facilities to identify 
opportunities to attract private investment to partner with local project sponsors and transit 
operators. 
 
Public-Private Partnership Feasibility Study: Scope and Development Timeline 
STA staff worked with various public works staff and transit staff as part of a new Public-Private 
Partnership Technical Committee and discussed their interests in studying a variety of aspects of 
P3s to advance the delivery of future transit center construction phases as well as finalize a scope 
of work. The success of the study's scope of work will be based in part on how willing project 
sponsors are to evaluating the potential for and reality of P3 financing for this set of transit 
facilities and potentially incorporate these findings into future project designs and project 

151



delivery partnerships.  STA staff anticipates working with a P3 Policy Committee comprised of 
Board Members, City Managers and Project Management staff to evaluate political feasibility of 
P3 recommendations as the study develops, targeting STA Board review by December 9, 2013. 
 
P3 Consultant Contract 
On July 11, 2012, the STA Board approved a budget for the P3 study of $150,000 of State 
Transit Assistance Funds (STAF), carrying over the prior year’s budgeted amount of $150,000.  
On June 8, 2012, the STA released an RFP for P3 Feasibility consulting services matching this 
approved budget.  On August 30, 2012 the STA Board authorized the Executive Director to enter 
into contract for the P3 study in an amount of $150,000.  Six (6) transit sites were to be included 
in the P3 Feasibility study, under the terms of the contract:  

• Vacaville Transportation Center 
• Curtola Parkway and Lemon Street Transit Center 
• Fairfield Transportation Center 
• Fairfield/Vacaville Train Station 
• Dixon Multimodal Transportation Center 
• Suisun/Fairfield Train Station  
 

At the January 29, 2013 SolanoExpress Intercity Transit Consortium meeting, committee 
members from the City of Fairfield, SolTrans, and the City of Benicia requested that the Red Top 
Road Park and Ride Lot, the Vallejo Transit Center and the Benicia Industrial Park Transit Hub 
be added to the P3 Feasibility Study.  At the March 29, 2013 City Managers meeting, Vacaville’s 
City Manager requested that the Vacaville Transit Center (at East Monte Vista) also be added to 
the P3 Feasibility Study.  This brought the total to ten (10) transit sites that would be included in 
the study.  Based on the additional transit sites being added to the P3 study and the associated 
work involved with data collection and site visits, KPMG provided an estimate of what this 
additional work would cost, along with related changes to scope of work, in the attached 
amendment letter (Attachment A).  At the April 10, 2013 Board meeting, the STA Board 
approved a contract amendment for KPMG of $50,400 for an amount not-to-exceed $200,400 to 
cover these additional services. 
 
Discussion: 
Between April 12th and April 19th, STA and KPMG staff conducted site visits to each of the 
transit centers, to help integrate the transit center plans and objectives for each jurisdiction into 
the P3 Feasibility Study.  At each site, STA and KPMG met with city staff to discuss potential 
P3 opportunities that could benefit each of the transit centers.  These tours helped to inform the 
most current quantitative and qualitative data for the Request for Information (RFI), market 
sounding and financial analysis worksteps carried out by KPMG staff.  Following the transit site 
tours, KMPG circulated draft RFIs for each of the cities to review and provide feedback.   
 
Once the RFIs were finalized, KPMG began implementation of their market sounding strategy 
(Attachment B).  The market sounding involved engaging private sector market participants and 
presenting each with the RFIs.  Once RFIs were reviewed, KPMG coordinated and facilitated 
market sounding conference calls with private market participants and STA staff. The result of 
the market sounding exercise included direct market feedback that was presented to the City 
Managers at their October 23, 2013 meeting.   
 
Based on the revised schedule (Attachment C), next steps will include KPMG submitting a Final 
Suitability and Screening Report, a draft Market Sounding Report, and meeting with individual 
City Managers in November to present results of these reports.  Based on feedback provided at 

152



the individual meetings, KPMG will complete a draft P3 Feasibility Report and Implementation 
Strategy (for Phase II).  KPMG will also provide and an overview of the market sounding results 
and discuss Phase II implementation options at the December 11, 2013 Board meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The total cost for the Feasibility Study is $200,400 funded by State Transit Assistance Funds 
(STAF). 
 
Local Preference Policy: 
This contract is not subject to the Local Preference Goal due to the source of funds being used 
for the study. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachments: 

A. KPMG Amendment Letter #1 for P3 Feasibility Study, 4-2-2013 
B. Draft RFI and Market Sounding Strategy, 3-20-2013 
C. Revised P3 Feasibility Study Schedule, 10-31-2013 

 
 

153



This page intentionally left blank. 

154



155

jmccabe
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

jmccabe
Typewritten Text



Mr. Daryl Halls 
First Amendment to Contract for P3 Feasibility Study 

April 2, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

 
The tasks associated with this First Amendment are described below: 
 
Stage 4 Tasks Activity Outcome 
Revenue options Conduct review of potential alternative 

revenue sources, including: 
 Confirm STA policies and authority to 

pursue alternative revenue sources 
 Analyze the general market and economic 

conditions of the project’s market area, 
focusing on those aspects that are most 
relevant to the success of Alternative 
Revenue Sources 

Summary of suitable alternative 
revenue sources for the project. 

 
Stage 6 Tasks  Activity Outcome 
Financial analysis Quantify the potential financial/funding 

benefits from options identified 
 

Estimated financial/funding 
benefits of options 

P3 Steering 
Committee Meeting 

Presentation of draft Feasibility Report Collect comments on draft 
analysis 

Draft report Draft analysis report including 
 Objectives 
 Approach 
 Definition of scope 
 Definition of delivery options 
 Risk analysis 
 Alternative Revenues 
 Procurement plan 

Deliverable 4 to STA: 
Draft final deliverable 

 
To accommodate the changes in tasks and level of effort to incorporate the four (4) additional transit 
centers and site visits into the P3 Feasibility Study, KPMG’s compensation shall be increased by 
$50,400, amending the amount of this Contract to $200,400.  Further, the term of this Contract is 
extended through December 31, 2013.   

156



Mr. Daryl Halls 
First Amendment to Contract for P3 Feasibility Study 

April 2, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Changes to our Cost/Fee Proposal, as noted in Table B-1 of Section B of Exhibit B, shall be amended 
as follows: 

Stage Milestone Action Progress % 
 Progress 
Payments  

     
1 Project kick off 

meeting 
Establish objectives  Completed  Completed

1 Introduction to P3 Workshop and meetings with STA staff and stakeholder on P3 
models and lessons learned.  

 Completed  Completed

Submit draft deliverable for comment and review.  Completed  Completed

1 Meeting with 
Steering Committee: 
P3s and Transit 

Deliverable 1: Submit summary of P3 understanding and 
lessons learned to Steering committee 

 Completed  Completed

3 Potential P3 partners Submit draft RFI and market sounding strategy to STA staff 
for review and comment.  Initiate informal market sounding.  

 Completed  Completed

  Contract Compensation $150,000 
  Amendment #1 Compensation $50,400 

1-7 Completion of Stages 
1-7 Milestones 

Total Compensation 
$200,400 

   Less:  Invoice Submitted 1/9/2013 for Stage 1 
 Less:  Invoice Submitted 3/20/13 for Stage 3 (Potential  

Partners) 
($22,500) 
($30,000) 

  Remaining Contract Value    $147,900 
2 Suitability assessment Submit draft report of suitability and screening outcomes to 

STA staff for review and comment. 
40% $59,160 

3 Meeting with 
Steering Committee: 
Suitability 

Deliverable 2 & 3: Present Suitability and screening 
assessment report and RFI strategy presentation to 
Steering committee 

25% $36,975 
4 Revenue, funding and 

financing 
Submit draft summary of suitable alternative revenues, funding 
and financing approaches 10% $14,790 

5 Risk allocation Submit draft summary of delivery options and key project risks 
10% $14,790 

6 Feasibility study report Submit draft feasibility report to STA staff 
10% $14,790 

7 Implementation Submit draft procurement schedule and implementation 
strategy to STA staff for review and comment. 

    
7 Meeting with Advisory 

Committees to present 
draft report 

Presentation to STA Advisory Committee’s and Steering 
committee 

    
7 Final feasibility study 

with review changes 
Submit and present final deliverable to STA Board 

5% $7,395 
  Subtotal – Remaining Contract Value 100% $147,900 
  Invoices Submitted for Stage 1 and Stage 3 $52,500 

1-7 Completion of Stages 
1-7 Milestones 

 
Total Compensation $200,400 

157



158



Solano Transportation Authority  
Public-Private Partnership Feasibility Study 
DRAFT RFI and Market Sounding Strategy, Private Sector Participants and Project Schedule 
 

1 
 

 

RFI Strategy 

BACKGROUND 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) engaged KPMG Corporate Finance LLC (KPMG) as advisors to 
perform a Public-Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study on nine of its member municipality’s transit 
center projects.  KPMG is assisting the STA to understand the private sector’s interest levels in the 
transit center projects, and to analyze how the use of P3’s or other commercial arrangements could 
accelerate project delivery, lower operations and maintenance (O&M) expenses, and/or generate 
alternative revenues for these projects.  Part of this initiative includes an informal market sounding 
exercise which involves a developing a Request for Information (RFI) and engaging in discussions with a 
selection of potential private sector service providers.   Marketplace views will be collected regarding: 

■ Contract length and performance review points;  
■ Risk transfer around revenue, cost and performance; and  
■ Incentives and contractual mechanisms to encourage investment. 
 
The informal market sounding will occur prior to a formal procurement stage. 

OBJECTIVES 
The STA’s objectives for the RFI are to gather direct market feedback on potential commercial 
structures, alternative revenues, O&M savings or service enhancements, and other innovate concepts at 
the nine transit centers.  This direct market feedback will support the STA’s objective to understand 
current information about the market’s appetite for risk transfer, preferred structures, potential 
implementation challenges, and market interest in these projects. 

RFI PROCESS 
On behalf of the STA, KPMG will lead the RFI process by engaging interested private sector market 
participants (approximately 4 to 6 firms) and presenting each with a RFI Teaser.  The Teaser document 
provides an overview of each transit center’s current operations, longer-range development plans, and 
highlights a preliminary set of revenue and O&M opportunities for each transit center.  KPMG will 
discuss five main topics with the interested participants regarding their views on the feasibility of 
various revenue, cost savings or development opportunities.  The results of this market sounding 
exercise will include direct market feedback that will be presented to the STA and its Steering 
Committee. 

RFI Teaser 
The RFI Teaser will be presented to the market participants ahead of scheduled meetings to 
provide them time to review and assess potential revenue and cost savings opportunities, which 
generally include: 

1. Operations and Maintenance 

159

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



Solano Transportation Authority  
Public-Private Partnership Feasibility Study 
DRAFT RFI and Market Sounding Strategy, Private Sector Participants and Project Schedule 
 

2 
 

2. Parking Fees 
3. Solar Photovoltaic Facilities 
4. Advertising and Naming Rights 
5. Transit-Oriented Development 

RFI Participants 
KPMG and STA will agree on a selection of market participants that will be engaged in the RFI 
process. The market participants should include a cross-section of disciplines such as O&M 
providers, naming rights sales, advertising companies, and/or real estate developers. A draft list 
of market participants is provided in Attachment A: Potential Private Sector Participants.  

Key Considerations for Discussion 
KPMG will present the STA’s objectives to the market participants and discuss the following 
topics: overall interest in the projects, roles and responsibilities, commercial feasibility, risk 
allocation, and funding and financing options.  Discussions on these key areas will gauge market 
interest in opportunities at the nine transit centers. 

- Overall Interest. KPMG will inquire about the participants overall perspective on the 
projects.  Given that the participants specialize in industries related to the preliminary 
revenue and O&M opportunities, their experience and insight into important 
considerations such as delivery options, balancing project risks, revenues and costs will 
be useful in understanding how the market might respond to formal procurement(s) for 
these STA projects.  These discussions will also provide the STA with information about 
how to enhance market interest and competition.  
 

- Roles and Responsibilities.  Discussions around each transit center’s unique needs will 
be helpful in determining the potential roles and responsibilities of a service provider at 
the respective projects.   
 

- Commercial Feasibility.  This area addresses potential structures and other commercial 
arrangements that the market considers suitable for each project.  KPMG will gather 
information on the type of structures (e.g., DBFOM, leases, O&M or revenue contracts) 
that the market would consider for the transit centers.   
 

- Risk Allocation.  To understand how the market views risk sharing between a private 
sector operator and the municipalities, KPMG will engage the participants in discussions 
about allocation of various risks, including costs, performance, and revenue risks.  
Understanding this aspect will help to determine how risks might be shared and provide 
insight into any future value-for-money assessments.  
 

- Funding and Financing Opportunities.  To understand potential private sector financing 
options for the transit centers, KPMG will obtain market perspectives about which 

160



Solano Transportation Authority  
Public-Private Partnership Feasibility Study 
DRAFT RFI and Market Sounding Strategy, Private Sector Participants and Project Schedule 
 

3 
 

commercial structures are suited to attract private sector capital.  Additionally, KPMG 
would explore public funding sources, such as state, local and federal funds that have 
been used for similar projects.  As an example, renewable energy tax credits could 
possibly attract private capital. 

Presentation of Results 
Based on discussions with the market participants, KPMG will report results and assist the STA 
to match the market sounding findings to their objectives and begin to prioritize its projects.  
Feedback from the market will also be used to inform screening of the projects for risks, issues 
and opportunities in the areas of acceptability, operations / interface, implementation, timing / 
readiness / phasing, and financing. The results of the market sounding will be presented to STA’s 
Steering Committee to inform discussions about the market participant’s perspectives on 
various commercial structures and opportunities for private sector participation at the transit 
center projects.  

 

  

161



P3 Feasibility Study Update Schedule        Attachment C 
10-31-2013 

 
 

 
 

Milestone Action Revised 
Scheduled Date Notes 

Ten (10) Transit Center Site 
Visits and Final Data Collection  

In-person meetings, project site visits, continuation of RFI data 
collection from STA staff. (3-day visit)  

Week of April 15, 
2013  Completed 

Draft Suitability and Screening 
Report 

Provided initial assessment of opportunities for each of the 10 
transit centers 

July 12, 2013 Completed 

Finalize RFI  
RFI Teasers were reviewed and finalized by city staff and 
presented to market sounding participants for the market 
sounding  

August 2013 Completed 

Market Sounding  Conduct informal market sounding with selected private sector 
participants for each of the opportunities identified 

September and 
October 2013 Completed  

Market Sounding Presentation to 
City Managers 

Presented preliminary results of the market sounding to City 
Managers  

October 23, 2013 Completed 

Final Suitability and Screening 
Report Submit revised Suitability and Screening Report to STA staff 

Week of 
November 4, 2013  

Draft Market Sounding Report Submit draft Market Sounding Report to STA staff for review 
and comment 

Week of 
November 4, 2013  

Key Findings for Transit Centers Provide City Staff with one-page findings on each transit center 
Week of 

November 4, 2013  

Additional Task: Individual 
Meetings with City Managers 

Present detailed results and discussion with City Managers on 
opportunities at their transit centers 

November and 
December 2013 

Three meetings 
planned 

Feasibility Report and 
Implementation Strategy  

Submit draft Feasibility Report and Implementation Strategy to 
STA Staff for comment/review based on feedback from City 
Managers 

Week of 
December 2, 2013  

STA Board Presentation  Present findings for the STA P3 Feasibility Study and 
Implementation Plan to STA Board  

Week of 
December 9, 2013  

Feasibility Report and 
Implementation Strategy 

Submit revised Feasibility Report and Implementation Strategy 
to STA Staff based on comments 

Week of 
December 16, 

2013  

162



Agenda Item 12.B 
December 11, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  November 30, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE: I-80 Ramp Metering Implementation  
  
 
Background: 
On July 10, 2013, the STA Board approved the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 
(MTC) I-80 Ramp Metering Study and Implementation Plan.  The Plan was the result of two 
years of collaboration between the STA, local agencies, Caltrans, and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) through the Solano Highways Partnership (SoHIP). 
The Study and Plan analyzes ramp metering impacts and benefits along the I-80 Corridor, 
provides a staging plan to implement meters, and recommend mitigations to reduce impacts on 
city streets and county roads.  The plan was developed to guide the implementation for ramp 
metering in Solano County on I-80 before metering lights are activated.   
 
The Plan identified three segments in Solano County along I-80 to have ramp meters activated in 
phases.  The first activation phase includes the eastbound segment of the corridor between Red 
Top Road and North Texas Street.  Ramp meters included in the first phase are anticipated to be 
activated by Caltrans in February of 2014.   
 
As part of the first steps outlined in the Implementation Plan, MTC’s consultant, Kettleson and 
Associates, has developed a draft Existing Conditions Report.  The document includes current 
traffic data related to on-ramps and freeway connectors included in the first phase segment.  The 
purpose of the Report is to document existing conditions to measure the metering light 
performance in the near future.  In addition, the Report provides the basis for hours of metering 
operation during the weekday period, including Fridays before a long weekend (e.g. Memorial 
Day Weekend).  On September 12th, the SoHIP met to discuss the report initial findings for 
recommended ramp metering operations.  The participants agreed by general consensus on two 
fundamental aspects to the initial metering implementation: 1) Red light signalization should be 
governed by the flow of the freeway and not a static time and 2) I-680 Northbound Connector 
Ramp to I-80 Eastbound should not be activated at this time, but will need to be re-evaluated as 
part of Phase II Implementation.   
 
Discussion: 
The SoHIP had a follow up meeting on November 14th to discuss logistics for metering 
activation.  Previously, Caltrans and MTC were working to activate the ramp meters in January 
2014; however, Caltrans has additional data collection anticipated for establishing metering 
thresholds for red light activation.  This effort will push back the meter activation to late 
February 2014.  The SoHIP agreed to the recommendation to have the meters activated from 3-7 
p.m. Monday through Thursday, with the meters resting in solid green unless the freeway 
congestion merits red light activation.  This is anticipated to occur only on Thursday and Friday 
evenings.  There was also consensus for the meters to be activated an hour earlier on Fridays (2-7 
p.m.).  On Fridays before a three day holiday, the group agreed to keep the metering lights 
activated an hour later (2-8 p.m.).  

163



MTC and Caltrans are invited to attend the January 8, 2014 STA Board meeting to discuss their 
analysis and metering rate plan for the first phase in greater detail.  This is the first step in a 
much larger plan for a public information campaign regarding the ramp metering lights.  Public 
Information Officers from the City of Fairfield, Caltrans, MTC and STA will coordinate on press 
releases and social media to provide advance notice and contact information for public questions 
in early February.  STA staff will continue to provide regular updates to the STA Board on the 
progress of the ramp metering effort between now and then.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No impact to the STA General Fund, the consultant work is being funded by MTC through 
federal cycle funds.   
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
 

164



Agenda Item 12.C 
December 12, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 

 
DATE:  November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: Active Transportation Program Overview 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
Active Transportation Program 
On September 26, 2013 the Governor signed legislation creating the Active Transportation  
Program (ATP) (Senate Bill 99, Chapter 359, and Assembly Bill 101, Chapter 354). The goals of 
this nearly $130 million program are to:  

• Increase the proportion of biking and walking trips 
• Increase safety for non-motorized users 
• Increase mobility for non-motorized users  
• Advance the efforts of regional agencies to achieve greenhouse gas reduction goals 
• Enhance public health, including the reduction of childhood obesity through the use of 

projects eligible for Safe Routes to Schools Program funding 
• Ensure disadvantaged communities fully share in program benefits (25% of program) 
• Provide a broad spectrum of projects to benefit many types of active transportation users 

 
Active Transportation Consolidation of Multiple Statewide Funding Programs 
 Transportation Alternatives 
 Recreational Trails 
 Safe Routes to Schools 
 Bicycle Transportation Account (BTA) 
 Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation Act 
 
The initial program is anticipated for implementation in Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 or FY 2014-
15. At present, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) is leading the effort to define 
the program guidelines through a series of working group meetings open to the public. Primary 
attendees and participants of these meetings are transportation policy-making, planning, and 
project implementation agencies. This report details the schedule for development of the ATP 
programming & allocations process as well as its guidelines.  
 
Discussion: 
Annual Program 
Approximately $120M - $130M will be available annually. The ATP calls for Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations (MPOs) to administer a portion of the funding. Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) is one of the nine bay area counties within the San Francisco Bay Area MPO, 
called Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). As the Congestion Management 
Agency (CMA) for Solano County, STA will be responsible for implementation of the program 
at the local countywide level. In anticipation of this, STA staff has been an active participant at 
the ATP working group meetings.  
 

165



ATP Guideline Development 
As the first step in developing this program, CTC staff will draft guidelines in  
consultation with an “Active Transportation Program Workgroup.” Pursuant to statute, the  
workgroup will include representatives of government agencies and stakeholders with expertise  
in pedestrian and bicycle issues including the Safe Routes to Schools program. The purpose of  
the workgroup is to provide guidance in areas such as: 

• Development of program guidelines and subsequent revisions to guidelines 
• Program schedules and procedures  
• Project selection criteria  
• Performance measures  
• Program evaluation 

 
ATP Funding Categories 

• 40% MPOs with large Urbanized Area (UZA) (competitive; run by MPO) 
o i.e. MTC, SCAG, SACOG 

• 10% Small urban and rural 
o Small urban 
o Rural 

• 50% Statewide 
o Safe Routes to Schools 

 Non-infrastructure projects 
• Technical Resource Center 

o 25% disadvantaged communities, broad spectrum of projects, and recreational 
trails 

 
Below are questions raised at working group meetings, which CTC staff are working to define. 
 

Topic Question 
40% MPOs with large UZA How is 40% distributed? 
10% Small urban and rural Does this include small urban/rural areas in large MPOs? 
50% Statewide Will this be a sequential project selection process? 

 
The ATP guidelines are scheduled for adoption by March 20, 2014. The schedule for 
development of the guidelines is shown below. 
 

Date Task 

October 8, 2013 @ 1:00 p.m. Stanislaus County Admin Building; 1010 10th Street, Modesto, CA* 

October 17, 2013 @ 10:00 a.m. Caltrans; 1120 N Street, Room 2116, Sacramento, CA* 

October 24, 2013 @ 1:00 p.m. SCTA; 490 Mendocino Ave, Suite 206, Santa Rosa, CA* 

October 28, 2013 @ 1:00 p.m. Caltrans District 7, Conference Rm A, 100 S. Main Street, Los Angeles, CA* 

November 13, 2013 @ 1:00 p.m. Oracle; 488 Almaden Blvd, Rm 8094, San Jose, CA* 

Early January 2014 Draft Guidelines 

January 30, 2014 Public Hearings 

March 20, 2014 Adopt Guidelines 

March - June 30, 2014 Call for Projects 

September 2014 Program Adoption 

April 2015 ATP Second Year Program Adoption 
*Working Group Meeting 

166



 
Notice of workgroup meetings, meeting agendas, and meeting notes will be posted on the  
Commission’s website (http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/ATP.htm) and emailed to those  
expressing interest. Subgroups may be formed at the discretion of Commission staff. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None at this time.    
 
Recommendation:   
Informational. 

167



This page intentionally left blank. 

168



 

Agenda Item 12.D 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: November 25, 2013 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Anthony Adams, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE:  Mobility Management Program Update  
 
 
Background: 
Since July 2012, STA has been working with consultants, the Solano Transit Operators, and 
the Senior and People with Disabilities Advisory Committeeto develop a Mobility 
Management Plan for Solano County.  The development of a Mobility Management Plan was 
identified in the 2011 Solano Transportation Study for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
as a priority strategy to assist seniors, people with disabilities, low income and transit 
dependent individuals with their transportation needs.  The Solano Mobility Management 
Plan is gathering information about existing services and programs, exploring potential 
partnerships, and analyzing how to address mobility needs in Solano County in a cost 
effective manner. 
 
The Solano Mobility Management Plan proposes to focus on four key elements that were 
also identified as strategies in the Solano Transportation Study for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities: 

1. Countywide In-Person American Disability Act (ADA) Eligibility and 
Certification Program 

2. Travel Training 
3. Older Driver Safety Information 
4. One Stop Transportation Call Center 

 
Since mid-September, STA has been meeting with potential partner agencies and non-profits 
in order to compile a family of services matrix.  This matrix is meant identify existing 
transportation gaps within the senior, people with disabilities, and low-income communities.  
Potential partner agencies will provide STA with proposals for opportunities to expand upon 
the services they currently offer, or new services they could offer, with further financial or 
logistical support.   
 
Discussion: 
Mobility Transportation Guide Update 
The Mobility Guide for Seniors and People with Disabilities is in the process of being 
revised and updated with the most current information. Comments from advisory committee 
and transit operators were due November 19th. STA staff is incorporating suggested changes 
and comments into the guide and STA expects to release the revised Mobility Transportation 
Guide to the public in December 2013. 
 
Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility Program Update 
Due to the success of the public awareness of this program, the demand for ADA eligibility 
has been much higher than expected.  The unanticipated demand had lead to longer wait 
times for some applicants in the SolTrans areas, mainly Vallejo, which had the longest wait 

169



 

up to 30 days.  As a result, CARE has added an additional assessment site to the SolTrans 
service areas in order to reduce the waiting for assessments time.  Initial results appear to 
show wait times decreasing in the SolTrans area since the addition of the new location.  The 
situation will continue to be monitored and adjusted as needed. Attachment A provides a 
graphical representation of the September 2013 In-Person ADA Eligibility Report including 
countywide and individual operator comparisons. 
 
SolTrans also experienced a high No Show rate for individuals who had requested the 
complimentary paratransit ride to the assessment location.  This comprised SolTrans 
paratransit service and the assessment scheduling.   As many of the applicants have been new 
users of the paratransit service, they were unfamiliar with the protocols.  To address this 
issue, SolTrans designed a postcard outlining key service points such as the 15-minute pick-
up window and 5-minute vehicle wait time so that the applicants knew when they had to be 
ready for their ride.  In addition, the assessment date and time were printed on the postcard.  
The postcard’s design was reviewed by the operations staff and CARE Evaluators.  STA 
began mailing the cards in October.   
 
In November, STA staff identified that CARE Evaluators had missed their 21 day ADA 
requirement for providing ADA Eligibility during the initial 4 months of the new 
Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility process.  Corrective steps were incorporated in early 
November and no 21 day deadlines were missed by CARE Evaluators for the month of 
November. 
 
Countywide Travel Training 
At the October's STA Board Meeting, the Countywide Travel Training scope of work was 
approved.  A Request for Proposal (RFP) for this program has been drafted and is awaiting 
approval from Caltrans before public release.  Upon approval from Caltrans, with an early 
December RFP release and a consultant secured, the Countywide Travel Training program is 
targeted to begin operation in May 2014. 
 
Mobility Management Website 
At the September's STA Board Meeting, the Mobility Management Website scope of work 
was approved.  A Request for Proposal (RFP) for this program has been drafted and is 
awaiting approval from Caltrans before public release.  With an early December RFP release 
and a consultant secured, an initial Mobility Management website is targeted for creation and 
public use in April 2014. 
 
One-Stop Call Center 
At the October's STA Board Meeting, the One-Stop Call Center was approved to be 
implemented as a 3-year pilot program.  The call center will be a modification and expansion 
of the existing Solano/Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) call center.  The One-Stop Call 
Center is targeted to begin operation and referring clients to partner agencies and Mobility 
Management programs by July 1, 2014. 
 
Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA) Designation 
This topic was presented at the November 12th Consortium meeting and the November 18th 
STA TAC meeting as an informational item.  The potential organization and structure of the 
CTSA was discussed.  The Consortium voiced their concern against utilizing local TDA 
funds dedicated to transit operators to finance CTSA activities and requested that STA staff 
provide examples of CTSA models for review at the next meeting. 

170



 

Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility: September Progress Report 

B. Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility: Quarterly Progress Report 

171



This page intentionally left blank. 

172



Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility Program 
September 2013 Progress Report 

Appointment Volume:  Between September 1st and September 30th, the Call Center scheduled 148 
appointments.  On average the Call Center scheduled 5 appointments per day with a minimum of 1 appointment 
and a maximum of 13 appointments in one day.   

New versus re-certification: Seventy-four percent (74%) were new applicants and 26% were applicants seeking 
recertification.   

Applicant Volume and Productivity: Of the 148 scheduled appointments, 116 (78%) of the applicants appeared 
for their in-person assessment, seven applicants were a no show, and 32 (22%) were cancellations.  No shows 
and cancellations provides an incompletion rate of 25%, which is lower than last month, and closer to the 20% 
national standard for in-person ADA certification assessments incompletion rate.  SolTrans has worked with 
CARE Evaluators and STA on reducing the number of no-shows, which has shown improvement from the 10 in 
August to 6 in September. 

Applicant Volume and Productivity by Location 

  Countywide Dixon 
Readi-
Ride 

FAST Rio Vista 
Delta 

Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City 

Coach 
Completed 116 5 33 0 55 23 

Cancellations 32 0 12 0 16 4 
No-Shows 7 0 0 0 6 1 

Incompletion Rate 25% 0% 27% 0% 29% 18% 
 

 

 

75% 

21% 

4% 

Applicant Volume and Productivity 
Completed Cancelations No-Shows 

ATTACHMENT A 

173



Eligibility determinations: Of the 116 assessments that took place in the month of September, 93 (80%) were 
given unrestricted eligibility, 2 (2%) were denied, 1 (1%) were given trip-by-trip eligibility, 13 (10%) were given 
conditional eligibility, and 7 (6%) were given temporary eligibility.   

Eligibility Results by Service Area 
  Countywide Dixon Readi-

Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta Breeze 
SolTrans Vacaville 

City 
Coach 

Unrestricted 93 3 29 0 45 16 
Conditional 13 2 2 0 3 6 
Trip-by-trip 1 0 0 0 1 0 
Temporary 7 0 1 0 5 1 

Denied 2 0 1 0 1 0 
 

 

 

The only two denials from all 116 completed applications came from the new applicant category. 

Countywide Eligibility Results by Application Type 
NEW Percentage  RECERTIFICATION Percentage 

Unrestricted 66 77%  Unrestricted 27 90% 
Conditional 10 12%  Conditional 3 10% 
Trip-by-trip 1 1%  Trip-by-trip 0 0% 
Temporary 7 8%  Temporary 0 0% 

Denied 2 2%  Denied 0 0% 
TOTAL 86 74%  TOTAL 30 26% 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

Countywide Dixon Readi-
Ride 

FAST Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville City 
Coach 

Eligibility Results by Service Area 

Unrestricted 

Conditional 

Trip-by-trip 

Temporary 

Denied 

174



Impact on paratransit:  As part of the new countywide in-person assessment program, applicants are provided a 
complimentary trip on paratransit for the applicant and the applicant’s Personal Care Attendant (PCA) upon 
request.  Sixty-five percent (65%) of all assessments requested paratransit to the assessment site in September.   
This is an increase from forty-five percent (45%) in August. 

Transportation to and from In-Person Assessment 
  Countywide Dixon 

Readi-Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City 

Coach 
Own 

Transportation 40 1 11 0 14 14 
Complementary 

Paratransit  76 4 22 0 41 9 
 

Type of Disability: Many of the applicants who completed the in-person assessment presented with more than 
one type of disability.  Nonetheless, the most common type of disability reported was a physical disability (52%) 
followed by a visual disability (24%) and cognitive disability (19%).  The trend is that visual disabilities as a 
percentage of the total is increasing, going from the third most common disability in July and August, to the 
second in September.  An auditory disability was the least commonly reported disability, with only (5%) of the 
total.  

Disability Type Countywide and by Service Area 
  Countywide Dixon 

Readi-Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City 

Coach 
Physical 111 5 33 0 53 20 
Cognitive 40 3 10 0 22 5 

Visual 51 0 12 0 25 14 
Audio 10 0 5 0 4 1 

 

 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

Countywide Dixon Readi-Ride FAST Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville City 
Coach 

Disability Type by Service Area 

Physical Cognitive Visual Audio 

175



Time to scheduled assessment: On average, the time between an applicant call to schedule an in-person 
assessment and the date of their assessment is approximately six (6) days.  The longest amount of time clients 
had to wait for an appointment in September was 31 days. As a result, CARE has added an additions assessment 
site to SolTrans service area in order to reduce the waiting time.  The goal is for clients to receive an 
appointment within 2-3 weeks of their phone call.   

In reviewing future appointments in October, C.A.R.E. Evaluators are able to schedule clients in Dixon, Rio Vista, 
Fairfield, Suisun City and Vacaville for an in-person assessment in their service area within 2 weeks.  In the 
month of August, the longest wait time for an assessment for FAST was 3 weeks; the addition of 2 assessment 
dates in Suisun City has resulted in the longest wait time falling to two weeks.  The issue with Vallejo residents 
experiencing long wait times has been addressed by adding an additional assessment site and wait times are 
expected to fall to two weeks or less.     

Time (Days) from Scheduling to Appointment 
 Countywide Dixon Readi-

Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta Breeze 
SolTrans Vacaville 

City Coach 
Average for 
Period 6 7 5 0 6 6 
Longest 30 13 15 0 30 19 
 

 

176



Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility Program 
1st Quarter July-September 2013 Progress Report 

Appointment Volume:  From the start of the program on June 16th to September 30th, the Call Center 
scheduled 482 appointments.  On average the Call Center scheduled 6 appointments per day with a 
minimum of 1 appointment and a maximum of 17 appointments in one day.   

Applicant Volume and Productivity: Of the 482 scheduled appointments, 345 (72%) of the applicants 
appeared for their in-person assessment, 33 (7%) applicants were a no show, and 104 (21%) were 
cancellations.  No shows and cancellations provides an incompletion rate of 28%, which is higher than 
the 20% national standard for in-person ADA certification assessments incompletion rate.  STA has 
worked with SolTrans, FAST, and CARE staff to lower the number of no-shows, which has seen an 
improvement throughout the quarter.P 

Applicant Volume and Productivity by Location 

  Countywide Dixon 
Readi-Ride 

FAST Rio Vista 
Delta Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City Coach 

Completed 345 10 116 3 135 81 
Cancellations 104 2 37 0 45 20 

No-Shows 33 3 4 0 17 9 
Incompletion Rate 28% 33% 26% 0% 31% 26% 

 

 

 

 

71% 

22% 

7% 

Applicant Volume and Productivity 
Completed Cancelations No-Shows 

ATTACHMENT B 

177



New versus re-certification: Sixty-eight (68%) were new applicants and 32% were applicants seeking 
recertification.   

Countywide Eligibility Results by Application Type 
NEW Percentage  RECERTIFICATION Percentage 

Unrestricted 187 80% 
 

Unrestricted 91 82% 
Conditional 19 8% 

 
Conditional 8 7% 

Trip-by-trip 8 3% 
 

Trip-by-trip 1 1% 
Temporary 18 8% 

 
Temporary 7 6% 

Denied 2 1% 
 

Denied 4 4% 
TOTAL 234 68% 

 
TOTAL    111 32% 

 

Eligibility determinations: Of the 345 assessments that took place during the first quarter of the 
program, 278 (81%) were given unrestricted eligibility, 6 (2%) were denied, 9 (3%) were given trip-by-
trip eligibility, 27 (8%) were given conditional eligibility, and 25 (7%) were given temporary eligibility.   

Eligibility Results by Service Area 
  Countywide Dixon Readi-

Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta Breeze 
SolTrans Vacaville 

City 
Coach 

Unrestricted 278 7 94 3 110 64 
Conditional 27 3 7 0 7 10 
Trip-by-trip 9 0 1 0 4 4 
Temporary 25 0 10 0 12 3 

Denied 6 0 4 0 2 0 
Totals 345 10 116 3 135 81 

 

 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

Countywide Dixon Readi-
Ride 

FAST Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville City 
Coach 

Eligibility Results by Service Area 

Unrestricted 

Conditional 

Trip-by-trip 

Temporary 

Denied 

178



Impact on paratransit:  As part of the new countywide in-person assessment program, applicants are 
provided a complimentary trip on paratransit for the applicant and the applicant’s Personal Care 
Attendant (PCA) upon request.  Fifty-seven percent (57%) of all assessments requested paratranist 
transportation to the assessment site for the first quarter. 

Transportation to and from In-Person Assessment 
  Countywide Dixon 

Readi-Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City 

Coach 
Own 

Transportation 148 1 52 3 51 41 
Complementary 

Paratransit  197 9 64 0 84 40 
 

Type of Disability: Many of the applicants who completed the in-person assessment presented with 
more than one type of disability.  Nonetheless, the most common type of disability reported was a 
physical disability (52%) followed by cognitive disability (21%), and visual disability (19%) and.  The trend 
is that visual disabilities as a percentage of the total is increasing, going from the third most common 
disability in July and August, to the second in September.  An auditory disability was the least commonly 
reported disability, with only (5%) of the total.  

Disability Type Countywide and by Service Area 
  Countywide Dixon 

Readi-Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville 
City 

Coach 
Physical 328 10 113 3 128 74 
Cognitive 125 6 36 1 54 28 

Visual 117 2 36 2 45 32 
Audio 29 0 14 0 10 5 

 

 

0 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 
300 
350 

Countywide Dixon Readi-Ride FAST Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze 

SolTrans Vacaville City 
Coach 

Disability Type by Service Area 

Physical Cognitive Visual Audio 

179



Time to scheduled assessment: On average, the time between an applicant call to schedule an in-
person assessment and the date of their assessment is approximately seven (7) days.  The longest 
amount of time clients had to wait for an appointment during the quarter was 31 days. As a result, CARE 
has added an additions assessment site to SolTrans service area in order to reduce the waiting time.  The 
goal is for clients to receive an appointment within 2-3 weeks of their phone call.   

In reviewing future appointments in October, C.A.R.E. Evaluators are able to schedule clients in Dixon, 
Rio Vista, Fairfield, Suisun City and Vacaville for an in-person assessment in their service area within 2 
weeks.  During the quarter, the longest wait time for an assessment for FAST was 3 weeks; the addition 
of 2 assessment dates in Suisun City has resulted in the longest wait time falling to two weeks currently.  
The issue with Vallejo residents experiencing long wait times has been addressed by adding an 
additional assessment site and wait times are expected to fall to two weeks or less.     

Time (Days) from Scheduling to Appointment 
 Countywide Dixon Readi-

Ride 
FAST Rio Vista 

Delta Breeze 
SolTrans Vacaville 

City Coach 
Average for 
Period 7 7 5 0 8 6 
Longest 31 13 15 0 31 19 
 

 

180



Agenda Item 12.E 
December 12, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  November 27, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sara Woo, Associate Planner 
RE: Summary of Other Funding Opportunities  
 
 
Discussion: 
Below is a list of funding opportunities that will be available to STA member agencies during the 
next few months, organized by Federal, State, and Local. Attachment A provides further details 
for each program. 
 

 FUND SOURCE AMOUNT 
AVAILABLE 
(approximately) 

APPLICATION 
DEADLINE 
 

 Regional1 
1.  Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment Program (for 

San Francisco Bay Area) 
Approximately $20 
million 

Due On First-Come, First 
Served Basis 

2.  Carl Moyer Off-Road Equipment Replacement Program (for 
Sacramento Metropolitan Area) 

Approximately $10 
million  

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

3.  Air Resources Board (ARB) Clean Vehicle Rebate Project (CVRP) Up to $5,000 rebate per 
light-duty vehicle 

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

4.  Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Hybrid Electric 
Vehicle Purchase Vouchers (HVIP) 

Approximately $10,000 
to $45,000 per qualified 
request 

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

5.  New Freedom Program* 
Approximately $1.8 
million for Bay Area 
large urbanized areas 

Due January 10, 2014 

 State 
6.  Transportation Planning Grant Program* Approximately $5.3 

million Due February 3, 2014 

 Federal 
7.  N/A N/A N/A 

*New funding opportunity 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational.  
 
Attachment: 

A. Detailed Funding Opportunities Summary 

                                                 
1 Local includes programs administered by the Solano Transportation Authority and regionally in the San Francisco 
Bay Area and greater Sacramento. 

181



This page intentionally left blank. 

182



Attachment A 

The following funding opportunities will be available to the STA member agencies during the next few months. Please distribute this information to 
the appropriate departments in your jurisdiction. 

Fund Source Application Contact** Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount 
Available 

Program Description Proposed 
Submittal 

Additional Information 

Local Grants1 
Carl Moyer 
Memorial Air 
Quality 
Standards 
Attainment 
Program (for 
San Francisco 
Bay Area) 

Anthony Fournier 
Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District 
(415) 749-4961 
afournier@baaqmd.gov  

Ongoing. Application Due 
On First-Come, First 
Served Basis 
 
Eligible Project Sponsors: 
private non-profit 
organizations, state or 
local governmental 
authorities, and operators 
of public transportation 
services 

Approx. 
$20 million 

Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment 
Program provides incentive grants for cleaner-than-
required engines, equipment, and other sources of 
pollution providing early or extra emission reductions. 

$12M Fairfield/ 
Vacaville 
Intermodal 
Train Station 
STA co-
sponsor 
 
STA staff 
contact: Janet 
Adams 

Eligible Projects: cleaner on-
road, off-road, marine, 
locomotive and stationary 
agricultural pump engines 
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Div
isions/Strategic-
Incentives/Funding-
Sources/Carl-Moyer-
Program.aspx  

Carl Moyer Off-
Road 
Equipment 
Replacement 
Program (for 
Sacramento 
Metropolitan 
Area) 

Gary A. Bailey 
Sacramento Metropolitan 
Air Quality Management 
District 
(916) 874-4893 
gbailey@airquality.org  
 
 

Ongoing. Application Due 
On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 
 
Eligible Project Sponsors: 
private non-profit 
organizations, state or 
local governmental 
authorities, and operators 
of public transportation 
services 

Approx. 
$10 
million, 
maximum 
per project 
is $4.5 
million 

The Off-Road Equipment Replacement Program (ERP), 
an extension of the Carl Moyer Program, provides grant 
funds to replace Tier 0, high-polluting off-road 
equipment with the cleanest available emission level 
equipment. 

N/A Eligible Projects: install 
particulate traps, replace 
older heavy-duty engines with 
newer and cleaner engines 
and add a particulate trap, 
purchase new vehicles or 
equipment, replace heavy-
duty equipment with electric 
equipment, install electric 
idling-reduction equipment 
http://www.airquality.org/m
obile/moyererp/index.shtml  

                                                 
1 Local includes opportunities and programs administered by the Solano Transportation Authority and/or regionally in the San Francisco Bay Area and greater Sacramento 

183

mailto:afournier@baaqmd.gov
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
mailto:gbailey@airquality.org
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml


Fund Source Application Contact** Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount 
Available 

Program Description Proposed 
Submittal 

Additional Information 

Local Grants1 
Air Resources 
Board (ARB) 
Clean Vehicle 
Rebate Project 
(CVRP)* 

Meri Miles 
ARB 
(916) 322-6370 
mmiles@arb.ca.gov  

Application Due On First-
Come, First-Served Basis 

Up to 
$5,000 
rebate per 
light-duty 
vehicle 

The Zero-Emission and Plug-In Hybrid Light-Duty 
Vehicle (Clean Vehicle) Rebate Project is intended to 
encourage and accelerate zero-emission vehicle 
deployment and technology innovation.  Rebates for 
clean vehicles are now available through the Clean 
Vehicle Rebate Project (CVRP) funded by the Air 
Resources Board (ARB) and implemented statewide by 
the California Center for Sustainable Energy (CCSE). 

N/A Eligible Projects: 
Purchase or lease of zero-
emission and plug-in hybrid 
light-duty vehicles 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/mspr
og/aqip/cvrp.htm  

Bay Area Air 
Quality 
Management 
District 
(BAAQMD) 
Hybrid Electric 
Vehicle 
Purchase 
Vouchers 
(HVIP)* 
 

To learn more about how 
to request a voucher, 
contact: 
info@californiahvip.org  

Application Due On First-
Come, First-Served Basis 

Approx. 
$10,000 to 
$45,000 per 
qualified 
request 

The California Air Resources Board (ARB) created the 
HVIP to speed the market introduction of low-emitting 
hybrid trucks and buses. It does this by reducing the 
cost of these vehicles for truck and bus fleets that 
purchase and operate the vehicles in the State of 
California. The HVIP voucher is intended to reduce 
about half the incremental costs of purchasing hybrid 
heavy-duty trucks and buses. 
 
 
 

N/A Eligible Projects: 
Purchase of low-emission 
hybrid trucks and buses 
http://www.californiahvip.or
g/  

New Freedom 
Program* 

Kristen Mazur 
MTC 
(510) 817-5789 
kmazur@mtc.ca.gov 

Due January 10, 2014 Approx. 
$1.8 
million 
regionwide 

MTC is currently soliciting projects in the San Francisco 
Bay Area's large urbanized areas (UAs) for the Federal 
Transit Administration's New Freedom grant program 
(49 USC Section 5317). The New Freedom program 
provides grants for new capital and operating projects 
aimed at reducing, beyond the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, transportation 
barriers faced by individuals with disabilities.  

N/A Eligible Projects: 
New public transportation 
alternatives beyond those 
required by the ADA designed 
to assist individuals with 
disabilities with accessing 
transportation services, 
including transportation to 
and from jobs and 
employment support services. 
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/fundi
ng/new_freedom.htm 

State Grants 
Eligible 
Projects: 
 

Priscilla Martinez-Velez 
Caltrans 
(916) 651-8196 
priscilla_martinez-
velez@dot.ca.gov 

Due February 3, 2013 Approx. 
$5.3 
million 

The Division will award approximately $5.3 million in 
funding through three Grant Programs for Fiscal Year 
2014-15. These programs provide monetary assistance 
for transportation planning projects to improve mobility 
and lead to the programming or implementation phase 
for a community or region. 

N/A Eligible Projects: 
Partnership Planning for 
Sustainable Transportation 

Transit Planning for 
Sustainable Communities 

Transit Planning for Rural 
Communities 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tp
p/offices/orip/Grants/2014/F
INALGrantApplicationGuide
112113xx.pdf#zoom=75 

Federal Grants 
N/A       
*New Funding Opportunity 
**STA staff, Sara Woo, can be contacted directly at (707) 399-3214 or swoo@sta-snci.com for assistance with finding more information about any of the funding opportunities listed in this report 
 

184

mailto:mmiles@arb.ca.gov
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/aqip/cvrp.htm
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/aqip/cvrp.htm
mailto:info@californiahvip.org
http://www.californiahvip.org/
http://www.californiahvip.org/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/new_freedom.htm
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/new_freedom.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/orip/Grants/2014/FINALGrantApplicationGuide112113xx.pdf#zoom=75
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/orip/Grants/2014/FINALGrantApplicationGuide112113xx.pdf#zoom=75
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/orip/Grants/2014/FINALGrantApplicationGuide112113xx.pdf#zoom=75
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/orip/Grants/2014/FINALGrantApplicationGuide112113xx.pdf#zoom=75
mailto:swoo@sta-snci.com


Agenda Item 12.F 
December 11, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board 
RE: STA Board and Advisory Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2014  
 
 
Discussion: 
Attached is the STA Board and Advisory meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2014. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Board and Advisory Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2014 

185



STA BOARD AND ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE 
CALENDAR YEAR 2014 

 
DATE TIME DESCRIPTION LOCATION STATUS 
 

Wed., January 8 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., January 9 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Thurs., January 16 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Solano Community College Tentative 
Tues., January 28 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., January 29 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 
 

Wed., February 12 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Wed., February 12 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Thurs., February 20 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., February 25 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., February 26 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 

Wed., March 12 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., March 20 9:30 p.m. Solano Seniors and People w/ Disabilities Solano County Multipurpose Rm. TBD 
Thurs., March 20 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Solano Community College Tentative 
Thurs., March 6 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., March 25 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., March 26 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., April 9 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., April 17 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., April 29 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., April 30 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., May14 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., May 1 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., May 14 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Thurs., May 15 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) City of Benicia Tentative 
Thurs., May 15 9:30 a.m. Solano Seniors and People w/ Disabilities Solano County Multipurpose Rm. TBD 
Tues., May 27 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., May 28 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., June 11 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., June 19 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., June 24 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., June 25 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., July 9 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., July 17 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Fairfield Community Center Tentative 
Thurs., July 3 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
July 30 (No Meeting) SUMMER 

RECESS 
Intercity Transit Consortium N/A N/A 

July 31 (No Meeting) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) N/A N/A 
 August 14 (No Meeting) SUMMER 

RECESS 
STA Board Meeting  N/A N/A 

Wed., August 13 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Thurs., August 21 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., August 26 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., August 27 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., September 10 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., September 18 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Ulatis Community Center Tentative 
Thurs., September 4 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., September 23 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., September 24 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., October 8 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., October 16 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
No meeting due to STA’s Annual Awards in 
November (No STA Board Meeting) 

Intercity Transit Consortium N/A N/A 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) N/A N/A 

Oct. (day to be determined) TBD Solano Seniors and People w/ Disabilities Solano County Multipurpose Rm. TBD 
 Wed., November 12 6:00 p.m. STA’s 17th Annual Awards TBD – Vallejo Confirmed 

Thurs., November 20 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) John F. Kennedy Library Tentative 
Thurs., November 6 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., November 12 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues.., November TBD 10:00 a.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., November TBD 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., December 10 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., December 18 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., December TBD 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., December TBD 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 

 

SUMMARY: 
STA Board:  Meets 2nd Wednesday of Every Month 
Consortium/TAC: Meets Last Wednesday of Every Month 
BAC:  Meets 1st Thursday of every Odd Month 
PAC:  Meets 3rd Thursday of every Even Month 
PCC:  Meets 3rd Thursday of every Odd Month 
SR2S-AC  Meets Quarterly (Begins Feb.) on the 3rd Wed. 

186


	00.STA Board Agenda 12-11-13
	05_Executive Directors ReportDec2013v2
	09.A_STA Board Meeting Minutes_10-09-13v2
	09.B_TAC Meeting Minutes_11-20-13
	09.C_FY 2012-13 Fourth Quarter Budget Report
	Att A

	09.D_FY 2012-13 First Quarter Budget Report
	Att A
	Att B

	09.E_Benefit Summary Update-2014
	Att A
	Att B

	09.F_CMP
	09.G_Alternative Fuels Plan
	09.H_2014 and 2015 5311
	Att A
	Att B

	09.I_Ridership Survey
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C

	09.J_80 680 12 Contract Amendment PB
	Att A

	09.K_PAC Appointments
	Att A
	Att B

	09.L_Suisun City SR2S Programming
	Att A 
	Att B
	Att C
	Att D

	09.M_Federal Legislative Advocacy Contract
	Att B
	Att C

	09.N_Board Jepson Parkway Concept Plan
	09.O_RTIF Implementation ProgramFehrandPeers
	Att A
	Att B

	09.P_CNG Feasibility Study
	09.Q_Model Update 111213
	Att A

	10.A_AVA
	11.A_Annual Audit
	11.B_80 680 12 RM2 Allocation
	Att A

	11.C_Bay Trail Grant Application
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C

	12.A_P3 Update
	Att A-C
	12.Aa_Attach A_ P3 KPMG Amend Letter - FINAL
	12.Ab_ Attach B_P3 Marketing Sounding Strategy_3-20-13
	12.Ac_Attach C_P3 Updated Schedule


	12.B_Ramp Metering
	12.C_Active Transportation Program Overview
	12.D_Mobility Management Plan Update and Discussion
	Att A
	Att B

	12.E_Funding Opportunities
	Att A

	12.F_STA Board Meeting Schedule Memo
	Att A




